
City of Monticello, Iowa 
www.ci.monticello.ia.us 

Posted on September 28, 2022 at 1:00 p.m. 
Monticello City Council Meeting October 3, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m.  

Monticello Renaissance Center, 220 E. 1st Street, Monticello, Iowa 
 
Mayor:  Dave Goedken  Staff:  
City Council:    City Administrator:       Russell Farnum 
At Large: Wayne Peach  City Clerk/Treas.:      Sally Hinrichsen 
At Large: Brenda Hanken  Police Chief:       Britt Smith 
Ward #1: Scott Brighton  City Engineer:       Patrick Schwickerath 
Ward #2: Candy Langerman Public Works Dir.:      Nick Kahler 
Ward #3: Chris Lux  Water/Wastewater Sup.:  Jim Tjaden 
Ward #4: Tom Yeoman  Park & Rec Director:      Jacob Oswald 
     Library Director:      Michelle Turnis 
 
- Call to Order – 6:00 P.M. 
- Pledge of Allegiance 
- Roll Call 
- Agenda Addition/Agenda Approval 
 
Open Forum: If you wish to address the City Council on subjects pertaining to 
today’s meeting agenda please wait until that item on the agenda is reached.  If you 
wish to address the City Council on an item not on the agenda, please approach the 
lectern and give your name and address for the public record before discussing your 
item. Individuals are normally limited to speaking for no more than three (3) minutes 
on a topic and the Open Forum is by rule limited to a total of twenty (20) minutes. 
 
Consent Agenda (These are routine items and will be enacted by one motion 
without separate discussion unless someone requests an item removed to be 
considered separately.) 
 
Approval of Council Mtg. Minutes    September 19, 2022 
Approval of Payroll      September 22, 2022 
Approval of Bill List 
Approval of Treasurer’s Report    August        2022  
Approval of appointment of Kyle Stadtmueller to  
 the Tree Board filling Mike Meshak’s term 
Approval of Hy-Vee Dollar Fresh liquor license 
Approval of La Hacienda Mexican Restaurant liquor license 
 
 
Resolutions: 
 

1. Resolution Approving FY 2021-2022 Annual Financial Report  
 



2. Resolution to approve updates to Cleaning Service contract with D&D 
Services LLC 
 

3. Resolution to approve Plat of Survey of Parcel 2022-61 along 130th Avenue 
in Jones County, Iowa 
 

4. Resolution to approve Plat of Survey of Parcel 2022-66, for property at 20437 
Meadowlark Road in Jones County, Iowa 
 

5. Resolution Authorizing purchase of the All-Inclusive and Interactive Playground 
surfacing 

 
6. Resolution To approve Amendment Professional Services Agreement 

between City of Monticello and Snyder & Associates related to Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Facility 
 

7. Resolution Acknowledge Monticello Library Youth Services Librarian wages 
effective October 3, 2022 
 

8. Resolution authorizing Mayor to sign Monticello Main Street and City 
continued support and participation in the Main Street Program 
 

Motions: 
 

9. Motion to approve Horsfield Construction invoice for North Sycamore Street 
sidewalks repairs 

 
10. Motion to approve lighting for the Park and Ride  

 
Ordinances: 

 
11. Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Monticello, 

Iowa, by Adding New Subsections to Chapter 69, Parking Regulations, 
Section 08 No Parking Zones on portions of South Linden Street – (2nd 
reading) 

 
Reports / Potential Actions: 
 

12. City Engineer 
13. Mayor 
14. City Administrator 
15. City Clerk 
16. Public Works Director 
17. Police Chief 
18. Water/Wastewater Superintendent 
19. Park and Recreation Director 
20. Library Director 

 



Adjournment:  Pursuant to §21.4(2) of the Code of Iowa, the City has the right to 
amend this agenda up until 24 hours before the posted meeting time. 
 
Monticello City Council meetings are recorded, by attending and choosing to 
participate you give your consent to be recorded. If you prefer not to be recorded, 
you may submit comments in writing. 
 
 

Meeting Instructions for the Public 
Due to the Covid-19 Virus the public will be 

admitted into this meeting with limited seating. 
 

The meeting will continue to be broadcast on Mediacom (Local Access Channel) and 
will be accessible via Zoom via the following link. 
 
City of Monticello is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: October 3, 2022 Council Meeting 
Time: Oct 3, 2022 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83694291881 
 
Meeting ID: 836 9429 1881 
One tap mobile 
+16469313860,,83694291881# US 
+13017158592,,83694291881# US (Washington DC) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
        +1 564 217 2000 US 
        +1 669 444 9171 US 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 719 359 4580 US 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 386 347 5053 US 
Meeting ID: 836 9429 1881 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbY658QADJ 



 
Regular Council Meeting  
September 19, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 
Community Media Center 
 
Mayor Dave Goedken called the meeting to order. Council present were: Brenda Hanken, 
Scott Brighton, Candy Langerman, Chris Lux, Wayne Peach and Tom Yeoman. Also 
present were City Administrator Russell Farnum, City Clerk Sally Hinrichsen, Park & 
Rec Director Jacob Oswald, Public Works Director Nick Kahler, Water/ Wastewater 
Superintendent Jim Tjaden, Library Director Michelle Turnis, Police Chief Britt Smith 
and City Engineer Patrick Schwickerath.  The public was invited to attend the meeting in 
person, with limited seating or to participate in the meeting electronically via “Zoom 
Meetings” and were encouraged to communicate from Zoom Meeting via chat, due to the 
heightened public health risks of the Coronavirus Pandemic (COVID-19). The meeting 
did have public attendance, both in-person and via Zoom.  
 
Langerman moved to approve agenda, Yeoman seconded, roll call was unanimous.  
 
Joe Stoll, Monticello, advised for his Eagle Scout Project, he would like to install 
benches along the trail by Kitty Creek at the disc golf, and inquired who he should work 
with. Oswald advised he would work with him. 
 
Bud Coyle, 515 North Sycamore, inquired about the watering of flowers on First Street 
and other flower pots around town, including the one by Ohnward Bank & Trust.  
Oswald stated he waters the City flower pots about twice a week and Ohnward Bank is 
the only one not in the right of way.  Coyle questioned the status for the installation of the 
sidewalk by Dollar Fresh and was advised they were waiting for the poles to be removed. 
 
Steve Intlekofer, 529 West First Street, reported that he applied for a building permit to 
move a modular home into town and had not heard back.  He advised his permit was in 
compliance and asked the Mayor and Council to approve it. Goedken stated he would 
look into it and approve it if it met the City Code. Intlekofer mentioned that City 
Administrator still has not found a residence in the City limits. 
 
Yeoman moved to approve the consent agenda; Brighton seconded.  Hanken questioned 
several invoices and the staff advised the Council. After inquiry of the bills, the roll call 
was unanimous.  
 
Goedken stated there are no stipulations regarding setbacks on corner lots in the City 
Code and questioned if Council wanted to refer this to Planning & Zoning Commission to 
consider the amendment. According to the Code, the garage built on the corner of 5th 
Street and Gill Street is permissible. He advised Attorney Doug Herman has suggestions 
on how to word the Code to prevent a garage from being built so close to a sidewalk, like 
it was at 5th Street and Gill Street. Council felt City should require measurements on 
drawings for building permit applications. Peach moved to approve Resolution #2022-
109 directing the Planning and Zoning Commission to Consider Amendment(s) to the 
Municipal Code, Brighton seconded, roll call was unanimous. 
 
Hinrichsen and Jones County Economic Development Director, Derek Lumsden, 
submitted the invoices related to expenses for 103 West First Street project, to the State 



Regular Council Meeting  
September 19, 2022 
 
 
of Iowa for reimbursement. City received the $60,000, which is the Project Mid-Point 
grant amount from the State of Iowa through the Iowa Economic Development Authority. 
Lumsden stated City agreed to $50,000 towards the Community Catalyst Building 
Remediation Grant, along with the $60,000 from the State, less the expenses paid by the 
City is the $46,980.  Once the project is completed, the State will pay City an additional 
$40,000, which will need to be reimbursed to Matt Kumley also.  Langerman moved to 
approve Resolution #2022-110 to approve payment to Matt Kumley dba Glass Tap, LLC 
in the amount of $46,980 related to the Community Catalyst Building Remediation Grant 
for improvements at 103 West First Street.  Hanken seconded, roll call was unanimous. 
 
Hinrichsen advised State of Iowa funding through the U.S. Department of Health & 
Human Services (HHS), who recently amended the provisions to their agreement to the 
current Iowa Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP), which is 
being run through the HACAP Office.  This program provides water assistance to help a 
lot of low-income families pay their utility bills. Peach moved to approve Resolution 
#2022-111 Approving Agreement for water utility vendor agreement Low-income 
household water assistance program between Hawkeye Area Community Action Program 
Inc, and City of Monticello, Brighton seconded, roll call was unanimous. 
 
Turnis advised one full-time staff member resigned and this is to fill that position.  
Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2022-112 To Acknowledge the hiring of 
Monticello Library full-time staff position and setting wage, Lux seconded, roll call was 
unanimous. 
 
Peach moved to postpone action on Resolution to approve updates to Cleaning Service 
contract with D&D Services LLC until the October 3rd meeting to allow staff time to look 
into if this needed to be bid, Yeoman seconded, roll call was unanimous. 
 
Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2022-113 Approving Pay Request #5 from 
Pirc-Tobin Construction, Inc. related to the 2021 East 7th Street Utility Improvements 
Project in the amount of $1,276.80, Yeoman seconded, roll call was unanimous. 
 
Tjaden updated the Council on the liquid chlorination system.  He applied for a 
construction permit through the DNR to switch from gas to a liquid chlorination system 
at the wells.  The estimated cost for the three wells is $11,700.  Langerman moved to 
approve Resolution #2022-114 Approving Purchase of Liquid Chlorination System for 
the Water Utility, Lux seconded, roll call was unanimous. 
 
Langerman moved to remove the post at the Park and Ride, subject to Iowa DOT 
approval, Lux seconded, roll call was unanimous. 
 
Smith reported Linda Parker requested no parking on the west side of South Linden 
instead of the proposed east side. Smith considered the amount of space for parking and 
location of fire hydrants.  Yeoman moved Ordinance #755 amending the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Monticello, Iowa, by Adding New Subsections to Chapter 69, 
Parking Regulations, Section 08 No Parking Zones on portions of South Linden Street, 
first reading in title only. Brighton seconded. Roll call was unanimous. 



Regular Council Meeting  
September 19, 2022 
 
 
 

Schwickerath reported the sidewalks on North Sycamore were replaced and appear to be 
in general performance and thickness of the plans. The issue appears to be the soil and 
drainage, so they installed drainage tubes under the concrete.  
 
Goedken inquired on the status of the guard rail along Hwy X44.  Kahler stated that he 
has attempted several times to contact the company that Jones County uses and has 
received no response.  He is looking for a different company to repair the guard rail. 
 
Farnum advised Mediacom needs to relocate their lines along First Street by Dollar 
Fresh, so the poles can be removed.  
 
Farnum stated the closing on 449 N Sycamore Street property should be completed 
tomorrow. 
 
Farnum informed Council that Steve Intlekofer neglected to state that his permit doesn’t 
meet City Code.  Once permit is up to City Code, he will approve it. 
 
Farnum is working with City Engineers to prepare a presentation to Council and 
neighbors related to the Sixth Street ditch.  He is also working with PFM on the financing 
piece of the project. 
 
Farnum advised Library Director, Michelle Turnis, submitted her resignation at the 
Library Board meeting.  Her last day will be October 8th, however she agreed to stay on 
part time thru December to assist the library staff.  Kim Brooks, Library Board President, 
reported the Library Board accepted Turnis’ resignation and are working on a job 
description and wage proposal. 
 
Hinrichsen stated the second payment of the ARPA grant was received and Council will 
need to decide how to spend the funds in the next budget. Funds need to be spent by 
2026. 
 
Kahler reported the street sweeper is out of service, he is waiting for the seal to repair it.   
 
Kahler advised leaf pickup will begin on October 3rd this year. 
 
Goedken reported that Bill Grief will be taking a bulk of the compost at the yard waste 
site. 
 
Smith reported attending a round table with Teresa Greenfield with the USDA on funding 
opportunities available to the City. 
 
Smith is also working on the GEMT funding report related to Medicare ambulance calls. 
 
Smith stated the police department is working with school staff on ALICE training, 
which is an active shooter training. 
 



Regular Council Meeting  
September 19, 2022 
 
 
Smith thanked everyone that was able to attend the ribbon cutting of the Austin Smith 
Playground.  Smith stated the company that did the surfacing of the playground billed 
through Boland Recreation.  He asked the Council to authorize the payment of the 
invoice and the Smith Foundation will reimburse the City the cost of the surfacing less 
the City’s pledge of $50,000 and any donations received for the project.  Consensus of 
the Council was to allow this payment for the surfacing. 
 
Tjaden reported the copper/lead testing is completed and City’s tests passed. 
 
Oswald asked anyone that finds a knob at the new playground to turn them into him.  
Monti in Motion had a good turnout and raised $900 for the downtown lighting. 
 
Peach moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:27 p.m.   
 
             
       David Goedken, Mayor  
   _______   
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

AMBULANCE September 5 - 18, 2022
Abigale Frisch 374.40$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 318.51$           
Jacob Gravel 1,712.00                  -                   5.25 30.00 1,244.85          
Mason Hanson 341.60                     -                   0.00 0.00 286.14             
David Husmann 2,415.60                  658.80             0.00 3.75 1,360.14          
Mary Intlekofer 1,952.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,351.54          
Lori Lynch 2,586.85                  408.45             0.00 0.00 1,738.66          
Coletta Matson 397.80                     -                   0.00 0.00 337.67             
Chloe Mogensen 146.40                     -                   0.00 0.00 126.11             
Ryan Sutcliffe 1,872.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,471.44          
Curtis Wyman 2,182.80                  513.60             0.00 9.25 1,474.82          

TOTAL AMBULANCE 13,981.45$              1,580.85$        5.25 43.00 9,709.88$        

CEMETERY September 5 - 18, 2022
Dan McDonald 1,788.00$                -$                 0.00 3.38 1,297.36$        

TOTAL CEMETERY 1,788.00$                -$                 0.00 3.38 1,297.36$        

CITY HALL September 5 - 18, 2022
Cheryl Clark 1,816.01$                -$                 0.00 12.75 1,236.62$        
Russ Farnum 3,961.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,625.35          
Sally Hinrichsen 2,744.73                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,662.19          
Nanci Tuel 1,618.40                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,052.45          

TOTAL CITY HALL 10,140.68$              -$                 0.00 12.75 6,576.61$        

COUNCIL / MAYOR
Scott Brighton 300.00$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 276.78$           
Dave Goedken 500.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 453.30             
Brenda Hanken 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.05             
Candy Langerman 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.05             
Chris Lux 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 275.78             
Wayne Peach 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 235.05             
Tom Yeoman 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 275.05             

TOTAL FIRE 2,300.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,068.06$        

LIBRARY September 5 - 18, 2022
Jacquelyn Egemo 1,033.50$                -$                 0.00 0.00 840.87$           
Penny Schmit 1,301.56                  23.96               0.00 0.00 683.84             
Michelle Turnis 1,773.69                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,040.47          

TOTAL LIBRARY 4,108.75$                23.96$             0.00 0.00 2,565.18$        

MBC September 5 - 18, 2022
Keegan Arduser 1,384.62$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,056.57$        
Jacob Oswald 2,193.88                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,647.00          

TOTAL MBC 3,578.50$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,703.57$        

POLICE September 5 - 18, 2022
Peter Fleming 2,799.36$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,911.42$        
Dawn Graver 2,336.08                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,641.00          
Erik Honda 2,714.57                  69.21               0.00 62.25 2,010.47          
Jordan Koos 2,583.84                  -                   0.00 37.50 1,766.20          

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - SEPTEMBER 22, 2022

Page 1 of 2



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - SEPTEMBER 22, 2022

Nicole Minnihan 126.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 70.07               
Britt Smith 3,461.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,523.83          
Madonna Staner 1,623.20                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,230.20          
Brian Tate 2,625.84                  -                   12.00 12.00 1,859.37          

TOTAL POLICE 18,270.43$              69.21$             12.00 111.75 13,012.56$      

ROAD USE September 5 - 18, 2022
Zeb Bowser 2,005.91$                217.91$           0.00 5.75 1,407.37$        
Nick Kahler 2,238.39                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,527.72          
TJ Nealson 1,728.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,309.79          
Jasper Scott 1,788.00                  -                   0.00 1.50 1,231.46          

TOTAL ROAD USE 7,760.30$                217.91$           0.00 7.25 5,476.34$        

SEWER September 3 - 16, 2022
Tim Schultz 2,303.23$                267.23$           0.00 7.13 1,592.39$        
Jim Tjaden 2,576.92                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,867.32          

TOTAL SEWER 4,880.15$                267.23$           0.00 7.13 3,459.71$        

SWIMMING POOL September 2 - 15, 2022
Gabriella Barnhart 38.25$                     -$                 0.00 0.00 35.33$             
Rylan Bertling 29.00                       -                   0.00 0.00 26.78               
Gabriella Donovan 52.56                       -                   0.00 0.00 48.54               
Taylor Gassman 39.31                       -                   0.00 0.00 36.30               
Ella Glawatz 61.75                       -                   0.00 0.00 57.02               
Reeve Graver 29.25                       -                   0.00 0.00 27.02               
Keaton Hermsen 32.38                       -                   0.00 0.00 29.90               
Jacob Miller 121.13                     -                   0.00 0.00 111.86             
Cole Nietert 22.50                       -                   0.00 0.00 20.77               
Cord Nietert 22.50                       -                   0.00 0.00 20.77               
Dylan Ponder 70.88                       -                   0.00 0.00 65.46               
Lake Schnoor 39.31                       -                   0.00 0.00 36.30               
Mace Schnoor 29.00                       -                   0.00 0.00 26.78               
Emma Schwendinger 159.13                     -                   0.00 0.00 146.95             
Kendall Siebels 132.75                     -                   0.00 0.00 122.60             
River Smith 56.19                       -                   0.00 0.00 51.90               
Jessica Stadtmueller 38.25                       -                   0.00 0.00 35.33               
Hayden Tomkins 78.63                       -                   0.00 0.00 72.61               
Brock Westphal 57.81                       -                   0.00 0.00 53.39               

TOTAL SWIMMING POOL 1,110.58$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,025.61$        

WATER September 3 - 16, 2022
Daniel Pike 2,012.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,446.13$        

TOTAL WATER 2,012.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,446.13$        

TOTAL - ALL DEPTS. 69,930.84$              2,159.16$        17.25 185.26 49,341.01$      

Page 2 of 2



Wed Sep 28, 2022  9:47 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     1
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     GENERAL                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     POLICE DEPARTMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      PD COMPUTER SUPPORT FEES                              208.50                                                                                                                                                
                     MADONNA STANER                 PD TRAVEL                                              31.56                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               110  POLICE DEPARTMENT TOTAL                               240.06                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AQUATIC CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
                     JILL FLYNN                     POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  131.25                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      POOL 3CX ANNUAL LICENSE                                59.50                                                                                                                                                
                     KARLE J KRAMER                 POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  187.50                                                                                                                                                
                     JACOB OSWALD                   POOL CREW PRO MONTHLY                                  89.97                                                                                                                                                
                     EMMA J SCHWENDINGER            POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  450.00                                                                                                                                                
                     MADELINE STADTMUELLER          POOL PRIVATE LESSONS                                  187.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               440  AQUATIC CENTER TOTAL                                1,105.72                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     CEMETERY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           CEMETERY GROUNDS SUPPLIES                               4.49                                                                                                                                                
                     KRAMER FUNERAL HOME            CREMATION WALL PLAQUE-KOHL                          1,352.07                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               450  CEMETERY TOTAL                                      1,356.56                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     CITY HALL/GENERAL BLDGS                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     BAKER PAPER CO INC             CH BUILDING SUPPLIES                                   58.03                                                                                                                                                
                     GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC      CH COPIER REPAIR/MAINT                                 97.00                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      CH MISC CONTRACT WORK                                 490.70                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               650  CITY HALL/GENERAL BLDGS TOTAL                         645.73                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               001  GENERAL TOTAL                                       3,348.07                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SOLDIER MEMORIAL FUND                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     SOLDIER'S MEMORIAL BOARD                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     KRAUS PLUMBING & HEATING LLC   SLDR MEM BLDG REPAIRS                                                                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               498  SOLDIER'S MEMORIAL BOARD  TOTAL                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               003  SOLDIER MEMORIAL FUND TOTAL                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     PARKS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     D&S PORTABLES, INC.            MBC PORT-A-POT RENTAL                                 380.00                                                                                                                                                
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          MBC CONCESSIONS                                        10.47                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      MBC 3CX ANNUAL LICENSE                                 90.70                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           MBC GROUNDS SUPPLIES                                   24.99                                                                                                                                                
                     LASLEY ELECTRIC LLC            MBC EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 52.35                                                                                                                                                
                     WELLS FARGO VENDOR FINANCIAL   2020 TOOLCAT PAYMENT                                1,048.95                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               430  PARKS TOTAL                                         1,607.46                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Wed Sep 28, 2022  9:47 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     2
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               005  MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER TOTAL                     1,607.46                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     FIRE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
                     FIRE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
                     SANDRY FIRE SUPPLY             FIRE SUPPLIES                                         354.69                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               150  FIRE TOTAL                                            354.69                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               015  FIRE TOTAL                                            354.69                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AMBULANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     AMBULANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                     BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC        AMB MEDICAL SUPPLIES                                   85.55                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      AMB 3CX ANNUAL LICENSE                                 93.40                                                                                                                                                
                     STERICYCLE, INC.               AMB PHARMACEUTICAL DISPOSAL                            79.35                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               160  AMBULANCE TOTAL                                       258.30                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               016  AMBULANCE TOTAL                                       258.30                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS           LIB IMP BOOKS                                         111.49                                                                                                                                                
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          LIB IMP PROGRAMS/PROMOTIONS                             7.42                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           LIB IMP PROGRAMS/PROMOTIONS                            22.99                                                                                                                                                
                     MICHELLE TURNIS                LIB IMP PROGRAMS/PROMOTIONS                            22.99                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                         164.89                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               030  LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT TOTAL                             164.89                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           LIB BUILDING SUPPLIES                                   3.99                                                                                                                                                
                     KOCH BROTHERS, INC.            LIB OFFICE SUPPLIES                                   148.27                                                                                                                                                
                     MICRO MARKETING LLC            LIB AUDIO RECORDINGS                                   51.48                                                                                                                                                
                     OHNWARD BANK & TRUST           LIB PETTY CASH - POSTAGE                              110.64                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                         314.38                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               041  LIBRARY TOTAL                                         314.38                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     AIRPORT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     AIRPORT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     MONTICELLO AVIATION INC        AIRPORT MANAGER                                     2,166.66                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               280  AIRPORT TOTAL                                       2,166.66                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Wed Sep 28, 2022  9:47 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     3
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               046  AIRPORT TOTAL                                       2,166.66                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     ROAD USE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     STREETS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     ROBERT P CLAUSSEN              RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                 425.00                                                                                                                                                
                     BRIAN CROWLEY                  RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                  84.04                                                                                                                                                
                     GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC      RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                  97.00                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      RU OFFICE SUPPLIES                                      9.90                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           RU BOOTS - BOWSER                                      36.05-                                                                                                                                               
                     KROMMINGA MOTORS INC           RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                  81.50                                                                                                                                                
                     LAPORTE MOTOR SUPPLY           RU SUPPLIES                                            65.93                                                                                                                                                
                     LASLEY ELECTRIC LLC            RU LIGHT SYSTEMS & STRUCTURES                         346.40                                                                                                                                                
                     MONTICELLO MACHINE SHOP INC    RU EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                                   5.56                                                                                                                                                
                     MATHY CONSTRUCTION             RU STREET MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES                        163.57                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               210  STREETS TOTAL                                       1,242.85                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               110  ROAD USE TOTAL                                      1,242.85                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     TRUST/SLAVKA GEHRET FUND                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                     LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      LIB GEHRET 3CX ANNUAL LICENSE                         119.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               410  LIBRARY TOTAL                                         119.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               178  TRUST/SLAVKA GEHRET FUND  TOTAL                       119.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     PARK IMPROVEMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
                     CAPITAL PROJECTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
                     HEIAR FENCING & SUPPLY INC     PARK IMP - AUSTIN STRONG                            1,154.00                                                                                                                                                
                     NAYLOR SEED COMPANY            PARK IMP - AUSTIN STRONG                              595.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               750  CAPITAL PROJECTS TOTAL                              1,749.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               313  PARK IMPROVEMENT TOTAL                              1,749.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     POCKET PARK                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     PARKS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     TRI-STATE CEMETERY LETTERING   POCKET PARK BRICKS                                    450.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               430  PARKS TOTAL                                           450.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               375  POCKET PARK TOTAL                                     450.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     WATER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     HAWKINS WATER TREATMENT        WATER SYSTEM                                           50.00                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      WATER DATA PROCESSING                                  18.90                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Wed Sep 28, 2022  9:47 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     4
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                          VENDOR            CHECK                
                     VENDOR NAME                    REFERENCE                               AMOUNT         TOTAL     CHECK#  DATE                
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               810  WATER TOTAL                                            68.90                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               600  WATER TOTAL                                            68.90                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     SEWER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                     FAREWAY STORES #840-1          SEWER LAB SUPPLIES                                     15.16                                                                                                                                                
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      SEWER DATA PROCESSING                                   7.40                                                                                                                                                
                     JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL           SEWER BOOTS - TJADEN                                  271.34                                                                                                                                                
                     KROMMINGA MOTORS INC           SEWER EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                               86.33                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               815  SEWER TOTAL                                           380.23                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               610  SEWER TOTAL                                           380.23                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     REPUBLIC SERVICES              RESIDENTIAL GARBAGE                                24,143.16                                                                                                                                                
                     RANDALL G THUMAN               SANITATION COMPOST                                  8,175.00                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               840  SANITATION TOTAL                                   32,318.16                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               670  SANITATION TOTAL                                   32,318.16                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                     YARD WASTE SITE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
                     SANITATION                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                     INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY      YARD WASTE EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT                          57.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               840  SANITATION TOTAL                                       57.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   --------------                                                                                                                                               
                                               675  YARD WASTE SITE TOTAL                                  57.50                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                   ==============                                                                                                                                               
                                                    Accounts Payable Total                             44,600.09                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 



Wed Sep 28, 2022  9:47 AM CLAIMS REPORT Page     5
                                              CLAIMS FUND SUMMARY                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                 
                                                   FUND  NAME                                   AMOUNT                                           
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                   001   GENERAL                              3,348.07                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   003   SOLDIER MEMORIAL FUND                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                   005   MONTICELLO BERNDES CENTER            1,607.46                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   015   FIRE                                   354.69                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   016   AMBULANCE                              258.30                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   030   LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT                    164.89                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   041   LIBRARY                                314.38                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   046   AIRPORT                              2,166.66                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   110   ROAD USE                             1,242.85                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   178   TRUST/SLAVKA GEHRET FUND               119.00                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   313   PARK IMPROVEMENT                     1,749.00                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   375   POCKET PARK                            450.00                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   600   WATER                                   68.90                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   610   SEWER                                  380.23                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   670   SANITATION                          32,318.16                                                                                                                                                          
                                                   675   YARD WASTE SITE                         57.50                                                                                                                                                          
                                                         ------------------------------- -------------                                                                                                                                                          
                                                         TOTAL FUNDS                         44,600.09                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Monticello IA                                                OPER: CC 













 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: Resolution approved State mandated Annual Financial Report 
 
Background Information: The attached report is s summary for FY 2021-2022 fund balances, 
revenues, expenses, debt and other related financial information.  Report was prepared by Sally and 
can answer any questions you have between now and the meeting or at the meeting.   
 
Here are a couple of notes: 
 
(From Last Year’s Report)    July 1, 2020   July 1, 2021 
Ending Fund Balance (All funds combined)  $4,229,458   $4,389,194 
 
6/30/2021 General Obligation Debt:   $3,350,000 
6/30/2021 Other Long Term Debt:   $   151,494 
6/30/2021 Short Term Debt:    $     59,825 
 
(From This Year’s Report)    July 1, 2021   July 1, 2022 
Ending Fund Balance (All funds combined)  $4,389,194   $5,369,834 
 
6/30/2021 General Obligation Debt:   $2,800,000 
6/30/2021 Other Long Term Debt:   $   649,893 
6/30/2021 Short Term Debt:    $            00.00 
 
The balance of the report summarizes revenues and expenditures into categories. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  It is recommended Council approves the proposed resolution approving the 
FY 2021-2022 Annual Financial Report 
  

Agenda Item: # 1 
Agenda Date: 10/03//2022 

 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution approving FY 2021-2022 Annual Financial Report 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
  
 

Proposed Resolution 

Annual Financial Report 

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 09/23/2022 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 



 
THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #    

 
Approving FY 2021-2022 Annual Financial Report 

 
IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Monticello is obligated to prepare and submit a report, 
annually, setting out the balances, revenues, expenses associated with our 
receipts and expenses and debt indebtedness and to further provide some detail 
in regard thereto, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Clerk has prepared the report for FY 2021-2022, and 
published notice in the Monticello Express, as required prior to this meeting. 
Same having been reviewed by the City Administrator and presented to the City 
Council for review and approval, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council finds, based upon the information provided by the City 
Clerk, that the report should be approved for submission to the State. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Monticello, through its’ 
City Council, in session this 3rd day of October 2022, does hereby approve the FY 
2021-2022 Annual Financial Report and directs the City Clerk to submit same to 
the State as required by the Code of Iowa. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for the 
City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 3rd 
day of October, 2022. 
 

          
   David Goedken, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 



STATE OF IOWA
 

2022
 

FINANCIAL REPORT
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
 

JUNE 30, 2022
 

CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA
 

DUE: December 1, 2022

16205300400000
CITY OF MONTICELLO
200 E 1st St
MONTICELLO IA 52310
POPULATION: 4040

NOTE - The information supplied in this report will be shared by the Iowa State Auditor's Office, the U.S. Census Bureau, various public interest groups, and State and federal
agencies.

ALL FUNDS
Governmental  (a) Proprietary  (b) Total Actual  (c) Budget  (d)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Taxes Levied on Property 1,852,491 1,852,491 1,849,834
Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 0 0 0

Net Current Property Taxes 1,852,491 1,852,491 1,849,834
Delinquent Property Taxes 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 714,143 714,143 705,000
Other City Taxes 631,944 0 631,944 508,645
Licenses and Permits 289,370 0 289,370 252,107
Use of Money and Property 282,557 10,247 292,804 279,580
Intergovernmental 1,236,100 0 1,236,100 1,230,218
Charges for Fees and Service 460,258 2,208,912 2,669,170 2,570,327
Special Assessments 35,306 0 35,306 34,573
Miscellaneous 321,392 41,690 363,082 508,294
Other Financing Sources 1,325,064 552,850 1,877,914 750,500
Transfers In 1,324,524 50,000 1,374,524 1,390,525

Total Revenues and Other Sources 7,148,625 2,813,699 9,962,324 10,079,603
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Public Safety 1,582,850 1,582,850 1,627,737
Public Works 932,821 932,821 1,041,581
Health and Social Services 0 0 0
Culture and Recreation 746,003 746,003 1,029,653
Community and Economic Development 243,670 243,670 243,674
General Government 669,690 669,690 823,502
Debt Service 639,158 639,158 639,162
Capital Projects 847,040 847,040 1,117,950

Total Governmental Activities Expenditures 5,661,232 0 5,661,232 6,523,259
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 1,945,928 1,945,928 2,444,809

Total All Expenditures 5,661,232 1,945,928 7,607,160 8,968,068
Other Financing Uses 1,251,535 122,989 1,374,524
Transfers Out 1,251,535 122,989 1,374,524 1,390,525

Total All Expenditures/and Other Financing Uses 6,912,767 2,068,917 8,981,684 10,358,593
Excess Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under)  Expenditures/and Other Financing Uses 235,858 744,782 980,640 -278,990

Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2021 3,731,599 657,595 4,389,194 4,389,462
Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2022 3,967,457 1,402,377 5,369,834 4,110,472
NOTE - These balances do not include the following, which were not budgeted and are not available for city operations:
Non-budgeted Internal Service Funds Pension Trust Funds

Private Purpose Trust Funds Agency Funds
268

Indebtedness at June 30, 2022 Amount Indebtedness at June 30, 2022 Amount
General Obligation Debt 2,800,000 Other Long-Term Debt 649,893
Revenue Debt 0 Short-Term Debt 0
TIF Revenue Debt 0

General Obligation Debt Limit 12,991,817
CERTIFICATION

The forgoing report is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

Signature of Preparer

Publication
9/28/2022

Printed name of Preparer
Sally Hinrichsen

Phone Number
319-465-3577

Signature of Mayor or other City official (Name and Title)

Date Signed

PLEASE PUBLISH THIS PAGE ONLY



R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 P

2
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

M
O

N
TI

C
EL

LO
R

EV
EN

U
E 

A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

ES
 F

O
R

 Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
2

N
O

N
-G

A
A

P/
C

A
SH

 B
A

SI
S

It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

G
en

er
al

 
(a

)
Sp

ec
ia

l
R

ev
en

ue
  (

b)
T

IF
 S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
  (

c)
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

 (d
)

C
ap

ita
l

Pr
oj

ec
ts

  (
e)

Pe
rm

an
en

t 
(f

)
To

ta
l G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l  

(S
um

 o
f (

a)
th

ro
ug

h 
(f

))
  (

g)
Pr

op
ri

et
ar

y 
(h

)
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
  (

Su
m

 o
f (

g)
an

d 
(h

))
  (

i)
Se

ct
io

n 
A

 - 
Ta

xe
s

1
1

Ta
xe

s l
ev

ie
d 

on
 p

ro
pe

rt
y

2
1,

04
8,

39
6

43
3,

67
3

37
0,

42
2

1,
85

2,
49

1
1,

85
2,

49
1

2
Le

ss
: U

nc
ol

le
ct

ed
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
es

 - 
Le

vy
 Y

ea
r

3
0

0
3

N
et

 C
ur

re
nt

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
4

1,
04

8,
39

6
43

3,
67

3
37

0,
42

2
0

0
1,

85
2,

49
1

1,
85

2,
49

1
4

D
el

in
qu

en
t P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
es

5
0

0
5

To
ta

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Ta

x
6

1,
04

8,
39

6
43

3,
67

3
37

0,
42

2
0

0
1,

85
2,

49
1

1,
85

2,
49

1
6

T
IF

 R
ev

en
ue

s
7

71
4,

14
3

71
4,

14
3

71
4,

14
3

7
O

th
er

 C
ity

 T
ax

es
U

til
ity

 T
ax

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t E
xc

is
e 

Ta
xe

s
8

22
,5

75
9,

39
1

6,
68

8
38

,6
54

38
,6

54
8

U
til

ity
 F

ra
nc

hi
se

 T
ax

 (C
ha

pt
er

 3
64

.2
, C

od
e 

of
Io

w
a)

9
0

0
9

Pa
rim

ut
ue

l W
ag

er
 T

ax
10

0
0

10
G

am
in

g 
W

ag
er

 T
ax

11
0

0
11

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Ta
x

12
1,

71
8

71
3

51
0

2,
94

1
2,

94
1

12
H

ot
el

 / 
M

ot
el

 T
ax

13
34

,6
81

34
,6

81
34

,6
81

13
O

th
er

 L
oc

al
 O

pt
io

n 
Ta

xe
s

14
55

5,
66

8
55

5,
66

8
55

5,
66

8
14

To
ta

l O
th

er
 C

ity
 T

ax
es

15
61

4,
64

2
10

,1
04

7,
19

8
0

0
63

1,
94

4
0

63
1,

94
4

15
Se

ct
io

n 
B

 - 
L

ic
en

se
s a

nd
 P

er
m

its
16

28
8,

97
0

40
0

28
9,

37
0

28
9,

37
0

16
Se

ct
io

n 
C

 - 
U

se
 o

f M
on

ey
 a

nd
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

17
17

In
te

re
st

18
29

,2
21

3,
63

4
3,

82
1

2,
74

3
11

,3
87

1,
44

8
52

,2
54

10
,2

47
62

,5
01

18
R

en
ts

 a
nd

 R
oy

al
tie

s
19

23
0,

30
3

23
0,

30
3

23
0,

30
3

19
O

th
er

 M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s U
se

 o
f M

on
ey

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rty

20
0

0
20

21
0

0
21

To
ta

l U
se

 o
f M

on
ey

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y
22

25
9,

52
4

3,
63

4
3,

82
1

2,
74

3
11

,3
87

1,
44

8
28

2,
55

7
10

,2
47

29
2,

80
4

22
Se

ct
io

n 
D

 - 
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

24
24

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

s a
nd

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

26
26

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

s
27

50
,0

00
29

0,
07

5
34

0,
07

5
34

0,
07

5
27

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

lo
ck

 G
ra

nt
s

28
0

0
28

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 U
rb

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

29
0

0
29

Pu
bl

ic
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
G

ra
nt

s
30

0
0

30
Pa

ym
en

t i
n 

Li
eu

 o
f T

ax
es

31
0

0
31

32
0

0
32

To
ta

l F
ed

er
al

 G
ra

nt
s a

nd
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
33

50
,0

00
0

0
29

0,
07

5
0

34
0,

07
5

0
34

0,
07

5
33



R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 P

3
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

M
O

N
TI

C
EL

LO
R

EV
EN

U
E 

A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

ES
 F

O
R

 Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
2

N
O

N
-G

A
A

P/
C

A
SH

 B
A

SI
S

It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

G
en

er
al

 
(a

)
Sp

ec
ia

l
R

ev
en

ue
  (

b)
T

IF
 S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
  (

c)
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

 (d
)

C
ap

ita
l

Pr
oj

ec
ts

  (
e)

Pe
rm

an
en

t 
(f

)
To

ta
l G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l  

(S
um

 o
f (

a)
th

ro
ug

h 
(f

))
  (

g)
Pr

op
ri

et
ar

y 
(h

)
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
  (

Su
m

 o
f (

g)
an

d 
(h

))
  (

i)
Se

ct
io

n 
D

 - 
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l -

 C
on

tin
ue

d
41

41
St

at
e 

Sh
ar

ed
 R

ev
en

ue
s

43
43

R
oa

d 
U

se
 T

ax
es

44
55

2,
38

0
55

2,
38

0
55

2,
38

0
44

O
th

er
 st

at
e 

gr
an

ts
 a

nd
 r

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
48

48
St

at
e 

gr
an

ts
49

5,
69

8
5,

69
8

5,
69

8
49

Io
w

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n

50
18

,5
89

18
,5

89
18

,5
89

50
Io

w
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
51

80
,0

00
80

,0
00

80
,0

00
51

Io
w

a 
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

ut
ho

rit
y

52
0

0
52

C
EB

A
 g

ra
nt

s
53

0
0

53
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 &

 In
du

st
ria

l R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t C
la

im
54

35
,6

43
14

,8
27

10
,5

59
61

,0
29

61
,0

29
54

55
0

0
55

56
0

0
56

57
0

0
57

58
0

0
58

59
0

0
59

To
ta

l S
ta

te
60

13
9,

93
0

56
7,

20
7

0
10

,5
59

0
0

71
7,

69
6

0
71

7,
69

6
60

L
oc

al
 G

ra
nt

s a
nd

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

C
ou

nt
y 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

63
25

8
25

8
25

8
63

Li
br

ar
y 

Se
rv

ic
e

64
21

,7
05

21
,7

05
21

,7
05

64
To

w
ns

hi
p 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

65
33

,8
17

33
,8

17
33

,8
17

65
Fi

re
/E

M
T 

Se
rv

ic
e

66
70

,4
01

70
,4

01
70

,4
01

66
Sc

ho
ol

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
O

ffi
ce

r
67

52
,1

48
52

,1
48

52
,1

48
67

68
0

0
68

69
0

0
69

To
ta

l L
oc

al
 G

ra
nt

s a
nd

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

70
14

4,
51

2
0

0
0

33
,8

17
0

17
8,

32
9

0
17

8,
32

9
70

To
ta

l I
nt

er
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l (

Su
m

 o
f l

in
es

 3
3,

 6
0,

an
d 

70
)

71
33

4,
44

2
56

7,
20

7
0

10
,5

59
32

3,
89

2
0

1,
23

6,
10

0
0

1,
23

6,
10

0
71

Se
ct

io
n 

E
 -C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 
Fe

es
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
72

72
W

at
er

73
0

48
7,

12
0

48
7,

12
0

73
Se

w
er

74
0

1,
02

5,
99

8
1,

02
5,

99
8

74
El

ec
tri

c
75

0
0

75
G

as
76

0
0

76
Pa

rk
in

g
77

0
0

77
A

irp
or

t
78

0
0

78
La

nd
fil

l/g
ar

ba
ge

79
0

63
2,

17
2

63
2,

17
2

79
H

os
pi

ta
l

80
0

0
80



R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 P

4
C

IT
Y

 O
F

R
EV

EN
U

E 
A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
ES

 F
O

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 JU
N

E 
30

,
N

O
N

-G
A

A
P/

C
A

SH
 B

A
SI

S

It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

G
en

er
al

 
(a

)
Sp

ec
ia

l
R

ev
en

ue
  (

b)
T

IF
 S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
  (

c)
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

 (d
)

C
ap

ita
l

Pr
oj

ec
ts

  (
e)

Pe
rm

an
en

t 
(f

)
To

ta
l G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l  

(S
um

 o
f (

a)
th

ro
ug

h 
(f

))
  (

g)
Pr

op
ri

et
ar

y 
(h

)
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
  (

Su
m

 o
f (

g)
an

d 
(h

))
  (

i)
Se

ct
io

n 
E

 - 
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 
Fe

es
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 -

C
on

tin
ue

d
81

81

Tr
an

si
t

82
0

0
82

C
ab

le
 T

V
83

0
0

83
In

te
rn

et
84

0
0

84
Te

le
ph

on
e

85
0

0
85

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
86

0
0

86
St

or
m

 W
at

er
87

0
63

,6
22

63
,6

22
87

O
th

er
:

88
88

N
ur

si
ng

 H
om

e
89

0
0

89
Po

lic
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Fe
es

90
32

4
32

4
32

4
90

Pr
is

on
er

 C
ar

e
91

0
0

91
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
92

0
0

92
A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
C

ha
rg

es
93

35
0,

89
4

35
0,

89
4

35
0,

89
4

93
Si

de
w

al
k 

St
re

et
 R

ep
ai

r C
ha

rg
es

94
0

0
94

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 C

ha
rg

es
95

0
0

95
R

iv
er

 P
or

t a
nd

 T
er

m
in

al
 F

ee
s

96
0

0
96

Pu
bl

ic
 S

ca
le

s
97

0
0

97
C

em
et

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

98
21

,7
25

21
,7

25
21

,7
25

98
Li

br
ar

y 
C

ha
rg

es
99

3,
38

1
3,

38
1

3,
38

1
99

Pa
rk

, R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 C
ul

tu
ra

l C
ha

rg
es

10
0

83
,9

34
83

,9
34

83
,9

34
10

0
A

ni
m

al
 C

on
tro

l C
ha

rg
es

10
1

0
0

10
1

10
2

0
0

10
2

10
3

0
0

10
3

To
ta

l C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r 

Se
rv

ic
e

10
4

46
0,

25
8

0
0

0
0

0
46

0,
25

8
2,

20
8,

91
2

2,
66

9,
17

0
10

4
Se

ct
io

n 
F 

- S
pe

ci
al

 A
ss

es
m

en
ts

10
6

35
,3

06
35

,3
06

35
,3

06
10

6
Se

ct
io

n 
G

 - 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

10
7

10
7

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

10
8

25
,8

27
25

,8
27

25
,8

27
10

8
D

ep
os

its
 a

nd
 S

al
es

/F
ue

l T
ax

 R
ef

un
ds

10
9

50
0

50
0

12
,9

30
13

,4
30

10
9

Sa
le

 o
f P

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 M

er
ch

an
di

se
11

0
0

0
11

0
Fi

ne
s

11
1

12
,5

02
12

,5
02

12
,5

02
11

1
In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
11

2
0

0
11

2
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

11
3

10
,7

08
10

,7
08

28
,7

60
39

,4
68

11
3

St
at

e 
Sa

le
s T

ax
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n
11

4
0

0
11

4
C

on
ce

ss
io

ns
11

5
21

,9
04

21
,9

04
21

,9
04

11
5

C
em

et
er

y 
Lo

t S
al

es
11

6
14

,8
38

2,
99

7
4,

46
2

22
,2

97
22

,2
97

11
6

A
irp

or
tF

ue
l S

al
es

11
7

7,
84

8
7,

84
8

7,
84

8
11

7
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
11

8
23

,9
78

1,
55

3
19

4,
27

5
21

9,
80

6
21

9,
80

6
11

8
11

9
0

0
11

9
To

ta
l M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

12
0

11
8,

10
5

1,
55

3
0

0
19

7,
27

2
4,

46
2

32
1,

39
2

41
,6

90
36

3,
08

2
12

0



R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 P

5
C

IT
Y

 O
F

R
EV

EN
U

E 
A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
ES

 F
O

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 JU
N

E 
30

,
N

O
N

-G
A

A
P/

C
A

SH
 B

A
SI

S

It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

G
en

er
al

 
(a

)
Sp

ec
ia

l
R

ev
en

ue
  (

b)
T

IF
 S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
  (

c)
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

 (d
)

C
ap

ita
l

Pr
oj

ec
ts

  (
e)

Pe
rm

an
en

t 
(f

)
To

ta
l G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l  

(S
um

 o
f (

a)
th

ro
ug

h 
(f

))
  (

g)
Pr

op
ri

et
ar

y 
(h

)
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
  (

Su
m

 o
f

(g
) a

nd
 (h

))
  (

i)
To

ta
l A

ll 
R

ev
en

ue
s (

Su
m

 o
f l

in
es

 6
, 7

, 1
5,

16
,2

2,
71

, 1
04

, 1
06

, a
nd

 1
20

)
12

1
3,

12
4,

33
7

1,
01

6,
17

1
71

7,
96

4
39

0,
92

2
56

8,
25

7
5,

91
0

5,
82

3,
56

1
2,

26
0,

84
9

8,
08

4,
41

0
12

1

Se
ct

io
n 

H
 - 

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

12
3

12
3

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 o
f c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
 sa

le
s

12
4

40
50

0
54

0
54

0
12

4
Pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f l
on

g-
te

rm
 d

eb
t (

Ex
cl

ud
in

g 
TI

F 
in

te
rn

al
bo

rr
ow

in
g)

12
5

0
50

2,
85

0
50

2,
85

0
12

5

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 o
f a

nt
ic

ip
at

or
y 

w
ar

ra
nt

s o
r o

th
er

 sh
or

t-t
er

m
de

bt
12

6
0

0
12

6

R
eg

ul
ar

 tr
an

sf
er

s i
n 

an
d 

in
te

rf
un

d 
lo

an
s

12
7

77
1,

12
2

80
,0

00
42

,6
04

21
1,

02
0

1,
10

4,
74

6
50

,0
00

1,
15

4,
74

6
12

7
In

te
rn

al
 T

IF
 lo

an
s a

nd
 tr

an
sf

er
s i

n
12

8
21

9,
77

8
21

9,
77

8
21

9,
77

8
12

8
12

9
0

0
12

9
13

0
0

0
13

0
To

ta
l O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

ng
 S

ou
rc

es
13

1
77

1,
16

2
80

,5
00

0
26

2,
38

2
21

1,
02

0
0

1,
32

5,
06

4
55

2,
85

0
1,

87
7,

91
4

13
1

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s E
xc

ep
t f

or
 B

eg
in

ni
ng

 B
al

an
ce

s
(S

um
 o

f l
in

es
 1

21
 a

nd
 1

31
)

13
2

3,
89

5,
49

9
1,

09
6,

67
1

71
7,

96
4

65
3,

30
4

77
9,

27
7

5,
91

0
7,

14
8,

62
5

2,
81

3,
69

9
9,

96
2,

32
4

13
2

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 J
ul

y 
1,

 2
02

1
13

4
1,

38
7,

41
5

1,
15

5,
04

3
72

,5
84

11
7,

43
7

70
6,

44
0

29
2,

68
0

3,
73

1,
59

9
65

7,
59

5
4,

38
9,

19
4

13
4

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s a
nd

 O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

 
(S

um
 o

f l
in

es
 1

32
 a

nd
 1

34
)

13
6

5,
28

2,
91

4
2,

25
1,

71
4

79
0,

54
8

77
0,

74
1

1,
48

5,
71

7
29

8,
59

0
10

,8
80

,2
24

3,
47

1,
29

4
14

,3
51

,5
18

13
6



E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

P6
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

M
O

N
TI

C
EL

LO
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
 A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 U
SE

S 
FO

R
 F

IS
C

A
L 

Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
2

N
O

N
-G

A
A

P/
C

A
SH

 B
A

SI
S

It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

L
in

e
G

en
er

al
 

(a
)

Sp
ec

ia
l

R
ev

en
ue

 (b
)

T
IF

 S
pe

ci
al

R
ev

en
ue

 (c
)

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
 (d

)
C

ap
ita

l
Pr

oj
ec

ts
  (

e)
Pe

rm
an

en
t

(f
)

To
ta

l  
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l  

(S
um

 o
f c

ol
s. 

 (a
)

th
ro

ug
h 

(f
))

  (
g)

Pr
op

ri
et

ar
y

(h
)

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

  (
Su

m
 o

f 
co

l. 
(g

))
  (

i)
L

in
e

Se
ct

io
n 

A
 - 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

af
et

y
1

1
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/C

rim
e 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n
2

64
3,

51
1

16
8,

20
9

81
1,

72
0

81
1,

72
0

2
Ja

il
3

0
0

3
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

4
0

0
4

Fl
oo

d 
co

nt
ro

l
5

0
0

5
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
6

10
7,

76
5

10
7,

76
5

10
7,

76
5

6
A

m
bu

la
nc

e
7

51
1,

31
9

15
0,

21
5

66
1,

53
4

66
1,

53
4

7
B

ui
ld

in
g 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
8

0
0

8
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
9

1,
83

1
1,

83
1

1,
83

1
9

A
ni

m
al

 C
on

tro
l

10
0

0
10

O
th

er
 P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y

11
0

0
11

12
0

0
12

13
0

0
13

To
ta

l P
ub

lic
 S

af
et

y
14

1,
26

4,
42

6
31

8,
42

4
0

0
0

1,
58

2,
85

0
1,

58
2,

85
0

14
Se

ct
io

n 
B

 - 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
15

15
R

oa
ds

, B
rid

ge
s, 

Si
de

w
al

ks
16

25
,2

71
73

0,
85

3
75

6,
12

4
75

6,
12

4
16

Pa
rk

in
g 

M
et

er
 a

nd
 O

ff-
St

re
et

17
0

0
17

St
re

et
 L

ig
ht

in
g

18
74

,1
83

74
,1

83
74

,1
83

18
Tr

af
fic

 C
on

tro
l S

af
et

y
19

0
0

19
Sn

ow
 R

em
ov

al
20

19
,2

91
19

,2
91

19
,2

91
20

H
ig

hw
ay

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

21
0

0
21

St
re

et
 C

le
an

in
g

22
0

0
22

A
irp

or
t (

if 
no

t a
n 

en
te

rp
ris

e)
23

82
,7

23
82

,7
23

82
,7

23
23

G
ar

ba
ge

 (i
f n

ot
 a

n 
en

te
rp

ris
e)

24
0

0
24

O
th

er
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
25

0
0

25
St

re
et

 B
on

d
26

50
0

50
0

50
0

26
27

0
0

27
To

ta
l P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
28

18
2,

67
7

75
0,

14
4

0
0

0
93

2,
82

1
93

2,
82

1
28

Se
ct

io
n 

C
 - 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
29

29
W

el
fa

re
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e
30

0
0

30
C

ity
 H

os
pi

ta
l

31
0

0
31

Pa
ym

en
ts

 to
 P

riv
at

e 
H

os
pi

ta
ls

32
0

0
32

H
ea

lth
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

33
0

0
33

W
at

er
, A

ir,
 a

nd
 M

os
qu

ito
 C

on
tro

l
34

0
0

34
C

om
m

un
ity

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

35
0

0
35

O
th

er
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

36
0

0
36

37
0

0
37

38
0

0
38

To
ta

l H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
39

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
39

Se
ct

io
n 

D
 - 

C
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

40
40

Li
br

ar
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

41
17

1,
54

2
44

,2
65

4,
15

6
21

9,
96

3
21

9,
96

3
41

M
us

eu
m

, B
an

d,
 T

he
at

er
42

0
0

42
Pa

rk
s

43
23

7,
33

9
34

,0
19

27
1,

35
8

27
1,

35
8

43
R

ec
re

at
io

n
44

12
8,

59
4

5,
19

5
13

3,
78

9
13

3,
78

9
44

C
em

et
er

y
45

54
,8

80
13

,5
01

68
,3

81
68

,3
81

45
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
en

te
r, 

Zo
o,

 M
ar

in
a,

 a
nd

 A
ud

ito
riu

m
46

0
0

46
O

th
er

 C
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

47
21

,5
33

7,
37

7
28

,9
10

28
,9

10
47

M
on

tic
el

lo
 T

re
es

 F
or

ev
er

48
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

48
So

ld
ie

rs
 M

em
or

ia
l

49
18

,6
02

18
,6

02
18

,6
02

49
To

ta
l C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
50

63
7,

49
0

10
4,

35
7

0
0

4,
15

6
74

6,
00

3
74

6,
00

3
50



E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

P7
C

IT
Y

 O
F

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 U

SE
S 

FO
R

 F
IS

C
A

L 
Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 JU
N

E 
30

, -
- C

on
tin

ue
d

N
O

N
-G

A
A

P/
C

A
SH

 B
A

SI
S

It
em

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n

L
in

e
G

en
er

al
 

(a
)

Sp
ec

ia
l 

R
ev

en
ue

  (
b)

T
IF

 S
pe

ci
al

 
R

ev
en

ue
  (

c)
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

 (d
)

C
ap

ita
l

Pr
oj

ec
ts

  (
e)

Pe
rm

an
en

t 
(f

)
To

ta
l  

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l  
(S

um
 o

f c
ol

s. 
(a

) t
hr

ou
gh

 (f
))

  (
g)

Pr
op

ri
et

ar
y

(h
)

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

  (
Su

m
of

  c
ol

. (
g)

)  
(i)

L
in

e

Se
ct

io
n 

E
 - 

C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
51

51

C
om

m
un

ity
 b

ea
ut

ifi
ca

tio
n

52
0

0
52

Ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
53

0
0

53
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 u

rb
an

 re
ne

w
al

54
0

0
54

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 z
on

in
g

55
0

0
55

O
th

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

56
0

0
56

TI
F 

R
eb

at
es

57
24

3,
67

0
24

3,
67

0
24

3,
67

0
57

58
0

0
58

To
ta

l C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
59

0
0

24
3,

67
0

0
0

0
24

3,
67

0
24

3,
67

0
59

Se
ct

io
n 

F 
- G

en
er

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t
60

60
M

ay
or

, C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

61
20

,6
73

1,
79

9
22

,4
72

22
,4

72
61

C
le

rk
, T

re
as

ur
er

, F
in

an
ci

al
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

62
19

5,
17

9
57

,5
51

25
2,

73
0

25
2,

73
0

62
El

ec
tio

ns
63

0
0

63
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s a

nd
 C

ity
 A

tto
rn

ey
64

56
,0

66
56

,0
66

56
,0

66
64

C
ity

 H
al

l a
nd

 G
en

er
al

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
65

32
2,

71
0

32
2,

71
0

32
2,

71
0

65
To

rt 
Li

ab
ili

ty
66

0
0

66
O

th
er

 G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t

67
0

0
67

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

 T
ax

 F
un

d
68

15
,7

12
15

,7
12

15
,7

12
68

69
0

0
69

To
ta

l G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t

70
61

0,
34

0
59

,3
50

0
0

0
66

9,
69

0
66

9,
69

0
70

Se
ct

io
n 

G
 - 

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

71
0

0
71

D
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

72
41

9,
38

0
41

9,
38

0
41

9,
38

0
72

TI
F 

- D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

73
21

9,
77

8
21

9,
77

8
21

9,
77

8
73

To
ta

l D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

74
0

0
0

63
9,

15
8

0
0

63
9,

15
8

63
9,

15
8

74
Se

ct
io

n 
H

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s -
 S

pe
ci

fy
75

75
Sy

ca
m

or
e 

&
 7

th
 S

tre
et

 p
ro

je
ct

s
76

37
6,

13
7

37
6,

13
7

37
6,

13
7

76
A

ll 
ot

he
r p

ro
je

ct
s

77
35

7,
63

7
35

7,
63

7
35

7,
63

7
77

Su
bt

ot
al

 R
eg

ul
ar

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

78
0

0
0

73
3,

77
4

0
73

3,
77

4
73

3,
77

4
78

T
IF

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s -

 S
pe

ci
fy

79
79

N
 S

yc
am

or
e 

St
re

et
80

1,
90

1
1,

90
1

1,
90

1
80

E 
7t

h 
St

re
et

81
11

1,
36

5
11

1,
36

5
11

1,
36

5
81

Su
bt

ot
al

 T
IF

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

82
0

0
0

11
3,

26
6

0
11

3,
26

6
11

3,
26

6
82

To
ta

l C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

83
0

0
0

84
7,

04
0

0
84

7,
04

0
84

7,
04

0
83

 
To

ta
l G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

iti
es

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
84

2,
69

4,
93

3
1,

23
2,

27
5

24
3,

67
0

63
9,

15
8

84
7,

04
0

4,
15

6
5,

66
1,

23
2

5,
66

1,
23

2
84

(S
um

 o
f l

in
es

 1
4,

 2
8,

 3
9,

 5
0,

 5
9,

 7
0,

 7
4,

 8
3)

85
85

TI
F 

R
eb

at
es

 a
re

 e
xp

en
de

d 
ou

t o
f t

he
 T

IF
 S

pe
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
's 

ac
tiv

ity
 "O

th
er

"



E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

P8
C

IT
Y

 O
F

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 U

SE
S 

FO
R

 F
IS

C
A

L 
Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 JU
N

E 
30

, -
- C

on
tin

ue
d

N
O

N
-G

A
A

P/
C

A
SH

 B
A

SI
S

It
em

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n

L
in

e
G

en
er

al
(a

)
Sp

ec
ia

l
R

ev
en

ue
 (b

)
T

IF
 S

pe
ci

al
R

ev
en

ue
 (c

)
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

(d
)

C
ap

ita
l

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 (e
)

Pe
rm

an
en

t
(f

)
To

ta
l G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l (

Su
m

 o
f c

ol
s.

(a
) t

hr
ou

gh
 (f

))
 (g

)
Pr

op
ri

et
ar

y
(h

)
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
  (

Su
m

of
  c

ol
. (

g)
)  

(i)
L

in
e

Se
ct

io
n 

I -
 B

us
in

es
s T

yp
e 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
87

87
W

at
er

 - 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

88
33

7,
29

6
33

7,
29

6
88

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
89

0
89

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

90
0

90
Se

w
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

ag
e 

D
is

po
sa

l -
 C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

91
56

5,
48

1
56

5,
48

1
91

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
92

44
6,

35
0

44
6,

35
0

92
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
93

0
93

El
ec

tri
c 

- C
ur

re
nt

 O
pe

ra
tio

n
94

0
94

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
95

0
95

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

96
0

96
G

as
 U

til
ity

 - 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

97
0

97
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

98
0

98
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
99

0
99

Pa
rk

in
g 

- C
ur

re
nt

 O
pe

ra
tio

n
10

0
0

10
0

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
10

1
0

10
1

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

10
2

0
10

2
A

irp
or

t -
 C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

10
3

0
10

3
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

10
4

0
10

4
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
10

5
0

10
5

La
nd

fil
l/G

ar
ba

ge
 - 

C
ur

re
nt

 o
pe

ra
tio

n
10

6
55

7,
28

1
55

7,
28

1
10

6
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

10
7

0
10

7
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
10

8
0

10
8

H
os

pi
ta

l -
 C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

10
9

0
10

9
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

11
0

0
11

0
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
11

1
0

11
1

Tr
an

si
t -

 C
ur

re
nt

 O
pe

ra
tio

n
11

2
0

11
2

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
11

3
0

11
3

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

11
4

0
11

4
C

ab
le

 T
V,

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
, I

nt
er

ne
t -

 C
ur

re
nt

 O
pe

ra
tio

n
11

5
0

11
5

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
11

6
0

11
6

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
- C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

11
7

0
11

7
C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

11
8

0
11

8
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
11

9
0

11
9

St
or

m
 W

at
er

 - 
C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

12
0

32
,8

14
32

,8
14

12
0

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
12

1
0

12
1

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

12
2

0
12

2
O

th
er

 B
us

in
es

s T
yp

e 
- C

ur
re

nt
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

12
3

6,
70

6
6,

70
6

12
3

C
ap

ita
l O

ut
la

y
12

4
0

12
4

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

12
5

0
12

5
In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

un
ds

 - 
Sp

ec
ify

12
6

12
6

12
7

0
12

7
12

8
0

12
8

To
ta

l B
us

in
es

s T
yp

e 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

12
9

1,
94

5,
92

8
1,

94
5,

92
8

12
9



E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

P9
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

M
O

N
TI

C
EL

LO
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
 A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 U
SE

S 
FO

R
 F

IS
C

A
L 

Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
2 

--
 C

on
tin

ue
d

N
O

N
-G

A
A

P/
C

A
SH

 B
A

SI
S

It
em

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n

L
in

e
G

en
er

al
 

(a
)

Sp
ec

ia
l 

R
ev

en
ue

  (
b)

T
IF

 S
pe

ci
al

 
R

ev
en

ue
  (

c)
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

(d
)

C
ap

ita
l

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 (e
)

Pe
rm

an
en

t 
(f

)
To

ta
l  

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l  
(S

um
 o

f c
ol

s. 
(a

) t
hr

ou
gh

 (f
))

  (
g)

Pr
op

ri
et

ar
y 

(h
)

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

  (
Su

m
of

  c
ol

. (
g)

)  
(i)

L
in

e

Su
bt

ot
al

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s (
Su

m
 o

f l
in

es
 8

4 
an

d
12

9)
13

0
2,

69
4,

93
3

1,
23

2,
27

5
24

3,
67

0
63

9,
15

8
84

7,
04

0
4,

15
6

5,
66

1,
23

2
1,

94
5,

92
8

7,
60

7,
16

0
13

0

Se
ct

io
n 

J 
- O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

ng
 U

se
s I

nc
lu

di
ng

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
O

ut
13

1
13

1

R
eg

ul
ar

 tr
an

sf
er

s o
ut

13
2

95
1,

75
7

80
,0

00
1,

03
1,

75
7

12
2,

98
9

1,
15

4,
74

6
13

2
In

te
rn

al
 T

IF
 lo

an
s/

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

nd
 tr

an
sf

er
s o

ut
13

3
21

9,
77

8
21

9,
77

8
21

9,
77

8
13

3
13

4
0

0
13

4
To

ta
l O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

ng
 U

se
s

13
5

95
1,

75
7

80
,0

00
21

9,
77

8
0

0
0

1,
25

1,
53

5
12

2,
98

9
1,

37
4,

52
4

13
5

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s a
nd

 O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 U
se

s 
(S

um
 o

f l
in

es
 1

30
 a

nd
 1

35
)

13
6

3,
64

6,
69

0
1,

31
2,

27
5

46
3,

44
8

63
9,

15
8

84
7,

04
0

4,
15

6
6,

91
2,

76
7

2,
06

8,
91

7
8,

98
1,

68
4

13
6

 
13

7
13

7
E

nd
in

g 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 J

un
e 

30
, :

13
8

13
8

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l:
13

9
13

9
N

on
sp

en
da

bl
e

14
0

29
4,

43
4

29
4,

43
4

29
4,

43
4

14
0

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

14
1

76
,1

11
93

9,
43

9
32

7,
10

0
13

1,
58

3
18

5,
37

5
1,

65
9,

60
8

1,
65

9,
60

8
14

1
C

om
m

itt
ed

14
2

0
0

14
2

A
ss

ig
ne

d
14

3
0

0
14

3
U

na
ss

ig
ne

d
14

4
1,

56
0,

11
3

45
3,

30
2

2,
01

3,
41

5
2,

01
3,

41
5

14
4

To
ta

l G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
14

5
1,

63
6,

22
4

93
9,

43
9

32
7,

10
0

13
1,

58
3

63
8,

67
7

29
4,

43
4

3,
96

7,
45

7
3,

96
7,

45
7

14
5

Pr
op

ri
et

ar
y

14
6

1,
40

2,
37

7
1,

40
2,

37
7

14
6

To
ta

l E
nd

in
g 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 J
un

e 
30

,
14

7
1,

63
6,

22
4

93
9,

43
9

32
7,

10
0

13
1,

58
3

63
8,

67
7

29
4,

43
4

3,
96

7,
45

7
1,

40
2,

37
7

5,
36

9,
83

4
14

7
To

ta
l R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 (S
um

 o
f l

in
es

 1
36

 a
nd

 1
47

)
14

8
5,

28
2,

91
4

2,
25

1,
71

4
79

0,
54

8
77

0,
74

1
1,

48
5,

71
7

29
8,

59
0

10
,8

80
,2

24
3,

47
1,

29
4

14
,3

51
,5

18
14

8



O
T

H
E

R
 P

10
Pa

rt 
II

I 
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s P

le
as

e 
re

po
rt 

be
lo

w
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
St

at
e 

or
 to

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 o

n 
a 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t o
r c

os
t s

ha
rin

g 
ba

si
s. 

In
cl

ud
e 

th
es

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s i
n 

pa
rt 

II
. E

nt
er

 a
m

ou
nt

.

Pu
rp

os
e

A
m

ou
nt

 p
ai

d 
to

 o
th

er
  l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

C
or

re
ct

io
n

2,
00

0
H

ea
lth

H
ig

hw
ay

s
Tr

an
si

t S
ub

si
di

es
Li

br
ar

ie
s

46
Po

lic
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n
Se

w
er

ag
e

Sa
ni

ta
tio

n
A

ll 
ot

he
r

Pu
rp

os
e

A
m

ou
nt

 p
ai

d 
to

 S
ta

te

H
ig

hw
ay

s
A

ll 
ot

he
r

46
5,

25
0

Pa
rt 

IV
W

ag
es

 &
 S

al
ar

ie
s R

ep
or

t h
er

e 
th

e 
to

ta
l s

al
ar

ie
s a

nd
 w

ag
es

 p
ai

d 
to

 a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s o
f y

ou
r g

ov
er

nm
en

t b
ef

or
e 

de
du

ct
io

ns
 o

f s
oc

ia
l s

ec
ur

ity
, r

et
ire

m
en

t, 
et

c.
 In

cl
ud

e 
al

so
 sa

la
rie

s a
nd

 w
ag

es
 p

ai
d 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
f a

ny
 u

til
ity

 o
w

ne
d 

an
d

op
er

at
ed

 b
y 

yo
ur

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

as
 w

el
l a

s s
al

ar
ie

s a
nd

 w
ag

es
 o

f m
un

ic
ip

al
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s c
ha

rg
ed

 to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.
Y

O
U

 A
R

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 T
O

 E
N

T
E

R
 S

A
L

A
R

Y
 D

O
L

L
A

R
S 

IN
 T

H
E

 A
m

ou
nt

 a
re

as
 F

O
R

 S
A

L
A

R
IE

S 
A

N
D

 W
A

G
E

S 
PA

ID
A

m
ou

nt
To

ta
l S

al
ar

ie
s a

nd
 W

ag
es

 P
ai

d
1,

91
6,

13
6

Pa
rt 

V
 D

eb
t O

ut
st

an
di

ng
, I

ss
ue

d,
 a

nd
 R

et
ire

d
Tr

an
si

t s
ub

si
di

es
A

. L
on

g-
Te

rm
 D

eb
t

D
eb

t D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

D
eb

t O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 J
U

N
E

 3
0,

 2
02

2

Pu
rp

os
e

L
in

e
D

eb
t  

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

  J
U

LY
 1

,  
20

21
Is

su
ed

R
et

ir
ed

G
en

er
al

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n

T
IF

 R
ev

en
ue

R
ev

en
ue

O
th

er
In

te
re

st
 P

ai
d 

T
hi

s Y
ea

r
W

at
er

 U
til

ity
1.

Se
w

er
 U

til
ity

2.
59

,8
25

50
2,

85
0

56
2,

67
5

El
ec

tri
c 

U
til

ity
3.

G
as

 U
til

ity
4.

Tr
an

si
t-B

us
5.

In
du

st
ria

l R
ev

en
ue

6.
M

or
tg

ag
e 

R
ev

en
ue

7.
TI

F 
R

ev
en

ue
8.

O
th

er
 P

ur
po

se
s /

 M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
9.

33
,6

69
29

,0
00

11
,4

52
51

,2
18

1,
13

5
G

O
10

.
3,

35
0,

00
0

55
0,

00
0

2,
80

0,
00

0
Pa

rk
in

g
11

.
A

irp
or

t
12

.
58

,0
00

22
,0

00
36

,0
00

2,
80

0
St

or
m

w
at

er
13

.
Se

ct
io

n 
10

8
14

.
To

ta
l L

on
g-

Te
rm

3,
50

1,
49

4
53

1,
85

0
58

3,
45

2
2,

80
0,

00
0

0
0

64
9,

89
3

3,
93

5
B

. S
ho

rt
-T

er
m

 D
eb

t 
A

m
ou

nt
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

s o
f J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
1

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 a
s o

f J
U

N
E

 3
0,

 2
02

2

Pa
rt 

V
I 

D
EB

T 
LI

M
IT

AT
IO

N
 F

O
R

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
O

B
LI

G
AT

IO
N

S
A

ct
ua

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
--

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

02
0

A
m

ou
nt

25
9,

83
6,

35
7

x.
0.

5 
= 

$
12

,9
91

,8
17

.8
5

Pa
rt 

V
II

 C
A

SH
 A

N
D

 IN
V

ES
TM

EN
T 

A
SS

ET
S 

A
S 

O
F 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

2

Ty
pe

 o
f a

ss
et

C
as

h 
an

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 - 

In
cl

ud
e 

ca
sh

 o
n 

ha
nd

, C
D

's,
 ti

m
e,

 c
he

ck
in

g 
an

d 
sa

vi
ng

s d
ep

os
its

, F
ed

er
al

 se
cu

rit
ie

s,
Fe

de
ra

l a
ge

nc
y 

se
cu

rit
ie

s, 
St

at
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t s

ec
ur

iti
es

, a
nd

 a
ll 

ot
he

r s
ec

ur
iti

es
. E

xc
lu

de
 v

al
ue

 o
f r

ea
l

pr
op

er
ty

.

A
m

ou
nt

B
on

d 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
fu

nd
s (

a)
B

on
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

fu
nd

s
(b

)
Pe

ns
io

n/
re

tir
em

en
t f

un
ds

(c
)

A
ll 

ot
he

r 
Fu

nd
s

(d
)

To
ta

l (
e)

13
1,

58
3

5,
23

8,
51

9
5,

37
0,

10
2

If
 y

ou
 b

ud
ge

t o
n 

a 
N

O
N

-G
A

A
P 

C
A

SH
 B

A
SI

S,
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 th

e 
To

ta
l a

bo
ve

 S
H

O
U

LD
 E

Q
U

A
L 

th
e 

ab
ov

e
su

m
m

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
s o

n 
th

e 
sh

ee
t A

ll 
Fu

nd
s P

1:
 E

nd
in

g 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
, c

ol
um

n 
C

 P
LU

S 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

s i
n 

th
e 

sh
ad

ed
 N

ot
e

ar
ea

.



N
ot

es
 &

 R
em

ar
ks

R
EM

A
R

K
S

-



Communication Page 

 

 

 

Synopsis:  D&D Services (Molli Hunter) has requested an update to the contract for cleaning services 

for the Berndes Center, Library, Community Center and City Hall. The City hired D&D in 2020, and 

Molli provides all equipment and supplies, and cleans in off-hours. The requested rate increase would 

move from $25 to $35 per hour, and reflects the inflation of supplies and labor over the past two years. 

As part of the requested update, Staff also requested some changes to the cleaning schedule and 

clarifications of some minor issues. Overall, the service has been good quality and Molli has been 

responsive to providing special cleanings, as well as reaching out when issues are noticed with 

maintenance problems in the building. Most recently she contacted Nick and I on a Sunday when she 

noticed the water heater was leaking. 

Analysis:   In the past the City has tried multiple options for cleaning services, whether through part-

time staff or other services. None have been satisfactory.  

Other services that serve Monticello have higher rates and it’s questionable if they can deliver the 

quality and responsiveness Molli has provided over the past 2 years. The need for cleaning “off hours” 

will also raise the costs of other services beyond their base rates, which are already higher than the 

proposal at hand. 

I referred the matter of “bidding” services to the City Attorney, who noted: 

“My memory is that the City has never had a formal “procurement policy”…Clearly public 

bidding and competitive quotations do not apply to this situation. Therefore, there is no 

mandate under the law that the City seek RFP’s / RFQ’s / Bids for this work. In the past we 

have sought bids upon direction of the City Council. (Mowing is another example. My memory 

is that while we have sought bids on occasion that was not always required, at time the Council 

Agenda Item: #  

Agenda Date: 09/19/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Consideration of Updates to D&D Cleaning Service Contract 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Resolution/Contract 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 09/09/2022 

Preparer: Russell Farnum 

2



was happy with the work and happy with the proposal to the extent they did not require or 

direct that bids be sought. Similarly, when it came to hiring concrete workers, plumbers, and 

the like, we did not always seek bids, typically trying to spread the work around and also on 

occasion working with a contractor who we knew would provide quality and timely work. That 

said, if we put “packages” of work together we would typically seek bids. There was no magic 

number as I recall, no policy per se, but if we were looking at a project that was nearing $10k 

or so we would likely get bids. 

 

You likely have the authority under the City Admin. Code to make this call, however, it makes 

sense in my opinion to share this with the Council and let them provide direction; relieves you 

from taking heat should someone reach out to Council to complain about not having an 

opportunity.” 

 

The City does not have to seek bids for this service. The proposed contract is open-ended and can be 

terminated with relatively short 2-week notice.  

 

Recommendation:   

 

Council approval of the updated contract is recommended. 



 
The City of Monticello, Iowa 

 
IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #       

 
Approving updates to cleaning service contract with D&D Services LLC  

  
WHEREAS, the City of Monticello previously entered into an agreement with D&D 
Services LLC, and 
 
WHEREAS, D & D Services LLC desires to update the contract for cleaning services 
for the Berndes Center, Library, Community Center and City Hall, and increase the rate 
to $35 per hour, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds it to be in the City’s best interest to agree to the 
proposed cleaning service contract with D&D Services LLC. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa does 
hereby approve the cleaning service contract between the City of Monticello and D&D 
Services LLC. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 3rd day of October, 2022. 

 
__________________________________________ 

     David Goedken, Mayor 
Attest:      
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



6/28/2022 

To the City of Monticello, 

D&D Services LLC has serviced the city under the cleaning contract for city properties. At this time 

we are submitting a reevaluation, our prices will have to increase due to inflation since the last 

agreement. The current set price, that was set years ago, was at a rate of $25 an hour. Our new 

rate will be set at $35 an hour. D&D Services is on agreement that all buildings will be serviced 

during non-operational hours, as well as all cleaning materials and equipment needed will be 

supplied by D&D. The correct cleaner will be used for each type of surface (i.e. glass cleaner on 

glass, stainless cleaner on stainless steel, bathroom cleaner on toilets and sinks, etc.). All surfaces 

such as floors, glass and mirrors will be thoroughly cleaned and streak-free. Listed below is the 

agreement of tasks that are contracted out on a monthly basis. This agreement will be valid until 

either party gives a two week notification to the other. 

Thank you 

M.Hunter 

 

*For the Berndes Center: 

Specific Requirement of cleaning on Monday and Friday mornings. 

Clean all glass doors (inside only and excluding gym area) 

Sanitize all door handles and light switches 

Vacuum carpeted areas 

Clean mirrors, sinks, stalls, and toilets in restrooms 

Empty all trash bins located in lobby, restrooms, and small room 

Mop restrooms and lobby 

Shampoo small room carpet when needed 

Restock and report any needed supplies (i.e. toilet paper, hand soap, garbage bags) 

Report of any notable damage to property that will require maintenance 

*For the Library Building 

Requires two cleanings a week 

Remove trash and recycling  

Clean all glass surfaces as needed (inside only) 



Clean elevator surfaces as needed 

Remove Spider webs in lobby as needed 

Dust shelving stacks as needed 

Vacuum carpeted areas 

Mop hard floors 

Dust mop, sweep and/or wet mop stairs as needed 

Clean mirrors, sinks, and toilets in restrooms 

Sanitize door handles, lightswitches, and drinking fountains 

Restock and report any needed supplies (e.il toilet paper, hand soap, garbage bags, and paper 

towels) 

Report any notable damage to property that will require maintenance 

 

*For the buildings associated with the City Hall (Renaissance Center, Council Chambers, City Hall, 

and Community Building) 

Requires two cleanings a week 

Clean glass doors as needed (inside only) 

Sanitize all door handles, light switches, and drinking fountains 

Remove spider webs from entranceways as needed 

Clean mirrors, sinks, and toilets in restrooms 

Remove trash and recycling 

Restock and report any needed supplies (i.e. toilet paper, hand soap, garbage bags, and paper 

towels) 

Dust shelving and windowsills 

Vacuum carpeted areas 

Dust mop, sweep and/or wet mop all stairs as needed 

Dust mop, sweep and/or wet mop all hard floors as needed 

Report any notable damage to property that will require maintenance 



Communication Page 

 
 

 

 

Synopsis:  This plat proposes to subdivide off the “homestead” area for sale separate from the rest of 

the farm land. The farm owner is selling the house and outbuildings to the current tenant of the home 

on a site that is nearly 2 miles (as the crow flies) from the City Limits. 

Background: This plat would separate the home and many of the outbuildings on this property from 

the agricultural cropland. The property is unincorporated and located south of the City and on the east 

side of Highway 151, but within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction for subdivision reviews. A map 

of the location of the property is below: 

Agenda Item: #  

Agenda Date: 10/03/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Approval of Plat – Richard Null/Pork Bryant Ltd, Parcel 2022-61, in 

the 2-Mile Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Plat 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 09/28/2022 

Preparer: Russell Farnum 

3



The proposed plat does create another lot in the rural area around Monticello. However, that will not 

have an impact upon the future development of the City. It is nearly 1/2 mile south of the airport and in 

an area that is probably never going to see active development. In addition, this lot is already improved 

with a home and farmstead-style outbuildings. There would be no new net impact on housing, traffic, 

or other issues that would normally be used to review a new subdivision.  

 

The review is required prior to the County allowing the recording of the plat. The plat looks complete 

and correct, the changes are not impactful to the City or any of the surrounding area. 

 

Recommendation:  The Planning and Zoning Commission will review this item at their meeting of 

September 28. The Commission’s recommendation will be presented at the Council meeting.  

 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #   
     

Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-61 
 
 

WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-61 for property along 130th Avenue has 
been presented to the City Council for approval, same being located within the two-mile 
jurisdiction of the City limits of the City of Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plat was created to subdivide the “homestead” area for sale separate 
from the rest of the farm land, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey and 
recommends that it be approved, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council finds that the Plat of Survey for property along 130th 
Avenue should be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa does 
hereby approve the Plat of Survey for property along 130th Avenue. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done 
this 3rd day of October, 2022. 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 





Communication Page 

 
 

 

 

Synopsis:  Nagel Riverside Farms owns four quarter-sections of land in 4 separate parcels of 40 acres 

each.  One of the 40-acre parcels is bisected by the Maquoketa River, with 27 acres on one side of the 

river and 13 acres on the other side. They desire to subdivide this parcel down the centerline of the 

river, adding the 13 acres to the 40-acre quarter-section on that side of the River. 

Background: This plat has a minor change to a lot line between contiguous parcels with common 

ownership. The property is unincorporated and located nearly three-quarters of a mile east of the City 

(and on the east side of Highway 151), but within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction for subdivision 

reviews. A map of the location of the property is below: 

The proposed plat moves the lot line to follow the center line of the river, which just makes sense. 

There are no other changes proposed. The proposed lot line change does not have any impact upon the 

future growth and development of the City. The plat looks complete and correct, the changes are not 

Agenda Item: #  

Agenda Date: 09/27/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Subdivision Plat for Parcel 2022-66, Nagel Riverside Farms LLC/Harry 

Nagel, in the 2-Mile Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Plat 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 09/22/2022 

Preparer: Russell Farnum 

4



impactful to the City or any of the surrounding area. The review is required prior to the County 

allowing the recording of the plat. 

 

Recommendation:  The Planning and Zoning Commission will review this item at their meeting of 

September 28. The Commission’s recommendation will be presented at the Council meeting.  

  



 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #   
     

Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-66, for property at  
20437 Meadowlark Road in Jones County, Iowa 

  
 

WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey to Parcel 2022-66 for property at 20437 Meadowlark Rd 
has been presented to the City Council for approval, same being located within the two-mile 
jurisdiction of the City limits of the City of Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plat was created to subdivide the parcel down the centerline of the river 
to create two parcels, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey and 
recommends that it be approved, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council finds that the Plat of Survey for property at 20437 
Meadowlark Rd should be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa does 
hereby approve the Plat of Survey for property at 20437 Meadowlark Rd. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done 
this 3rd day of October, 2022. 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 





 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: Approve issuing payment to Boland Recreation for playground surfacing. 
 
Background Information:  The Austin Strong Foundation is requesting the assistance from the City 
by way of issuing payment to Boland Recreation on behalf of the Austin Strong Foundation for the 
surfacing of the new playground.  By the City issuing the payment we can eliminate the additional 
taxes that would be incurred from payment coming from a non-government entity.  The work has been 
completed and an invoice in the amount of $136,750.00 has been received from Boland Recreation.  
The Council had previously pledged $50,000 towards the playground project, and the Board of 
Supervisors pledged $10,000.  The payment for the $10,000 from Jones County has been received by 
the City of Monticello.  The Austin Strong Foundation will issue payment to the City of Monticello in 
the amount of $76,750 (minus the $50,000 for Monticello’s portion and $10,000 for Jones County’s 
portion for reimbursement. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  I recommend that the Council consider approval of the Resolution to 
approve issuing payment to Boland Recreation for the attached invoice amount and will receive 
reimbursement from the Austin Strong Foundation in the amount of $76,750. 
 

Agenda Item: # 5 
Agenda Date: 10/3/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution to approve payment to Boland Recreation 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
 
 
 

Boland Recreation Invoice 

 

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 9/21/2022 
Preparer: Britt Smith 
 



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #   
 

Authorizing purchase of the All-Inclusive and Interactive Playground surfacing  
 

WHEREAS, Council adopted Resolution #2020-28 on February 17, 2020, approving the 
Monticello Park and Recreation Department to pursue fundraising and grants to build an 
Inclusive Playground near the shelter by the Monticello Aquatic Center, and 
 
WHEREAS, Council adopted Resolution #2020-106 on October 19, 2020, authorizing the 
Austin Strong Foundation to fundraise, plan, and lead the All-Inclusive and Interactive 
Playground project, the playground to be constructed on City owned property near the Monticello 
Aquatic Center.  The Park and Recreation Dpt. has had discussions with the Austin Strong 
Foundation, a 501(c)(3) Non-Profit Association, in regard to their interest in taking on this 
project, from a fundraising standpoint, final planning and design standpoint, and construction 
oversight, and 
 
WHEREAS, to begin action on the project, the Austin Strong Foundation hired a contractor to 
install the surfacing for the playground.  The Foundation is requesting City to pay for the All-
Inclusive and Interactive Playground project surfacing in the amount of $136,750., and 
 
WHEREAS, Monticello Park and Recreation Department is pursuing fundraising and grants to 
help fund the All-Inclusive and Interactive Playground project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Austin Strong Foundation has pledged to reimburse the City for expenses 
related to the resurfacing project, less the City’s pledge of $50,000 and the Jones County’s pledge 
of $10,000, which was paid to the City, and any additional fundraised amounts, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council finds that the Park Board has been presented with the playground 
project and is supportive of it, pledging $50,000 and any additional fundraising proceeds by the 
Monticello Park and Recreation Department for this project, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa does 
hereby authorize City to pay for the All-Inclusive and Interactive Playground project surfacing in 
the amount of $136,750. for this project, with reimbursement by the Austin Strong Foundation 
less the city pledged and fundraised amounts. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done this 
3th day of October, 2022. 
 
__________________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 





Communication Page 

 
 

 

 

Synopsis:  There are obligations the City needs to fulfill as part of the USDA financing for the new 

Waste Water Treatment Facility. These require some changes to the preliminary design and 

engineering that has been completed, as well as changing the engineering contract to meet USDA 

contract requirements. 

Analysis:   The additional design will add costs to the engineering and design stage of the project to 

meet USDA Standards. This will add approximately $99,000 to the engineering cost of the project. In 

addition, the contract has to be amended to meet USDA requirements. The USDA also requires that the 

City will have an engineering inspector on site during all times of construction, which must be 

included as part of the contract (the current contract does not cover the construction phase). The 

engineering inspections will be billed hourly rates as outlined in the contract, with a maximum of 

$540,000.  

While a bit overwhelming at first, the design and engineering costs (each under 4% of the overall 

project) are well within reasonable fees for the scope of this project.  All of these fees will be rolled 

into the financing package and have already been included in the overall budget for the project, bond 

payments and other calculations. 

Recommendation:  Approval is required to proceed with the WWTF project and USDA financing. 

Approval is recommended. 

Agenda Item: #  

Agenda Date: 10/03/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Updated Contract – Waste Water Treatment Facility Engineering Design 
Contract 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Contract 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 09/27/2022 

Preparer: Russell Farnum 

6



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #   
 

To approve Amendment Professional Services Agreement  
between City of Monticello and Snyder & Associates related  

to Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility  
 

WHEREAS, The City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated city within Jones 
County, Iowa; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council previously entered into an agreement to hire 
Snyder and Associates to design the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility, and  
 
WHEREAS, Since entering that agreement, the City has decided to use USDA 
funding for the project, which required extra documents. This contract 
amendment is to change Synder & Associates professional services agreement for 
design and construction services to the USDA-required EICDC documents, as 
well as adding some additional scope and fees, and 
 
WHEREAS, Snyder has proposed an amendment to the previously approved 
Engineering Services Agreement and the Council finds that same should be 
approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, 
Iowa does hereby approve the Amendment to Snyder and Associates Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Facility project, providing for design and construction observation 
and supervision. 
  

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal 
of the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed 
hereto.  Done this 3rd day of October, 2022. 

 
_____________________________________ 
David Goedken, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 



Rev 04-16-19   Page 1 of 2 
V:\Projects\2020\120.1109.08\Administration\PSASUPP01_FundingAdditionalScope.docm 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES # 01 

 

To: Snyder & Associates, Inc.                    
5005 Bowling Street, SW, Suite A            
Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 

Attn: Lindsay Beaman, Business Unit Leader  
Phone: 319.362.9394  

Fax: 319.362.9448 

This is authorization for Snyder & Associates, Inc. to proceed with the following described additional services. 

Client: City of Monticello 

Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements 

S&A Project Number: 120.1109.08 Original Agreement Date:  November 16, 2020 

 

DESCRIPTION OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES: 

The additional services presented herein reflect the contractual requirements for the City to utilize USDA 
funding for the remaining engineering services and construction of this project. The engineering design 
services are being amended to modify the previously completed design elements which now must 
accommodate critical treatment infrastructure to be protected to at least 1 foot above the 500-year flood 
event. Furthermore, at this time the engineering fees for construction administration and construction 
observation must be included. Fees for construction observation are based upon the USDA requirement of 
having a full-time representative onsite, billing on an hourly basis. This amendment includes the following 
USDA-required contract and attachments: 1) EJCDC E-500 “Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for 
Professional Services” 2) RUS Certification Page 3) Certification for Contracts, Grants, and Loans. Upon 
execution of this supplemental agreement, the attached USDA-required contract language will supersede the 
contract language of the original agreement between the Client and Professional, dated November 16, 2020.   

The amendments to fees can be found within, and generally summarized as follows: 

Design Services (Included within previous Agreement November 16, 2020): $565,000 Lump Sum* 

                *$502,850 has been invoiced and paid to date 

Supplemental Design Services – New USDA Required Design Updates: $99,300 Lump Sum 

Bidding and Negotiating Phase (Included within previous Agreement November 16, 2020): $15,000 Lump 
Sum 

Construction Administration Phase – New Fee (Scope included within previous Agreement November 
16, 2020): $450,700 Lump Sum 

Post-Construction Phase – New Scope and Fee: $10,000 Lump Sum 

Resident Project Representative – New Fee (Scope included within previous Agreement November 16, 
2020): $540,000 Estimated Maximum – Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment (EJCDC Exhibit C - 
RPR-2)   

 

   Lump Sum in the amount of: $    

 

   Hourly plus expenses per original agreement or attached fee schedule, estimated budget: $       

 

   Document attached: EJCDC E-500 Agreement Form, RD Instruction 1940-Q Exhibit A-1, RUS 
Certification Page 

 

 

 



Rev 04-16-19   Page 2 of 2 
V:\Projects\2020\120.1109.08\Administration\PSASUPP01_FundingAdditionalScope.docm 

 

The undersigned, on behalf of the Client, understands and agrees that the services described in this 
Supplemental are additional services, scope of which is not contained within the original scope of services 
defined in the original agreement.  The Additional Services in this Supplemental are subject to the general 
conditions contained in the original Professional Services Agreement. 

       (Client) 

  

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. (Professional) 
(Type or Print Name above line)    

By:  
 

By:  

 (Authorized Agent)   (Authorized Agent) 

        
 Lindsay Beaman, P.E. 

 (Printed or typed signature)   (Printed or typed signature) 

Date:       
 

Date: September 13, 2022 

  
 

Route executed to:        

         

 

lbeaman
Stamp



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 1 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

 
Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:   

ARTICLE 1 –  SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

1.01 Scope 

A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth herein and in 
Exhibit A. 

ARTICLE 2 –  OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.01 General 

A. Owner shall have the responsibilities set forth herein and in Exhibit B. 

B. Owner shall pay Engineer as set forth in Article 4 and Exhibit C. 

C. Owner shall be responsible for all requirements and instructions that it furnishes to 
Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, and for the accuracy and completeness of all 
programs, reports, data, and other information furnished by Owner to Engineer pursuant 
to this Agreement.  Engineer may use and rely upon such requirements, programs, 
instructions, reports, data, and information in performing or furnishing services under this 
Agreement, subject to any express limitations or reservations applicable to the furnished 
items. 

D. Owner shall give prompt written notice to Engineer whenever Owner observes or 
otherwise becomes aware of:  

1.  any development that affects the scope or time of performance of Engineer’s services;  

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of   (“Effective Date”) between 

City of Monticello, 200 East First Street, Monticello, IA 52310  (“Owner”) and 

Snyder & Associates, Inc; 5005 Bowling St. SW, Suite A, Cedar Rapids, IA 52403 (“Engineer”). 

 
Owner's Project, of which Engineer's services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as follows: 
Wastewater Treatment Improvements – Monticello, IA 

("Project"). 

Other terms used in this Agreement are defined in Article 7.  The EJCDC Agreement replaces Snyder & Associates 

Standard Professional Services Agreement dated November 16, 2020 

Engineer's services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows:   
Basic Services, Project Representative Services and Additional Services Pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit A.            

 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 2 

2. the presence at the Site of any Constituent of Concern; or  

3. any relevant, material defect or nonconformance in: (a) Engineer’s services, (b) the 
Work, (c) the performance of any Constructor, or (d) Owner’s performance of its 
responsibilities under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3 –  SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES 

3.01 Commencement 

A. Engineer is authorized to begin rendering services as of the Effective Date. 

3.02 Time for Completion 

A. Engineer shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time.  Specific periods of time 
for rendering services, or specific dates by which services are to be completed, are 
provided in Exhibit A, and are hereby agreed to be reasonable. 

B. If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly 
and continuous progress of Engineer’s services is impaired, or Engineer’s services are 
delayed or suspended, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates 
and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably.   

C. If Owner authorizes changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project or Engineer’s 
services, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts 
of Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 

D. Owner shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities in a timely manner so 
as not to delay the Engineer’s performance of its services.   

E. If Engineer fails, through its own fault, to complete the performance required in this 
Agreement within the time set forth, as duly adjusted, then Owner shall be entitled, as its 
sole remedy, to the recovery of direct damages, if any, resulting from such failure. 

ARTICLE 4 –  INVOICES AND PAYMENTS 

4.01 Invoices 

A. Preparation and Submittal of Invoices:  Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with 
its standard invoicing practices and the terms of Exhibit C. Invoices must include a 
breakdown of services provided. Engineer shall submit its invoices to Owner on a 
monthly basis.  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.   

4.02 Payments 

A. Application to Interest and Principal:  Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to 
Engineer and then to principal.   

B. Failure to Pay:  If Owner fails to make any payment due Engineer for services and 
expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then: 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 3 

1. amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum 
rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day; and 

2. Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under 
this Agreement until Owner has paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and 
other related charges.  Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such 
suspension. 

C. Disputed Invoices:  If Owner disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then 
Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in writing of the specific basis for doing so, may 
withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the undisputed portion subject to 
the terms of Paragraph 4.01.   

D. Sales or Use Taxes:  If after the Effective Date any governmental entity takes a legislative 
action that imposes additional sales or use taxes on Engineer’s services or compensation 
under this Agreement, then Engineer may invoice such additional sales or use taxes for 
reimbursement by Owner. Owner shall reimburse Engineer for the cost of such invoiced 
additional sales or use taxes; such reimbursement shall be in addition to the 
compensation to which Engineer is entitled under the terms of Exhibit C. 

ARTICLE 5 –  OPINIONS OF COST 

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost 

A. Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable Construction Cost are to be made on the basis of 
Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction 
industry.  However, because Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment, or services furnished by others, or over contractors’ methods of determining 
prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of 
probable Construction Cost prepared by Engineer.  If Owner requires greater assurance as 
to probable Construction Cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost 
estimate. Opinions of Probable Cost and any revisions thereof should reflect 
compliance with American Iron & Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 of 
Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, 
Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference.  

5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit 

A. If a Construction Cost limit is established between Owner and Engineer, such Construction 
Cost limit and a statement of Engineer’s rights and responsibilities with respect thereto 
will be specifically set forth in Exhibit F to this Agreement. 

5.03 Opinions of Total Project Costs 

A. The services, if any, of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs shall be limited to 
assisting the Owner in tabulating the various categories that comprise Total Project Costs.  
Engineer assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any opinions of Total Project 

Costs.  Opinions of Total Project Costs and any revisions thereof should reflect 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 4 

compliance with American Iron & Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 of 
Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, 
Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic 
preference. 

ARTICLE 6 –  GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 

6.01 Standards of Performance 

A. Standard of Care:  The standard of care for all professional engineering and related 
services performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and 
skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.  Engineer makes no warranties, 
express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services 
performed or furnished by Engineer.  

B. Technical Accuracy:  Owner shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies in the 
technical accuracy of Engineer’s services.  Engineer shall correct deficiencies in technical 
accuracy without additional compensation, unless such corrective action is directly 
attributable to deficiencies in Owner-furnished information. 

C. Consultants:  Engineer may retain such Consultants as Engineer deems necessary to assist 
in the performance or furnishing of the services, subject to reasonable, timely, and 
substantive objections by Owner.   

D. Reliance on Others:  Subject to the standard of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, Engineer 
and its Consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or 
customarily furnished by others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, 
manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of technical standards.   

E. Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures: 

1. Engineer and Owner shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations. 

2. Engineer shall comply with any and all policies, procedures, and instructions of Owner 
that are applicable to Engineer's performance of services under this Agreement and that 
Owner provides to Engineer in writing, subject to the standard of care set forth in 
Paragraph 6.01.A, and to the extent compliance is not inconsistent with professional 
practice requirements. 

3. This Agreement is based on Laws and Regulations and Owner-provided written policies 
and procedures as of the Effective Date.  The following may be the basis for 
modifications to Owner’s responsibilities or to Engineer’s scope of services, times of 
performance, or compensation:  

a.  changes after the Effective Date to Laws and Regulations; 

b.  the receipt by Engineer after the Effective Date of Owner-provided written policies 
and procedures;  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 5 

c. changes after the Effective Date to Owner-provided written policies or procedures.  

F. Engineer shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom requested, that 
would result in the Engineer having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of 
conditions whose existence the Engineer cannot ascertain.  Owner agrees not to make 
resolution of any dispute with the Engineer or payment of any amount due to the 
Engineer in any way contingent upon the Engineer signing any such document. 

G. The general conditions for any construction contract documents prepared hereunder are 
to be EJCDC® C-700 “Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract” (2013 
Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, unless 
expressly indicated otherwise in Exhibit J or elsewhere in this Agreement. 

H. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any 
Constructor’s work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used 
by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security 
or safety at the Site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply with Laws and 
Regulations applicable to that Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 
Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor. 

I. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes 
responsibility for any Constructor’s, failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance 
with the Construction Contract Documents.  

J. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the Construction 
Contract Documents, or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of 
the Construction Contract Documents, other than those made by Engineer or its 
Consultants. 

K. Engineer is not required to provide and does not have any responsibility for surety 
bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or 
enforcement of construction insurance or surety bonding requirements. 

L. Engineer’s services do not include providing legal advice or representation.   

M. Engineer’s services do not include (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for purposes of the 
registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, or (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or 
other person or entity, regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of 
municipal securities, including advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms, or 
other similar matters concerning such products or issuances. 

N. While at the Site, Engineer, its Consultants, and their employees and representatives shall 
comply with the applicable requirements of Contractor's and Owner's safety programs of 
which Engineer has been informed in writing. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 6 

6.02 Design Without Construction Phase Services – N/A 

A. Engineer shall be responsible only for those Construction Phase services expressly 
required of Engineer in Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05.  With the exception of such expressly 
required services, Engineer shall have no design, Shop Drawing review, or other 
obligations during construction, and Owner assumes all responsibility for the application 
and interpretation of the Construction Contract Documents, review and response to 
Contractor claims, Construction Contract administration, processing of Change Orders and 
submittals, revisions to the Construction Contract Documents during construction, 
construction observation and review, review of Contractor’s payment applications, and all 
other necessary Construction Phase administrative, engineering, and professional services.  
Owner waives all claims against the Engineer that may be connected in any way to 
Construction Phase administrative, engineering, or professional services except for those 
services that are expressly required of Engineer in Exhibit A. 

6.03 Use of Documents 

A. All Documents are instruments of service, and Engineer shall retain an ownership and 
property interest therein (including the copyright and the right of reuse at the discretion 
of the Engineer) whether or not the Project is completed.  

B. If Engineer is required to prepare or furnish Drawings or Specifications under this 
Agreement, Engineer shall deliver to Owner at least one original printed record version of 
such Drawings and Specifications, signed and sealed according to applicable Laws and 
Regulations. 

C. Owner may make and retain copies of Documents for information and reference in 
connection with the use of the Documents on the Project.  Engineer grants Owner a 
limited license to use the Documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and for 
related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by Engineer of full payment due and owing 
for all services relating to preparation of the Documents, and subject to the following 
limitations: (1) Owner acknowledges that such Documents are not intended or 
represented to be suitable for use on the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use 
or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any 
other use or purpose, without written verification or adaptation by Engineer; (2) any such 
use or reuse, or any modification of the Documents, without written verification, 
completion, or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, 
will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer or to its 
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants; (3) Owner 
shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of 
the Documents without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and 
(4) such limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. 

D. If Engineer at Owner’s request verifies the suitability of the Documents, completes them, 
or adapts them for extensions of the Project or for any other purpose, then Owner shall 
compensate Engineer at rates or in an amount to be agreed upon by Owner and Engineer. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 7 

6.04 Electronic Transmittals  

A. Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, 
Documents, text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital 
format, either directly, or through access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a 
mutually agreeable protocol.  

B. If this Agreement does not establish protocols for electronic or digital transmittals, then 
Owner and Engineer may jointly develop such protocols.  

C. When transmitting items in electronic media or digital format, the transmitting party 
makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of the 
items resulting from the recipient’s use of software application packages, operating 
systems, or computer hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of 
the items, or from those established in applicable transmittal protocols. 

6.05 Insurance 

A. Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. Engineer shall 
cause Owner to be listed as an additional insured on any applicable general liability 
insurance policy carried by Engineer.   

B. Owner shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. Owner shall cause 
Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional insureds on any general liability 
policies carried by Owner, which are applicable to the Project. Deleted 

C. Owner shall require Contractor to purchase and maintain policies of insurance covering 
workers' compensation, general liability, motor vehicle damage and injuries, and other 
insurance necessary to protect Owner's and Engineer's interests in the Project.  Owner 
shall require Contractor to cause Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional 
insureds with respect to such liability insurance purchased and maintained by Contractor 
for the Project. 

D. Owner and Engineer shall each deliver to the other certificates of insurance evidencing the 
coverages indicated in Exhibit G.  Such certificates shall be furnished prior to 
commencement of Engineer’s services and at renewals thereafter during the life of the 
Agreement. 

E. All policies of property insurance relating to the Project, including but not limited to any 
builder’s risk policy, shall allow for waiver of subrogation rights and contain provisions to 
the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no 
rights of recovery against any insured thereunder or against Engineer or its Consultants. 
Owner and Engineer waive all rights against each other, Contractor, the Consultants, and 
the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out 
of, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by any builder’s risk policy 
and any other property insurance relating to the Project. Owner and Engineer shall take 
appropriate measures in other Project-related contracts to secure waivers of rights 
consistent with those set forth in this paragraph.  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 8 

F. All policies of insurance shall contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage 
afforded will not be canceled or reduced in limits by endorsement, and that renewal will 
not be refused, until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the primary 
insured. Upon receipt of such notice, the receiving party shall promptly forward a copy of 
the notice to the other party to this Agreement.  

G. At any time, Owner may request that Engineer or its Consultants, at Owner’s sole expense, 
provide additional insurance coverage, increased limits, or revised deductibles that are 
more protective than those specified in Exhibit G.  If so requested by Owner, and if 
commercially available, Engineer shall obtain and shall require its Consultants to obtain 
such additional insurance coverage, different limits, or revised deductibles for such 
periods of time as requested by Owner, and Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate 
these requirements. 

6.06 Suspension and Termination 

A. Suspension: 

1. By Owner:  Owner may suspend the Project for up to 90 days upon seven days written 
notice to Engineer.   

2. By Engineer:  Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend 
services under this Agreement if Owner has failed to pay Engineer for invoiced services 
and expenses, as set forth in Paragraph 4.02.B, or in response to the presence of 
Constituents of Concern at the Site, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D.  

B. Termination:  The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be 
terminated: 

1. For cause, 

a. by either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the 
other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the 
terminating party. 

b. by Engineer: 

1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or 
perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed 
professional; or  

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s services for the Project are 
delayed or suspended for more than 90 days for reasons beyond Engineer’s 
control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents 
of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D. 

3) Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of such termination. 

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate under 
Paragraph 6.06.B.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 9 

receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds 
diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof; 
provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be 
reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently 
attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, 
then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more 
than, 60 days after the date of receipt of the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer’s receipt of notice from Owner.   

C. Effective Date of Termination:  The terminating party under Paragraph 6.06.B may set the 
effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to 
allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and equipment from the Site, to complete tasks 
whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and 
uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly files. 

D. Payments Upon Termination: 

1. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 6.06, Engineer will be entitled to 
invoice Owner and to receive full payment for all services performed or furnished in 
accordance with this Agreement and all Reimbursable Expenses incurred through the 
effective date of termination.  Upon making such payment, Owner shall have the limited 
right to the use of Documents, at Owner’s sole risk, subject to the provisions of 
Paragraph 6.03. 

2. In the event of termination by Owner for convenience or by Engineer for cause, Engineer 
shall be entitled, in addition to invoicing for those items identified in Paragraph 6.06.D.1, 
to invoice Owner and receive payment of a reasonable amount for services and 
expenses directly attributable to termination, both before and after the effective date of 
termination, such as reassignment of personnel, costs of terminating contracts with 
Engineer’s Consultants, and other related close-out costs, using methods and rates for 
Additional Services as set forth in Exhibit C. 

6.07 Controlling Law 

This Agreement is to be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the state in which the 
Project is located.  

6.08 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and 
legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 
6.08.B the assigns of Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this 
Agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives 
(and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and 
obligations of this Agreement. 

B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest 
(including, but without limitation, money that is due or may become due) in this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other party, except to the extent that any 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
10 

assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law.  Unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge 
the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement: 

1. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or give rise to any duty 
owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity, or 
to any surety for or employee of any of them. 

2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole 
and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party.   

3. Owner agrees that the substance of the provisions of this Paragraph 6.08.C shall appear 
in the Construction Contract Documents. 

6.09 Dispute Resolution 

A. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a 
period of 30 days from the date of notice prior to invoking the procedures of Exhibit H or 
other provisions of this Agreement, or exercising their rights at law.   

B. If the parties fail to resolve a dispute through negotiation under Paragraph 6.09.A, then 
either or both may invoke the procedures of Exhibit H.  If Exhibit H is not included, or if no 
dispute resolution method is specified in Exhibit H, then the parties may exercise their 
rights at law.   

6.10 Environmental Condition of Site 

A. Owner represents to Engineer that as of the Effective Date to the best of Owner’s 
knowledge no Constituents of Concern, other than those disclosed in writing to Engineer, 
exist at or adjacent to the Site.   

B. If Engineer encounters or learns of an undisclosed Constituent of Concern at the Site, then 
Engineer shall notify (1) Owner and (2) appropriate governmental officials if Engineer 
reasonably concludes that doing so is required by applicable Laws or Regulations. 

C. It is acknowledged by both parties that Engineer’s scope of services does not include any 
services related to unknown or undisclosed Constituents of Concern.  If Engineer or any 
other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals an undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then 
Owner shall promptly determine whether to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such 
condition or take any necessary corrective action. 

D. If investigative or remedial action, or other professional services, are necessary with 
respect to undisclosed Constituents of Concern, or if investigative or remedial action 
beyond that reasonably contemplated is needed to address a disclosed or known 
Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of 
the Project affected thereby until such portion of the Project is no longer affected.  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
11 

E. If the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of Concern adversely affects the 
performance of Engineer’s services under this Agreement, then the Engineer shall have 
the option of (1) accepting an equitable adjustment in its compensation or in the time of 
completion, or both; or (2) terminating this Agreement for cause on seven days notice. 

F. Owner acknowledges that Engineer is performing professional services for Owner and that 
Engineer is not and shall not be required to become an "owner," “arranger,” “operator,” 
“generator,” or “transporter” of hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, which 
are or may be encountered at or near the Site in connection with Engineer’s activities 
under this Agreement. 

6.11 Indemnification and Mutual Waiver 

A. Indemnification by Engineer:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and Owner’s officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, consultants, and employees, from losses, damages, and 
judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’ fees and expenses) arising 
from third-party claims or actions relating to the Project, provided that any such claim, 
action, loss, damages, or judgment is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), 
including the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any 
negligent act or omission of Engineer or Engineer’s officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, or Consultants. This indemnification provision is subject to and 
limited by the provisions, if any, agreed to by Owner and Engineer in Exhibit I, 
“Limitations of Liability." 

B. Indemnification by Owner:  Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its 
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants as required by 
Laws and Regulations and to the extent (if any) required in Exhibit I, “Limitations of 
Liability.” 

C. Environmental Indemnification:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, 
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, costs, losses, damages, 
actions, and judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys fees and 
expenses) caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from a Constituent of Concern 
at, on, or under the Site, provided that (1) any such claim, cost, loss, damages, action, or 
judgment is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use 
resulting therefrom, and (2) nothing in this paragraph shall obligate Owner to indemnify 
any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's 
own negligence or willful misconduct. 

D. No Defense Obligation:  The indemnification commitments in this Agreement do not 
include a defense obligation by the indemnitor unless such obligation is expressly stated. 

E. Percentage Share of Negligence:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,  
a party’s total liability to  the other party and anyone claiming by, through, or under the 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
12 

other party for any  cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of the party 
and in part by the negligence of  the other party or any other negligent entity or individual, 
shall not exceed the percentage share that the party’s negligence bears to the total 
negligence of Owner, Engineer, and all other negligent entities and individuals. 

F. Mutual Waiver:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner and 
Engineer waive against each other, and the other’s employees, officers, directors, 
members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlement 
to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or 
in any way related to this Agreement or the Project, from any cause or causes.   

6.12 Records Retention 

A. Engineer shall maintain on file in legible form, for a period of five years following 
completion or termination of its services, all Documents, records (including cost records), 
and design calculations related to Engineer’s services or pertinent to Engineer’s 
performance under this Agreement.  Upon Owner’s request, Engineer shall provide a copy 
of any such item to Owner at cost. 

6.13 Miscellaneous Provisions  

A. Notices:  Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, addressed to the 
appropriate party at its address on the signature page and given personally, by registered 
or certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial courier service.  All notices shall be 
effective upon the date of receipt. 

B. Survival:  All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and limitations of liability 
included in this Agreement will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 

C. Severability:  Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable 
under any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall 
continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Engineer, which agree that the 
Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a 
valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention 
of the stricken provision. 

D. Waiver:  A party’s non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that 
provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this 
Agreement. 

E. Accrual of Claims:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, all causes of 
action arising under this Agreement shall be deemed to have accrued, and all statutory 
periods of limitation shall commence, no later than the date of Substantial Completion. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
13 

ARTICLE 7 –  DEFINITIONS 

7.01 Defined Terms 

A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto) terms (including the 
singular and plural forms) printed with initial capital letters have the meanings indicated in 
the text above, in the exhibits, or in the following definitions: 

1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of bids which 
clarify, correct, or change the bidding requirements or the proposed Construction 
Contract Documents. 

2. Additional Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer 
in accordance with Part 2 of Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

3. Agreement—This written contract for professional services between Owner and 
Engineer, including all exhibits identified in Paragraph 8.01 and any duly executed 
amendments. 

4. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by 
Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and 
which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the 
Construction Contract. 

5. Basic Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer in 
accordance with Part 1 of Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

6. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an 
addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Construction Contract 
Price or the Construction Contract Times, or other revision to the Construction Contract, 
issued on or after the effective date of the Construction Contract.  

7. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with 
the procedural requirements set forth in the Construction Contract, seeking an 
adjustment in Construction Contract Price or Construction Contract Times, or both; 
contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the 
Construction Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Construction 
Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief 
with respect to the terms of the Construction Contract. 

8. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated 
biphenyls (PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material 
of any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to 
(a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 
U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 
U.S.C. §§5501 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 
et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the 
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; 
or (g) any other federal, State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
14 

resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or 
standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, 
or material. 

9. Construction Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between the Owner 
and Contractor concerning the Work. 

10. Construction Contract Documents—Those items designated as “Contract Documents” in 
the Construction Contract, and which together comprise the Construction Contract.   

11. Construction Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for 
completion of the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 

12. Construction Contract Times—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor 
shall:  (a) achieve milestones, if any, in the Construction Contract; (b) achieve Substantial 
Completion; and (c) complete the Work.  

13. Construction Cost—The cost to Owner of the construction of those portions of the entire 
Project designed or specified by or for Engineer under this Agreement, including 
construction labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, and 
allowances for contingencies.  Construction Cost does not include costs of services of 
Engineer or other design professionals and consultants; cost of land or rights-of-way, or 
compensation for damages to property; Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance 
counseling, or auditing services; interest or financing charges incurred in connection 
with the Project; or the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner. 
Construction Cost is one of the items comprising Total Project Costs. 

14. Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents, 
representatives, and Consultants), performing or supporting construction activities 
relating to the Project, including but not limited to Contractors, Subcontractors, 
Suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, other contractors, construction 
managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees, agents, and 
representatives of any or all of them.  

15. Consultants—Individuals or entities having a contract with Engineer to furnish services 
with respect to this Project as Engineer’s independent professional associates and 
consultants; subcontractors; or vendors.  

16. Contractor—The entity or individual with which Owner enters into a Construction 
Contract. 

17. Documents—Data, reports, Drawings, Specifications, Record Drawings, building 
information models, civil integrated management models, and other deliverables, 
whether in printed or electronic format, provided or furnished in appropriate phases by 
Engineer to Owner pursuant to this Agreement. 

18. Drawings—That part of the Construction Contract Documents that graphically shows the 
scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.   



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
15 

19. Effective Date—The date indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes effective, but 
if no such date is indicated, the date on which this Agreement is signed and delivered by 
the last of the parties to sign and deliver. 

20. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement. 

21. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the 
Work but does not change the Construction Contract Price or the Construction Contract 
Times. 

22. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, 
authorities, and courts having jurisdiction. 

23. Owner—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement and for which 
Engineer's services are to be performed.  Unless indicated otherwise, this is the same 
individual or entity that will enter into any Construction Contracts concerning the 
Project. 

24. Project—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors, 
and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and 
start-up, and of which the services to be performed or furnished by Engineer under this 
Agreement are a part. 

25. Record Drawings—Drawings depicting the completed Project, or a specific portion of the 
completed Project, prepared by Engineer as an Additional Service and based on 
Contractor's record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work 
Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications, as 
delivered to Engineer and annotated by Contractor to show changes made during 
construction. 

26. Reimbursable Expenses—The expenses incurred directly by Engineer in connection with 
the performing or furnishing of Basic Services and Additional Services for the Project.  

27. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned to 
assist Engineer at the Site during the Construction Phase.  As used herein, the term 
Resident Project Representative or "RPR" includes any assistants or field staff of 
Resident Project Representative. The duties and responsibilities of the Resident Project 
Representative, if any, are as set forth in Exhibit D.  

28. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are 
representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which 
such portion of the Work will be judged. 

29. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or 
information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and 
submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether 
approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Construction Contract Documents. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
16 

30. Site—Lands or areas to be indicated in the Construction Contract Documents as being 
furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way 
and easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the 
use of Contractor. 

31. Specifications—The part of the Construction Contract Documents that consists of 
written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship 
as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters 
applicable to the Work.  

32. Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with 
any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.  

33. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has 
progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part 
thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the 
purposes for which it is intended. The terms “substantially complete” and “substantially 
completed” as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof. 

34. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor 
having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials 
or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor. 

35. Total Project Costs—The total cost of planning, studying, designing, constructing, testing, 
commissioning, and start-up of the Project, including Construction Cost and all other 
Project labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, allowances 
for contingencies, and the total costs of services of Engineer or other design 
professionals and consultants, together with such other Project-related costs that Owner 
furnishes for inclusion, including but not limited to cost of land, rights-of-way, 
compensation for damages to properties, Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance 
counseling, and auditing services, interest and financing charges incurred in connection 
with the Project, and the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner.  

36. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof 
required to be provided under the Construction Contract Documents.  Work includes 
and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation 
necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all 
materials and equipment into such construction; and may include related services such 
as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Construction Contract 
Documents. 

37. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the effective 
date of the Construction Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer, 
ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work. 

38. Agency – The Rural Utilities Service or any designated representative of Rural Utilities 
Service, including USDA, Rural development. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
17 

B. Day: 

1. The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next 
midnight. 

ARTICLE 8 –  EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

8.01 Exhibits Included: 

A. Exhibit A, Engineer’s Services.  

B. Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities.  

C. Exhibit C, Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.  

D. Exhibit D, Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project 
Representative.  

E. Exhibit E, Notice of Acceptability of Work.  

F. Exhibit F, Construction Cost Limit. (Not Used) 

G. Exhibit G, Insurance.  

H. Exhibit H, Dispute Resolution. (Not Used) 

I. Exhibit I, Limitations of Liability.  

J. Exhibit J, Special Provisions.  

K. Exhibit K, Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.  

8.02 Total Agreement 

A. This Agreement, (together with the exhibits included above) constitutes the entire 
agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral 
understandings.  This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or 
canceled by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. Amendments should be 
based whenever possible on the format of Exhibit K to this Agreement. 

8.03 Designated Representatives 

A. With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall designate specific 
individuals to act as Engineer’s and Owner’s representatives with respect to the services to 
be performed or furnished by Engineer and responsibilities of Owner under this 
Agreement.  Such an individual shall have authority to transmit instructions, receive 
information, and render decisions relative to this Agreement on behalf of the respective 
party whom the individual represents.  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
18 

8.04 Engineer's Certifications 

A. Engineer certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, or coercive practices in 
competing for or in executing the Agreement.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.04: 

1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value 
likely to influence the action of a public official in the selection process or in the 
Agreement execution; 

2. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the selection process or the execution of the Agreement to the detriment of 
Owner, or (b) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons 
or their property to influence their participation in the selection process or affect the 
execution of the Agreement. 

8.05 Federal Requirements 

A. Agency Concurrence. Signature of a duly authorized representative of the Agency in the 
space provided on the signature page of EJCDC form E-500 hereof does not constitute a 
commitment to provide financial assistance or payments hereunder but does signify 
that this Agreement conforms to Agency’s applicable requirements. This Agreement 
shall not be effective unless the Funding Agency’s designated representative concurs. 
No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless the Funding Agency’s 
designated representative concurs. 

B. Audit and Access to Records. Owner, Agency, the Comptroller General of the United 
States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, 
documents, papers, and records of the Engineer which are pertinent to this Agreement, 
for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transactions. Engineer 
shall maintain all required records for three years after final payment is made and all 
other pending matters are closed. 

C. Restrictions and Lobbying. Engineer and each Consultant shall comply with 
“Restrictions on Lobbying” if they are recipients of engineering services contracts and 
subcontracts that exceed $100,000 at any tier. If applicable, Engineer must complete a 
certification form on lobbying activities related to a specific Federal loan or grant that is 
a funding source for this Agreement. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not 
and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member 
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any 
Federal contract, grant, or any other applicable award. Each tier shall disclose any 
lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any 
Federal award. Certifications and disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the 
Owner. Necessary certification and disclosure forms shall be provided by Owner. 

D. Suspension and Debarment. Engineer certifies, by signing this Agreement, that neither 
it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
19 

Federal department or agency. Engineer will not contract with any Consultant for this 
project if it or its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 
Federal department or agency. Necessary certification forms shall be provided by the 
Owner. The Engineer will complete and submit a form AD-1048, “Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – lower tier 
transactions,” to the Owner who will forward it the USDA, Rural Development 
processing office. 

 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
20 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is 
indicated on page 1. 
 
Owner:  City of Monticello  Engineer:  Snyder & Associates, Inc 
   

By:   By:  

Print name: Dave Goedken  Print name:  Lindsay Beaman 
Title:  Mayor  Title: Business Unit Leader 

Date Signed:    Date Signed:   

   
 Engineer License or Firm's Certificate No. (if required):  

19971 
 State of:  Iowa 

   
Address for Owner’s receipt of notices:  Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices: 
200 First Street, Monticello, IA 52310  5005 Bowling St. SW, Suite A, Cedar Rapids, IA 52403 
    

   

Designated Representative (Paragraph 8.03.A):  Designated Representative (Paragraph 8.03.A): 
Russ Farnum  Nick Eisenbacher, P.E. 
Title: City Administrator  Title: Project Engineer 

Phone Number: 319-465-3577  Phone Number: 319-362-9394 

E-Mail Address: rfarnum@ci.monticello.ia.us  E-Mail Address: neisenbacher@snyder-
associates.com 

mailto:rfarnum@ci.monticello.ia.us
lbeaman
Stamp

lbeaman
Text Box
Sept 13, 2022



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 19 pages, 
referred to in and part of the Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer for Professional 

Services dated  [            ]. 

Engineer’s Services 

 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.   
 
Engineer shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below. 
 

PART 1 – BASIC SERVICES 

A1.01 Study and Report Phase – Previously Completed, Snyder & Associates, Inc Project #118.0342.08 

A. Engineer shall: 

1. Consult with Owner to define and clarify Owner’s requirements for the Project, including 
design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, 
flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations, and identify available data, 
information, reports, facilities plans, and site evaluations.   

a. If Owner has already identified one or more potential solutions to meet its Project 
requirements, then proceed with the study and evaluation of such potential 
solutions: [            ] [List the specific potential solutions here.]  

b. If Owner has not identified specific potential solutions for study and evaluation, 
then assist Owner in determining whether Owner’s requirements, and available 
data, reports, plans, and evaluations, point to a single potential solution for 
Engineer’s study and evaluation, or are such that it will be necessary for Engineer to 
identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential solutions. In addition, Engineer 
must identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential alternative solutions 
potentially available to the Owner, unless Owner and Engineer mutually agree 
with Agency concurrence that only one feasible solution exists. The number of 
alternative solutions should be appropriate to the specific project as concurred in 
by the Agency. 

c. If it is necessary for Engineer to identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential 
solutions, then identify [    ] [insert specific number] alternative solutions 
potentially available to Owner, unless Owner and Engineer mutually agree that 
some other specific number of alternatives should be identified, studied, and 
evaluated. Delete 

2. Identify potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements, as needed. 

3.  Study and evaluate the potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements.  

4. Visit the Site, or potential Project sites, to review existing conditions and facilities, unless 
such visits are not necessary or applicable to meeting the objectives of the Study and 
Report Phase.  



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 2 

5. Advise Owner of any need for Owner to obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available to 
Engineer additional Project-related data and information, for  Engineer’s use in the study 
and evaluation of potential solution(s) to Owner’s Project requirements, and preparation 
of a related report. 

6. After consultation with Owner, recommend to Owner the solution(s) which in Engineer’s 
judgment meet Owner’s requirements for the Project. 

7. Identify, consult with, and analyze requirements of governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction to approve the portions of the Project to be designed or specified by 
Engineer, including but not limited to mitigating measures identified in an environmental 
assessment for the Project. 

8.  Prepare a report (the “Report”) which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts, 
sketches, and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the 
agreed-to requirements, considerations involved, and Engineer’s recommended 
solution(s). For each recommended solution Engineer will provide the following, which 
will be separately itemized:  opinion of probable Construction Cost; proposed 
allowances for contingencies; the estimated total costs of design, professional, and 
related services to be provided by Engineer and its Consultants; and, on the basis of 
information furnished by Owner, a tabulation of other items and services included 
within the definition of Total Project Costs. 

9. Advise Owner of any need for Owner to provide data or services of the types described 
in Exhibit B, for use in Project design, or in preparation for Contractor selection and 
construction.   

10. When mutually agreed and approved by the Agency, assist Owner in evaluating the 
possible use of building information modeling; civil integrated management; 
geotechnical baselining of subsurface site conditions; innovative design, contracting, or 
procurement strategies; or other strategies, technologies, or techniques for assisting in 
the design, construction, and operation of Owner’s facilities.  The subject matter of this 
paragraph shall be referred to in Exhibit A and B as “Project Strategies, Technologies, 
and Techniques.” 

11. If requested to do so by Owner, assist Owner in identifying opportunities for enhancing 
the sustainability of the Project, and pursuant to Owner’s instructions plan for the 
inclusion of sustainable features in the design.  

12. Use ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface 
Utility Data” as a means to advise the Owner on a recommended scope of work and 
procedure for the identification and mapping of existing utilities.  

13. Develop a scope of work and survey limits for any topographic and other surveys 
necessary for design. 

14. Perform or provide the following other Study and Report Phase tasks or deliverables:       
Provide an Environmental Report as defined in 1 CFR 1970.  The Environmental Report 
must be concurred in by the Agency. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 3 

15. Furnish [    ] review copies of the Report and any other Study and Report Phase 
deliverables to Owner within [    ] days of the Effective Date and review it with Owner.  
Within [    ] days of receipt, Owner shall submit to Engineer any comments regarding the 
furnished items. 

16. Revise the Report and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables in response to 
Owner’s comments, as appropriate, and furnish [    ] copies of the revised Report and 
any other Study and Report Phase deliverables to the Owner within [    ] days of receipt 
of Owner’s comments. Revise the Report and any other Study and Report Phase 
deliverables in response to Owner’s and Agency’s comments, as appropriate, and 
furnish three (3) written copies and one (1) electronic copy of the revised Report and 
any other Study and Report Phase deliverables to the Owner within [    ] days of 
receipt of Owner’s and Agency’s comments. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Study and Report Phase will be considered complete on the 
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Report and any other Study and 
Report Phase deliverables. 

A1.02 Preliminary Design Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner, and concurrence by Agency, of the Report and any other Study 
and Report Phase deliverables; selection by Owner of a recommended solution; issuance by 
Owner of any instructions of for use of Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, or 
for inclusion of sustainable features in the design; and indication by Owner of any specific 
modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of the 
Project desired by Owner, (1) Engineer and Owner shall discuss and resolve any necessary 
revisions to Engineer’s compensation (through application of the provisions regarding 
Additional Services, or otherwise), or the time for completion of Engineer’s services, resulting 
from the selected solution, related Project Strategies, Technologies, or Techniques,  
sustainable design instructions, or specific modifications to the Project, and (2) upon written 
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall:  

1. Prepare Preliminary Design Phase documents consisting of final design criteria, 
preliminary drawings, outline specifications, and written descriptions of the Project.  

2. In preparing the Preliminary Design Phase documents, use any specific applicable Project 
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques authorized by Owner and Agency during or 
following the Study and Report Phase, and include sustainable features, as appropriate, 
pursuant to Owner’s instructions. 

3. Provide necessary field surveys and topographic and utility mapping for Engineer’s 
design purposes.  Comply with the scope of work and procedure for the identification 
and mapping of existing utilities selected and authorized by Owner pursuant to advice 
from Engineer based on ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction 
of Existing Subsurface Utility Data,” as set forth in Paragraph A1.01.A.12 above. If no 
such scope of work and procedure for utility mapping has been selected and authorized, 
then at a minimum the utility mapping will include Engineer contacting utility owners 
and obtaining available information. 

4. Visit the Site as needed to prepare the Preliminary Design Phase documents. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 4 

5. Advise Owner if additional reports, data, information, or services of the types described 
in Exhibit B are necessary and assist Owner in obtaining such reports, data, information, 
or services. 

6. Continue to assist Owner with Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques that 
Owner has chosen to implement. 

7. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents, 
prepare a revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and assist Owner in tabulating 
the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

8. Obtain and review Owner’s instructions regarding Owner’s procurement of construction 
services (including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to 
bidders, and requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract 
practices and requirements, insurance and bonding requirements, electronic 
transmittals during construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of 
Owner’s bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and Construction Contract Documents. Also obtain and 
review copies of Owner’s design and construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, 
general conditions (if other than EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract, 2013 Edition), supplementary conditions, text, and related 
documents or content for Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and in the draft 
Construction Contract Documents, when applicable.  Engineer must also incorporate all 
Agency regulations, forms, and design and construction standards applicable to the 
project in development of the documents indicated in this Article. 

9. Perform or provide the following other Preliminary Design Phase tasks or deliverables:    
The Engineer shall identify the building codes and accessibility standards used in the 
design and indicate them on the drawings and specifications and certify that the final 
drawings and specifications comply with those standards.   

10. Furnish [  2  ] review copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of 
probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables to 
Owner within [ 60   ] days of authorization to proceed with this phase, and review them 
with Owner.  Within [  20  ] days of receipt, Owner shall submit to Engineer any 
comments regarding the furnished items.  

11. Revise the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of probable Construction Cost, 
and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables in response to Owner’s comments, 
as appropriate, and furnish to Owner [  2  ] copies of the revised Preliminary Design 
Phase documents, revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other 
deliverables within [  30  ]  days after receipt of Owner’s comments. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the 
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Preliminary Design Phase documents, 
revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase 
deliverables.  



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 5 

A1.03 Final Design Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner of the Preliminary Design Phase documents, revised opinion of 
probable Construction Cost as determined in the Preliminary Design Phase, and any other 
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables, subject to any Owner-directed modifications or 
changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of or for the Project, and 
upon written authorization from Owner, Engineer shall: 

1. Prepare final Drawings and Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and character of 
the Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. 

2. Visit the Site as needed to assist in preparing the final Drawings and Specifications. 

3. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for Owner’s use in filing 
applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction to review or approve the final design; assist Owner in consultations with such 
authorities; and revise the Drawings and Specifications in response to directives from 
such authorities, as appropriate. 

4. Advise Owner of any recommended adjustments to the opinion of probable 
Construction Cost. 

5. After consultation with Owner, include in the Construction Contract Documents any 
specific protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, 
text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, 
either directly, or through access to a secure Project website. Any such protocols shall be 
applicable to transmittals between and among Owner, Engineer, and Contractor during 
the Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase, and unless agreed otherwise shall 
supersede any conflicting protocols previously established for transmittals between 
Owner and Engineer. 

6. Assist Owner in assembling known reports and drawings of Site conditions, and in 
identifying the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which 
bidders or other prospective contractors may rely. 

7. In addition to preparing the final Drawings and Specifications, assemble drafts of other 
Construction Contract Documents based on specific instructions and contract forms, 
text, or content  received from Owner. 

8. Prepare or assemble draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents), based on the specific bidding or procurement-
related instructions and forms, text, or content received from Owner. 

9. Perform or provide the following other Final Design Phase tasks or deliverables:                
Engineer shall identify the building codes and accessibility standards used in the design 
and indicate them on the drawings and specifications and certify that the final 
drawings and specifications comply with those standards. 

10.  Furnish for review by Owner, its legal counsel and Agency, and other advisors, [  2  ] 
copies of the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 6 

Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables, within [ 30   ] days of authorization to proceed with the Final Design Phase, 
and review them with Owner. Within [  15  ] days of receipt, Owner shall submit to 
Engineer any comments regarding the furnished items, and any instructions for 
revisions. 

11. Revise the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction 
Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables in accordance with comments and instructions from the Owner, as 
appropriate, and submit [  2  ] final copies of such documents to Owner within [  15  ] 
days after receipt of Owner’s comments and instructions. 

12. Provide the Owner and Agency with a written certification that the final Drawings and 
Specifications, other assembled Construction Contract Documents, bidding-related 
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), 
and any other Final Design Phase deliverables comply with all requirements of Agency. 
Use the Engineer’s Certification of Final Plans and Specifications (Attachment J of the 
RUS Bulletin 1780-26) for this purpose. 

13. Services required to determine and certify that to the best of the Engineer’s 
knowledge and belief all iron and steel products referenced in engineering 
analysis, the Plans, Specifications, Bidding Documents, and associated Bid 
Addenda requiring design revisions are either produced in the United States or are 
the subject of an approved waiver; and services required to determine to the best 
of the engineer’s knowledge and belief that approved substitutes, equals, and all 
iron and steel products proposed in the shop drawings, Change Orders and Partial 
Payment Estimates are either produced in the United States or are the subject of 
an approved waiver under Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and 
Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and 
subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference. The term “iron and steel 
products” means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or 
unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, 
tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced 
precast concrete, and construction materials. The deminimis and minor 
components waiver apply to this contract. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the date 
when Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Drawings and Specifications, other 
assembled Construction Contract Documents, bidding-related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables and all final design phase deliverables have been accepted by Owner.  

C. In the event that the Work designed or specified by Engineer is to be performed or furnished 
under more than one prime contract, or if Engineer’s services are to be separately sequenced 
with the work of one or more prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking), Owner 
and Engineer shall, prior to commencement of the Final Design Phase, develop a schedule for 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 7 

performance of Engineer’s services during the Final Design, Bidding or Negotiating, 
Construction, and Post-Construction Phases in order to sequence and coordinate properly 
such services as are applicable to the work under such separate prime contracts.  This 
schedule is to be prepared and included in or become an amendment to Exhibit A whether or 
not the work under such contracts is to proceed concurrently. 

D. The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by Engineer upon which the 
Engineer’s compensation has been established under this Agreement is [one (1)].  If more 
prime contracts are awarded, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in its 
compensation under this Agreement. 

A1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner of the final Drawings and Specifications, other Construction 
Contract Documents, bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents), and the most recent opinion of probable 
Construction Cost as determined in the Final Design Phase, and upon written authorization by 
Owner to proceed, Engineer shall: 

1. Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work, assist 
Owner in issuing assembled design, contract, and bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents) to prospective 
contractors, and, where applicable, maintain a record of prospective contractors to 
which documents have been issued, attend pre-bid conferences, if any, and receive and 
process contractor deposits or charges for the issued documents. 

2. Prepare and issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the issued 
documents.  Obtain Agency concurrence on any addenda that modify the bidding 
documents. Obtain prior concurrence where possible. 

3. Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any review of 
proposals or negotiations with prospective contractors. 

4. Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of prospective contractors. 

5.  Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of ubcontractors, suppliers, and other 
individuals and entities proposed by prospective contractors, for those portions of the 
Work as to which review of qualifications is required by the issued documents.  

6. If the issued documents require, the Engineer shall evaluate and determine the 
acceptability of "or equals" and substitute materials and equipment proposed by 
prospective contractors, provided that such proposals are allowed by the bidding-
related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement 
documents) prior to award of contracts for the Work. Services under this paragraph are 
subject to the provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A.   

a. The Engineer shall evaluate and determine the acceptability of “or equals” and 
substitute materials and equipment proposed by prospective contractors prior to 
award of contracts for the Work. Engineer shall issue a bid addendum for any and 
all approved “or equals” and substitutes. Review of substitutes and “or equals” 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 8 

shall be in accordance with the General Conditions of the Construction Contract 
and applicable Agency regulations. Services under this paragraph are subject to 
the provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A. 

b. Services required to determine and certify that to the best of the Engineer’s 
knowledge and belief all iron and steel products referenced in Bid Addenda 
requiring design revisions are either produced in the United States or are the 
subject of an approved qaiver. 

7. Attend the bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets to meet Owner’s schedule, and 
assist Owner in evaluating bids or proposals, assembling final contracts for the Work for 
execution by Owner and Contractor, and in issuing notices of award of such contracts. 

8. If Owner engages in negotiations with bidders or proposers, assist Owner with respect to 
technical and engineering issues that arise during the negotiations. 

9. Perform or provide the following other Bidding or Negotiating Phase tasks or 
deliverables: Upon award of the Construction Contract, the Engineer shall furnish to 
Owner three executed copies of the Contract Documents and one electric copy of the 
signed document, including Drawings and Specifications. 

10. Provide copies of Manufacturers’ Certification letters to the Bidders on any brand 
name iron and steel products along with the Plans, Specifications and Bidding 
Documents. Manufacturers’ Certification Letters are to be included in the Bidding 
Documents and must be kept in the engineer’s project file and on site during 
construction. 

11. Provide copies of Manufacturers’ Certification letters to the Contractor on any brand 
name iron and steel products along with the Plans, Specifications, Bidding Documents 
including any Bid Addenda and Change Orders. Manufacturers’ Certification Letters 
must be kept in the engineer’s project file and on-site during construction. 

B. The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement of the 
Construction Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective contractors (except as 
may be required if Exhibit F is a part of this Agreement). 

A1.05 Construction Phase 

A. Upon successful completion of the Bidding and Negotiating Phase, and upon written 
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall: 

1. General Administration of Construction Contract:  Consult with Owner and act as 
Owner’s representative as provided in the Construction Contract.  The extent and 
limitations of the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer shall be as assigned 
in EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (2013 
Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, or other 
construction general conditions specified in this Agreement. If Owner, or Owner and 
Contractor, modify the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer in the 
Construction Contract, or modify other terms of the Construction Contract having a 
direct bearing on Engineer, then Owner shall compensate Engineer for any related 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 9 

increases in the cost to provide Construction Phase services. Engineer shall not be 
required to furnish or perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a 
licensed professional. All of Owner’s instructions to Contractor will be issued through 
Engineer, which shall have authority to act on behalf of Owner in dealings with 
Contractor to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Construction Contract 
except as otherwise provided in writing. 

2. Resident Project Representative (RPR):  Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist 
the Engineer and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor’s work.  Duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D.  The furnishing of 
such RPR’s services will not limit, extend, or modify Engineer’s responsibilities or 
authority except as expressly set forth in Exhibit D.  

3. Selection of Independent Testing Laboratory:  Assist Owner in the selection of an 
independent testing laboratory to perform the services identified in Exhibit B, Paragraph 
B2.01. 

4. Pre-Construction Conference:  Participate in and chair a pre-construction conference 
prior to commencement of Work at the Site. 

5. Electronic Transmittal Protocols:  If the Construction Contract Documents do not specify 
protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, text, data, 
drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, 
or through access to a secure Project website, then together with Owner and Contractor 
jointly develop such protocols for transmittals between and among Owner, Contractor, 
and Engineer during the Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase. 

6. Original Documents:  If requested by Owner to do so, Maintain and safeguard during the 
Construction Phase at least one original printed record version of the Construction 
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by 
Engineer and other design professionals in accordance with applicable Laws and 
Regulations.  Throughout the Construction Phase, make such original printed record 
version of the Construction Contract Documents available to Contractor and Owner for 
review. 

7. Schedules:  Receive, review, and determine the acceptability of any and all schedules 
that Contractor is required to submit to Engineer, including the Progress Schedule, 
Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

8. Baselines and Benchmarks:  As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for 
locating the Work which in Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to 
proceed. 

9. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction:  In connection with observations of 
Contractor’s Work while it is in progress: 

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, 
as Engineer deems necessary, to observe as an experienced and qualified design 
professional the progress of Contractor’s executed Work.  Such visits and 
observations by Engineer, and the Resident Project Representative, if any, are not 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 10 

intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of the Work or to involve 
detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 
Engineer in this Agreement and the Construction Contract Documents, but rather 
are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and similar methods of 
general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s exercise of professional 
judgment, as assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if any.  Based on 
information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer will determine 
in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work. 

b. The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site, and representation by the Resident 
Project Representative, if any, at the Site, will be to enable Engineer to better carry 
out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by Engineer during 
the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of Engineer’s efforts as an 
experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for Owner a greater 
degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to the 
Construction Contract Documents and that Contractor has implemented and 
maintained the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a 
functioning whole as indicated in the Construction Contract Documents.  Engineer 
shall not, during such visits or as a result of such observations of the Work, 
supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer have authority 
over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or 
safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to any Constructor’s 
work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or schedules, nor 
for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable 
to  furnishing and performing of its work.  Accordingly, Engineer neither guarantees 
the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any 
Constructor’s failure to furnish or perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in 
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 

c. The visits described in Article A1.05.A.9 shall be at least monthly, and the 
Engineer shall document all visits to the project with copies furnished to the 
Owner and Agency. 

10. Defective Work:  Reject Work if, on the basis of Engineer’s observations, Engineer 
believes that such Work is defective under the terms and standards set forth in the 
Construction Contract Documents. Provide recommendations to Owner regarding 
whether Contractor should correct such Work or remove and replace such Work, or 
whether Owner should consider accepting such Work as provided in the Construction 
Contract Documents. 

11. Compatibility with Design Concept:  If Engineer has express knowledge that a specific 
part  of the Work that is not defective under the terms and standards set forth in the 
Construction Contract Documents is nonetheless not compatible with  the design 
concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole,  then inform Owner of such 
incompatibility, and provide recommendations for addressing such Work. 

12. Clarifications and Interpretations:  Accept from Contractor and Owner submittal of all 
matters in question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 11 

Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), 
or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. 
With reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision 
on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Construction 
Contract Documents.  

13. Non-reviewable Matters:  If a submitted matter in question concerns the Engineer’s 
performance of its duties and obligations, or terms and conditions of the Construction 
Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the 
Work under the Construction Contract Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the 
Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, 
then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer 
will not provide a decision or interpretation. 

14.  Field Orders:  Subject to any limitations in the Construction Contract Documents, 
Engineer may prepare and issue Field Orders requiring minor changes in the Work. 

15. Change Orders and Work Change Directives:  Recommend Change Orders and Work 
Change Directives to Owner, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work 
Change Directives as required. 

16. Differing Site Conditions:  Respond to any notice from Contractor of differing site 
conditions, including conditions relating to underground facilities such as utilities, and 
hazardous environmental conditions. Promptly conduct reviews and prepare findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations for Owner’s use. 

17. Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals:  Review and approve or take other 
appropriate action with respect to Shop Drawings, Samples, and other required 
Contractor submittals to ensure compliance with American and Iron Steel 
requirements mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations 
Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug 
Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent 
statutes mandating domestic preference. Any iron and steel products included in any 
submittal by the General Contractor, must include a Manufacturers’ Certification letter 
to verify the products were produced in the United States. Copies of Manufacturers’ 
Certification letters must be kept in the engineer’s project file and on-site during 
construction. Review and approve or take other appropriate action with respect to Shop 
Drawings, Samples,  and other required Contractor submittals, but only for conformance 
with the information given in the Construction Contract Documents and compatibility 
with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by 
the Construction Contract Documents.  Such reviews and approvals or other action will 
not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or 
to safety precautions and programs incident thereto.  Engineer shall meet any 
Contractor’s submittal schedule that Engineer has accepted. 

18. Substitutes and “Or-equal”:  Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or 
“or-equal” materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the 
provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A. Review of substitutes and “or 
equals” shall be in accordance with the General Conditions of the Construction 
Contract and applicable Agency regulations. Prior to approval of any substitute “or 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 12 

equal” obtain a Manufacturers’ Certification letter to verify the products were 
produced in the United States. Manufacturers’ Certification letters must be kept in the 
engineer’s project file and on-site during construction to ensure compliance with 
American and Iron Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, 
Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and 
subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference, if applicable. 

19. Inspections and Tests: 

a. Receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by 
Laws and Regulations or the Construction Contract Documents.  Engineer’s review 
of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining that the results certified 
indicate compliance with the Construction Contract Documents and will not 
constitute an independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such 
inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements of the Construction 
Contract Documents.  Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the results of such 
inspections and tests. 

b. As deemed reasonably necessary, request that Contractor uncover Work that is to 
be inspected, tested, or approved.  

c. Pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract, require special inspections or 
testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed. 

d. Receive and review all Manufacturers’ Certification Letters for materials required 
to comply with American and Iron Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 
of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - 
Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related 
Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic 
preference to verify the products were produced in the United States. 
Manufacturers’ Certification letters must be kept in the engineer’s project file and 
on-site during construction. 

20. Change Proposals and Claims:  (a) Review and respond to Change Proposals.  Review 
each duly submitted Change Proposal from Contractor and, within 30 days after receipt 
of the Contractor’s supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve 
it in whole, or deny it in part and approve it in part.  Such actions shall be in writing, with 
a copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If the Change Proposal does not involve the 
design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the 
Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify the parties 
that the Engineer will not resolve the Change Proposal.  (b) Provide information or data 
to Owner regarding engineering or technical matters pertaining to Claims.  (c) Review 
Change Proposals to ensure compliance with American and Iron Steel requirements 
mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 
(Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and 
Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating 
domestic preference. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 13 

21. Applications for Payment:  Based on Engineer’s observations as an experienced and 
qualified design professional and on review of Applications for Payment and 
accompanying supporting documentation: 

a. Determine the amounts that Engineer recommends Contractor be paid. 
Recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) based on the provisions for set-offs 
stated in the Construction Contract. Such recommendations of payment will be in 
writing and will constitute Engineer’s representation to Owner, based on such 
observations and review, that, to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information 
and belief, Contractor’s Work has progressed to the point indicated, the Work is 
generally in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents (subject to an 
evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial 
Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Construction 
Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the 
recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to 
such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility 
to observe the  Work.  In the case of unit price Work, Engineer’s recommendations 
of payment will include final determinations of quantities and classifications of the 
Work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Construction Contract 
Documents). 

b. By recommending payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have 
represented that observations made by Engineer to check the quality or quantity of 
Contractor’s Work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended 
to every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of 
the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in this 
Agreement.  Neither Engineer’s review of Contractor’s Work for the purposes of 
recommending payments nor Engineer’s recommendation of any payment 
including final payment will impose on Engineer responsibility to supervise, direct, 
or control the Work, or for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs incident thereto, or 
Contractor’s compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s 
furnishing and performing the Work.  It will also not impose responsibility on 
Engineer to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes 
Contractor has used the money paid to Contractor by Owner; to determine that 
title to any portion of the Work, including materials or equipment, has passed to 
Owner free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances; or 
that there may not be other matters at issue between Owner and Contractor that 
might affect the amount that should be paid. 

22. Contractor’s Completion Documents:  Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit to 
Owner maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, 
certificates or other evidence of insurance required by the Construction Contract 
Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and Shop Drawings, Samples, 
and other data approved as provided under Paragraph A1.05.A.17.  Receive from 
Contractor, review, and transmit to Owner the annotated record documents which are 
to be assembled by Contractor in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents 
to obtain final payment.  The extent of Engineer’s review of record documents shall be 
to check that Contractor has submitted all pages. Receive from the Contractor and 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 14 

review the annotated record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in 
accordance with the Construction Documents to obtain final payment. The Engineer 
shall prepare Record Drawings and furnish such Record Drawings to Owner. 

23. Substantial Completion:  Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor 
considers the entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with Owner and 
Contractor, visit the Site to review the Work and determine the status of completion. 
Follow the procedures in the Construction Contract regarding the preliminary certificate 
of Substantial Completion, punch list of items to be completed, Owner’s objections, 
notice to Contractor, and issuance of a final certificate of Substantial Completion.  Assist 
Owner regarding any remaining engineering or technical matters affecting Owner’s use 
or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion. 

24. Other Tasks:  Perform or provide the following other Construction Phase tasks or 
deliverables:  

a. Upon Substantial Completion, the Engineer shall provide a copy of the Certificate 
of   Substantial completion to the Agency. 

25. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work:  Conduct a final visit to the Project to 
determine if the Work is complete and acceptable so that Engineer may recommend, in 
writing, final payment to Contractor.  Accompanying the recommendation for final 
payment, Engineer shall also provide a notice to Owner and Contractor in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit E (“Notice of Acceptability of Work”) that the Work is 
acceptable (subject to the provisions of the Notice and Paragraph A1.05.A.21.b) to the 
best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief, and based on the extent of the 
services provided by Engineer under this Agreement. 

a. Obtain the Contractors’ Certification letter and copies of Manufacturers’ 
Certification letters for all American Iron and Steel products used in the project. 
Upon Substantial Completion, provide copies of Engineer’s, Contractors’, and 
Manufacturers’ Certification letters to the Owner and a copy of Contractor’s 
Certification letter to the Agency. Provide a list of manufacturers of American Iron 
and Steel products used in the project and include manufacturer’s name and 
location, and product(s) to the Agency. 

26. Standards for Certain Construction-Phase Decisions:  Engineer will render decisions 
regarding the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents, and judge the 
acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth in the 
Construction Contract for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of 
the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality 
to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in 
connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or 
rendered in good faith. 

B. Duration of Construction Phase:  The Construction Phase will commence with the execution 
of the first Construction Contract for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon 
written recommendation by Engineer for final payment to Contractors.  If the Project involves 
more than one prime contract as indicated in Paragraph A1.03.D, then Construction Phase 
services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts.  Subject to 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 15 

the provisions of Article 3, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in compensation 
if Construction Phase services (including Resident Project Representative services, if any) are 
required after the original date for completion and readiness for final payment of Contractor 
as set forth in the Construction Contract. 

A1.06 Post-Construction Phase 

A. Upon written authorization from Owner during the Post-Construction Phase, Engineer shall: 

1. Together with Owner, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work,  
make recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective Work, if any, or the 
need to repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas, and assist Owner in 
consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such 
defective Work and any needed repairs. 

2. Together with Owner, visit the Project within one month before the end of the 
Construction Contract’s correction period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work 
or the repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas is defective and therefore 
subject to correction by Contractor. 

3. Perform or provide the following other Post-Construction Phase tasks or deliverables:     
None  

B. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if 
not otherwise modified in this Exhibit A, will terminate twelve months after the 
commencement of the Construction Contract’s correction period. 

PART 2 – ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

A2.01 Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 

 

A. If authorized in writing by Owner, Engineer shall provide Additional Services of the types 
listed below. These services are not included as part of Basic Services and will be paid for by 
Owner as indicated in Exhibit C. 

1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished 
under Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or advances in 
connection with the Project; preparation or review of environmental assessments and 
impact statements not including preparation of the Environmental Report defined 
under Basic Services; review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements 
for the Project of any such statements and documents prepared by others; and 
assistance in obtaining approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated 
environmental impact of the Project. 

2. Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to conduct tests 
or investigations of existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the accuracy of drawings 
or other information furnished by Owner or others. 

3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the 
portions of the Project designed or specified by Engineer, or the Project’s design 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 16 

requirements, including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, Owner’s 
schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously 
accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Construction Contract Documents 
when such revisions are required by changes in Laws and Regulations enacted 
subsequent to the Effective Date or are due to any other causes beyond Engineer’s 
control. 

4. Services resulting from Owner’s request to evaluate additional Study and Report Phase 
alternative solutions beyond those agreed to in Paragraph A1.01.A.1 and 2, but only if 
the Owner’s request is made after completion of the Study and Report Phase. 

5. Services required as a result of Owner’s providing incomplete or incorrect Project 
information to Engineer. 

6. Providing renderings or models for Owner’s use, including services in support of building 
information modeling or civil integrated management. 

7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to: 

a. detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; 

b. the preparation of feasibility studies (such as those that include projections of 
output capacity, utility project rates, project market demand, or project revenues) 
and cash flow analyses, provided that such services are based on the engineering 
and technical aspects of the Project, and do not include rendering advice regarding 
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities; 

c. preparation of appraisals; 

d. evaluating processes available for licensing, and assisting Owner in obtaining 
process licensing;  

e. detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and 

f. audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed or 
furnished by Owner. 

8. Furnishing services of Consultants for other than Basic Services. 

9. Providing data or services of the types described in Exhibit B, when Owner retains  
Engineer to provide such data or services instead of Owner furnishing the same.  

10. Providing the following services: 

a. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in 
Paragraph A1.03.D. 

b. Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by 
contractors other than the principal prime Contractor, and administering Owner’s 
contract for such services. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 17 

11. Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer, other than for visits to the Site 
or Owner’s office as required in Basic Services (Part 1 of Exhibit A). 

12. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured 
independent review processes, including, but not limited to, construction management, 
cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructibility review 
requested by Owner; and performing or furnishing services required to revise studies, 
reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other documents as a result of such review 
processes. 

13. Preparing additional bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents) or Construction Contract Documents for 
alternate bids or cost estimates requested by Owner for the Work or a portion thereof. 

14. Assistance in connection with bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for 
construction, materials, equipment, or services, except when such assistance is required 
to complete services required by Paragraph 5.02.A and Exhibit F. 

15. Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that incorporate and integrate 
the content of all Addenda and any amendments negotiated by Owner and Contractor. 

16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for completion and 
readiness for final payment of Contractor, but only if such services increase the total 
quantity of services to be performed in the Construction Phase, rather than merely 
shifting performance of such services to a later date. 

17. Preparing Record Drawings, and furnishing such Record Drawings to Owner. Deleted. 

18. Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed Project, Site, 
and immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, Owner, utility 
companies, and other reliable sources. 

19. Conducting surveys, investigations, and field measurements to verify the accuracy of 
Record Drawing content obtained from Contractor, Owner, utility companies, and other 
sources; revise and supplement Record Drawings as needed. 

20. Preparation of operation, maintenance, and staffing manuals. 

21. Protracted or extensive assistance in refining and adjusting of Project equipment and 
systems (such as initial startup, testing, and balancing). 

22. Assistance to Owner in training Owner’s staff to operate and maintain Project 
equipment and systems. 

23. Assistance to Owner in developing systems and procedures for (a) control of the 
operation and maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) related 
recordkeeping. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 18 

24. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner in any litigation, 
arbitration, lien or bond claim, or other legal or administrative proceeding involving the 
Project. 

25. Overtime work requiring higher than regular rates. 

26. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work 
other than as required under Paragraph A1.05.A.8; any type of property surveys or 
related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in real property; and 
providing other special field surveys. 

27. Providing more extensive services required to enable Engineer to issue notices or 
certifications requested by Owner. 

28. Extensive services required during any correction period, or with respect to monitoring 
Contractor’s compliance with warranties and guarantees called for in the Construction 
Contract (except as agreed to under Basic Services). 

29. Other additional services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for 
in this Agreement. 

A2.02 Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 

A. Engineer shall advise Owner that Engineer is commencing to perform or furnish the 
Additional Services of the types listed below.  For such Additional Services, Engineer need not 
request or obtain specific advance written authorization from Owner.  Engineer shall cease 
performing or furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of written notice to cease 
from Owner. 

1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders to reflect 
changes requested by Owner. 

2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the 
acceptance of substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” items; services 
after the award of the Construction Contract in evaluating and determining the 
acceptability of a proposed "or equal" or substitution which is found to be inappropriate 
for the Project; evaluation and determination of an excessive number of proposed "or 
equals" or substitutions, whether proposed before or after award of the Construction 
Contract.  Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by 
the acceptance of substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” items; 
evaluation and determination of an excessive number of proposed “or equals” or 
substitutions, whether proposed before or after award of the Construction Contract.  

3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a 
direct or indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages. 

4. Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of any 
Constituent of Concern or items of historical or cultural significance, (b) emergencies or 
acts of God endangering the Work, (c) damage to the Work by fire or other causes 
during construction, (d) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed Work, 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 19 

(e) acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working 
hours, or (f) default by Contractor. 

5. Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection 
with any partial utilization of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial Completion. 

6. Evaluating unreasonable or frivolous requests for interpretation or information (RFIs), 
Change Proposals, or other demands from Contractor or others in connection with the 
Work, or an excessive number of RFIs, Change Proposals, or demands. 

7. Reviewing a Shop Drawing or other Contractor submittal more than three times, as a 
result of repeated inadequate submissions by Contractor. 

8. While at the Site, compliance by Engineer and its staff with those terms of Owner's or 
Contractor's safety program provided to Engineer subsequent to the Effective Date that 
exceed those normally required of engineering personnel by federal, State, or local 
safety authorities for similar construction sites. 



Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                        Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of 4 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Owner’s Responsibilities 

 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties. 
 
B2.01 In addition to other responsibilities of Owner as set forth in this Agreement, Owner shall at its 

expense: 
 

A. Provide Engineer with all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the 
Project, including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance 
requirements, flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations.  

B. Give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services 
(including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders, and 
requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract practices and 
requirements, insurance and bonding requirements, electronic transmittals during 
construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of Owner’s bidding-related 
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and 
Construction Contract Documents.  Furnish copies (or give specific directions requesting 
Engineer to use copies already in Engineer’s possession) of all design and construction 
standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions (if other than EJCDC® C-700, Standard 
General Conditions of the Construction Contract, 2013 Edition), supplementary conditions, 
text, and related documents and content for Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related 
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and 
draft Construction Contract Documents, when applicable.  Owner shall have responsibility for 
the final content of (1) such bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents), and (2) those portions of any Construction Contract 
other than the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), and other 
engineering or technical matters; and Owner shall seek the advice of Owner’s legal counsel, 
risk managers, and insurance advisors with respect to the drafting and content of such 
documents. 

C. Furnish to Engineer any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports 
and data relative to previous designs, construction, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site. 

D. Following Engineer’s assessment of initially-available Project information and data and upon 
Engineer’s request, obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available (if necessary through title 
searches, or retention of specialists or consultants) such additional Project-related 
information and data as is reasonably required to enable Engineer to complete its Basic and 
Additional Services.  Such additional information or data would generally include the 
following: 

1. Property descriptions. 

2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions. 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 2 

3. Utility and topographic mapping and surveys. 

4. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or data, including 
establishing relevant reference points. 

5. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site; geotechnical 
reports and investigations; drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or 
subsurface structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections 
of samples, materials, and equipment; with appropriate professional interpretation of 
such information or data.  

6. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations, and impact statements, and other 
relevant environmental, historical, or cultural studies relevant to the Project, the Site, 
and adjacent areas. 

7. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in this 
Agreement. 

E. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon public and 
private property as required for Engineer to perform services under the Agreement. 

F. Recognizing and acknowledging that Engineer's services and expertise do not include the 
following services, provide, as required for the Project: 

1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory (including, if applicable, “municipal advisor” 
services as described in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act (2010) and the municipal advisor registration rules issued by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission), independent cost estimating, and insurance 
counseling services. 

2. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as Owner requires, 
Contractor raises, or Engineer reasonably requests. 

3. Such auditing services as Owner requires to ascertain how or for what purpose 
Contractor has used the money paid. 

G. Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, 
and approvals of samples, materials, and equipment required by the Construction Contract 
Documents (other than those required to be furnished or arranged by Contractor), or to 
evaluate the performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of Owner, prior to their 
incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional interpretation thereof. Provide 
Engineer with the findings and reports generated by testing laboratories, including findings 
and reports obtained from or through Contractor. 

H. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction 
to approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by Engineer and such reviews, 
approvals, and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of each phase of 
the Project. 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 3 

I. Advise Engineer of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants 
employed by Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not 
limited to, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructibility 
review. 

J. If Owner designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other than, or in 
addition to, Engineer to represent Owner at the Site, define and set forth as an attachment to 
this Exhibit B the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party and 
the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer. 

K. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by 
Engineer, then designate a person or entity to have authority and responsibility for 
coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors, and define and set forth the 
duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such individual or entity and the 
relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer as an attachment to 
this Exhibit B that is to be mutually agreed upon and made a part of this Agreement before 
such services begin. 

L. Inform Engineer in writing of any specific requirements of safety or security programs that 
are applicable to Engineer, as a visitor to the Site. 

M. Examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, 
proposals, and other documents presented by Engineer (including obtaining advice of an 
attorney, risk manager, insurance counselor, financial/municipal advisor, and other advisors 
or consultants as Owner deems appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in 
writing timely decisions pertaining thereto. 

N. Inform Engineer regarding any need for assistance in evaluating the possible use of Project 
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, as defined in Exhibit A. 

O. Advise Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in identifying opportunities 
for enhancing the sustainability of the Project. 

P. Place and pay for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications. 

Q. Furnish to Engineer data as to Owner’s anticipated costs for services to be provided by others 
(including, but not limited to, accounting, bond and financial, independent cost estimating, 
insurance counseling, and legal advice) for Owner so that Engineer may assist Owner in 
collating the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

R. Attend and participate in the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, 
construction progress and other job related meetings, and Site visits to determine Substantial 
Completion and readiness of the completed Work for final payment.   

S. Authorize Engineer to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of Exhibit A of the 
Agreement, as required. 

T. Perform or provide the following: None 

 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 4 

 

B2.02 Owners are ultimately responsible for compliance with Section 746 of Title VII of the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and 
Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes 
mandating domestic preference and will be responsible for the following:  

 
(a) Signing loan resolutions, grant agreements and letters of intent to meet conditions 
which include American Iron and Steel language, accepting American Iron and Steel 
requirements in those documents and in the letter of conditions.  

(b) Signing change orders (i.e. C-941 of EJCDC) and partial payment estimates (i.e. C-620 of 
EJCDC) and thereby acknowledging responsibility for compliance with American Iron and 
Steel requirements.  

(c) Obtaining the certification letters from the consulting engineer upon substantial 
completion of the project and maintaining this documentation for the life of the loan.  

(d) Where the owner provides their own engineering and/or construction services, 
providing copies of engineers’, contractors’, and manufacturers’ certification letters (as 
applicable) to the Agency. All certification letters must be kept in the engineer’s project file 
and on site during construction. For Owner Construction (Force Account), all clauses from 
Section 17 of RUS Bulletin 1780-35 must be included in the Agreement for Engineering  

(e) Where the owner directly procures American Iron and Steel products, including 
American Iron and Steel clauses in the procurement contracts and obtaining 
manufacturers’ certification letters and providing copies to consulting engineers and 
contractors.  



 

 

Exhibit C –Compensation Packet BC-1: Basic Services (other than RPR) – Lump Sum Method of Payment 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                               Page 1 

 
This is EXHIBIT C, consisting of 6 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
COMPENSATION PACKET BC-1:  Basic Services – Lump Sum 
 

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 

ARTICLE 2 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

C2.01 Compensation for Basic Services (other than Resident Project Representative) – Lump Sum Method 
of Payment 

 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A, except for services of 
Engineer’s Resident Project Representative, if any, as follows: 

1. A Lump Sum amount of $1,140,000 based on the following estimated distribution of 
compensation: 

a. Study and Report Phase   $Previously Completed 

b. Preliminary Design, Plans & Specifications Phase – Currently Under Snyder & 
Associates Contract Dated Nov. 16, 2022    $565,000 

c. Final Additional Design, Plans & Specifications Phase – Additional Fees for to 
Update Design to USDA Design Requirements  $99,300 

d. Bidding and Negotiating Phase   $15,000 – Currently 
Under Snyder & Associates Contract Dated Nov. 16, 2022 

e. Construction Administration Phase   $450,700 

f. Post-Construction Phase   $10,000 

2. Engineer may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases noted 
herein to be consistent with services actually rendered, but shall not exceed the total 
Lump Sum amount unless approved in writing by the Owner and Agency. 

3. The Lump Sum includes compensation for Engineer’s services and services of Engineer’s 
Consultants, if any.  Appropriate amounts have been incorporated in the Lump Sum to 
account for labor costs, overhead, profit, expenses (other than any expressly allowed 
Reimbursable Expenses), and Consultant charges.  

4. In addition to the Lump Sum, Engineer is also entitled to reimbursement from Owner for 
the following Reimbursable Expenses (see Appendix 1 for rates or charges): None 



 

 

Exhibit C –Compensation Packet BC-1: Basic Services (other than RPR) – Lump Sum Method of Payment 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                               Page 2 

5. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for Engineer’s services will be based upon 
Engineer’s estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during the 
billing period. If any Reimbursable Expenses are expressly allowed, Engineer may also bill 
for any such Reimbursable Expenses incurred during the billing period. 

B. Period of Service:  The compensation amount stipulated in Compensation Packet BC-1 is 
conditioned on a period of service not exceeding [ 24 ] months.  If such period of service is 
extended, the compensation amount for Engineer's services shall be appropriately adjusted 
with the concurrence of the Owner and Agency. 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative Services— 
 Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                              Page 1 

COMPENSATION PACKET RPR-2:   
Resident Project Representative – Standard Hourly Rates 
 

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
C2.04 Compensation for Resident Project Representative Basic Services – Standard Hourly Rates Method 

of Payment 
  

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Resident Project Representative Basic Services as follows: 

1. Resident Project Representative Services:  For services of Engineer’s Resident Project 
Representative under Paragraph A1.05.A of Exhibit A, an amount equal to the cumulative 
hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s personnel times Standard Hourly 
Rates for each applicable billing class for all Resident Project Representative services 
performed on the Project, plus related Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s 
charges, if any.  The total compensation under this paragraph is estimated to be                  
$540,000 (salary and mileage) based upon full-time RPR services on an eight-hour 
workday, Monday through Friday, over a 506 day construction schedule. 

2. If rate(s) for RPR services is not indicated in Appendix Two to Exhibit C, “Standard Hourly 
Rates Schedule,” the Standard Hourly Rate for RPR services is $123.00 per hour.” 

B. Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses: 

1. For those Reimbursable Expenses that are not accounted for in the compensation for 
Basic Services under Paragraph C2.01, and are directly related to the provision of 
Resident Project Representative or Post-Construction Basic Services, Owner shall pay 
Engineer at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this Exhibit C. 

2. Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following:  
transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental thereto; providing 
and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; subsistence and 
transportation of Resident Project Representative and assistants; toll telephone calls, 
mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports, Drawings, 
Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents, Construction Contract 
Documents, and similar Project-related items. In addition, if authorized in advance by 
Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also include expenses incurred for the use of highly 
specialized equipment. 

3. The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be those 
internal expenses related to the Resident Project Representative Basic Services that are 
actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, plus all invoiced external Reimbursable 
Expenses allocable to such services, the latter multiplied by a factor of one (1). 

4. The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually (as of June 1) to reflect 
equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer.  Changes will not be 
effective unless and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.  

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment Under this Paragraph C2.04: 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative Services— 
 Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                              Page 2 

1. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer’s 
Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s Consultants to 
Engineer times a factor of one (1). 

2. Factors:  The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s factors 
include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the 
administration of such services and costs. 

3. Estimated Compensation Amounts: 

a. Engineer’s estimate of the amounts that will become payable for specified services 
are only estimates for planning purposes, are not binding on the parties, and are 
not the minimum or maximum amounts payable to Engineer under the Agreement.   

b. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated herein and it 
subsequently becomes apparent to Engineer that the total compensation amount 
thus estimated will be exceeded, Engineer shall give Owner and Agency written 
notice thereof, allowing Owner to consider its options, including suspension or 
termination of Engineer's services for Owner's convenience.  Upon notice Owner 
and Engineer promptly shall review the matter of services remaining to be 
performed and compensation for such services.  Owner shall either exercise its 
right to suspend or terminate Engineer's services for Owner's convenience, agree to 
such compensation exceeding said estimated amount, or agree to a reduction in 
the remaining services to be rendered by Engineer, so that total compensation for 
such services will not exceed said estimated amount when such services are 
completed.  If Owner decides not to suspend Engineer's services during 
negotiations and Engineer exceeds the estimated amount before Owner and 
Engineer have agreed to an increase in the compensation due Engineer or a 
reduction in the remaining services, then Engineer shall be paid for all services 
rendered hereunder. 

4. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s timely request, 
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at cost at not cost. 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet AS-1:  Additional Services – 
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

COMPENSATION PACKET AS-1:   
Additional Services – Standard Hourly Rates 

 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
C2.05 Compensation for Additional Services – Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment 
 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Additional Services, if any, as follows: 

1. General:  For services of Engineer’s personnel engaged directly on the Project pursuant 
to Paragraph A2.01 or A2.02 of Exhibit A, except for services as a consultant or witness 
under Paragraph A2.01.A.20, (which if needed shall be separately negotiated based on 
the nature of the required consultation or testimony) an amount equal to the 
cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s personnel times 
Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class for all Additional Services 
performed on the Project, plus related Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s 
Consultant’s charges, if any. 

B. Compensation For Reimbursable Expenses: 

1. For those Reimbursable Expenses that are not accounted for in the compensation for 
Basic Services under Paragraph C2.01 and are directly related to the provision of 
Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this 
Exhibit C. 

2. Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following 
categories:  transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental 
thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; 
toll telephone calls, mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports, 
Drawings, Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents, 
Construction Contract Documents, and similar Project-related items; and Consultants’ 
charges. In addition, if authorized in advance by Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also 
include expenses incurred for the use of highly specialized equipment. 

3. The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be the 
Additional Services-related internal expenses actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, 
plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses allocable to such Additional Services, 
the latter multiplied by a factor of One (1). 

4. The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually (as of June 1) to reflect 
equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer.  Changes will not be 
effective unless and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.    

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment for Additional Services: 

1. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer’s 
Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s Consultants to 
Engineer times a factor of one (1). 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet AS-1:  Additional Services – 
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 2 

2. Factors:  The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s Factors 
include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the 
administration of such services and costs. 

3. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s timely request, 
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at no cost. 



 

Exhibit C – Appendix 1: Reimbursable Expenses Schedule. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This is Appendix 1 to EXHIBIT C, consisting of 1 pages, 
referred to in and part of the Agreement between 

Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated [            

]. 
 

Reimbursable Expenses Schedule 

 
Reimbursable Expenses are subject to review and adjustment per Exhibit C.  Rates and charges for 
Reimbursable Expenses as of the date of the Agreement are:  
 
   

8"x11" Copies/Impressions                                                                            $ [            ]/page 

Copies of Drawings         $ [            ]/sq. ft. 

Mileage (auto)    $ 0.625/mile 

Air Transportation   at cost 

CAD Charge  See Appendix 2 

Laboratory Testing  at cost  

Health and Safety Level D  $ [            ]/day 

Health and Safety Level C  $ [            ]/day 

Meals and Lodging  at cost 

 



 

Exhibit C – Appendix 2: Standard Hourly Rates Schedule. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This is Appendix 2 to EXHIBIT C, consisting of 1 
pages, referred to in and part of the Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer for Professional 

Services dated [            ]. 
 

Standard Hourly Rates Schedule 
 

A. Standard Hourly Rates: 

1. Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in this Appendix 2 to this Exhibit C and include 
salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and 
statutory benefits, general and administrative overhead, non-project operating costs, 
and operating margin or profit. 

2. The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Article C2. 

B. Schedule: 

 Hourly rates for services performed on or after the date of the Agreement are: 

Principal II $229.00 /hour

Principal I $217.00 /hour

Senior $198.00 /hour

VIII $181.00 /hour

VII $172.00 /hour

VI $163.00 /hour

V $152.00 /hour

IV $141.00 /hour

III $129.00 /hour

II $116.00 /hour

I $103.00 /hour

Lead $138.00 /hour

Senior $132.00 /hour

VIII $123.00 /hour

VII $113.00 /hour

VI $102.00 /hour

V $92.00 /hour

IV $83.00 /hour

III $75.00 /hour

II $69.00 /hour

I $60.00 /hour

II $71.00 /hour

I $58.00 /hour

Administrative 

Technical

CADD, Survey, Construction Observation

Professional

Engineer, Landscape Architect, Land Surveyor, GIS, Environmental Scientist

Project Manager, Planner, Right-of-Way Agent, Graphic Designer

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
2022-23

STANDARD FEE SCHEDULE

Billing RateBilling Classification/Level

 
 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT D, consisting of 5 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 

 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

D1.01 Resident Project Representative 
 

A. Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (“RPR”) to assist Engineer in 
observing progress and quality of the Work.  The RPR may provide full time representation or 
may provide representation to a lesser degree. RPR is Engineer’s representative at the Site, 
will act as directed by and under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer 
regarding RPR’s actions.  Full time Resident Project Representative is required unless 
requested in writing by the Owner and waived in writing by the Agency.  

B. Through RPR's observations of the Work, including field checks of materials and installed 
equipment, Engineer shall endeavor to provide further protection for Owner against defects 
and deficiencies in the Work.  However, Engineer shall not, as a result of such RPR 
observations of the Work, supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer 
(including the RPR) have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or 
safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to the Work or any 
Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or schedules, 
or for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the 
performing and furnishing of its work.  The Engineer (including RPR) neither guarantees the 
performances of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to 
furnish and perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in accordance with the 
Construction Contract Documents.  In addition, the specific terms set forth in Exhibit A, 
Paragraph A1.05, of this Agreement are applicable. 

C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are as follows: 

1. General:  RPR’s dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general shall be with 
Engineer and Contractor.  RPR’s dealings with Subcontractors shall only be through or 
with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor.  RPR shall generally communicate 
with Owner only with the knowledge of and under the direction of Engineer. 

2. Schedules:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample 
submittals, schedule of values, and other schedules prepared by Contractor and consult 
with Engineer concerning acceptability of such schedules. 

3. Conferences and Meetings:  Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction 
conferences, progress meetings, job conferences, and other Project-related meetings 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 2 

(but not including Contractor’s safety meetings), and as appropriate prepare and 
circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

4. Safety Compliance:  Comply with Site safety programs, as they apply to RPR, and if 
required to do so by such safety programs, receive safety training specifically related to 
RPR’s own personal safety while at the Site. 

5. Liaison: 

a. Serve as Engineer’s liaison with Contractor.  Working principally through 
Contractor’s authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information 
regarding the provisions and intent of the Construction Contract Documents. 

b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner’s liaison with Contractor when Contractor’s 
operations affect Owner’s on-Site operations. 

c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for 
proper execution of the Work. 

6. Clarifications and Interpretations:  Receive from Contractor submittal of any matters in 
question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents 
(sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), or relating 
to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. Report to 
Engineer regarding such RFIs. Report to Engineer when clarifications and interpretations 
of the Construction Contract Documents are needed, whether as the result of a 
Contractor RFI or otherwise. Transmit Engineer’s clarifications, interpretations, and 
decisions to Contractor. ,  

7. Shop Drawings and Samples: 

a. Record date of receipt of Samples and Contractor-approved Shop Drawings.   

b. Receive Samples that are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify Engineer of 
availability of Samples for examination. 

c. Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work 
requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal, if RPR believes that the submittal 
has not been received from Contractor, or has not been approved by Contractor or 
Engineer. 

8. Proposed Modifications:  Consider and evaluate Contractor’s suggestions for 
modifications to the Drawings or Specifications, and report such suggestions, together 
with RPR’s recommendations, if any, to Engineer.  Transmit Engineer’s response (if any) 
to such suggestions to Contractor.  

9. Review of Work; Defective Work: 

a. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Work is defective 
under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, 
and provide recommendations as to whether such Work should be corrected, 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 3 

removed and replaced, or accepted as provided in the Construction Contract 
Documents.  

b. Inform Engineer of any Work that RPR believes is not defective under the terms and 
standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, but is nonetheless not 
compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning 
whole, and provide recommendations to Engineer for addressing such Work. ; and  

c. Advise Engineer of that part of the Work that RPR believes should be uncovered for 
observation, or requires special testing, inspection, or approval. 

10. Inspections, Tests, and System Start-ups: 

a. Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduled inspections, tests, and systems start-
ups. 

b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance 
training are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner’s personnel, and that 
Contractor maintains adequate records thereof. 

c. Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the test 
procedures and systems start-ups.  

d. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws and 
Regulations, including but not limited to those to be performed by public or other 
agencies having jurisdiction over the Work. 

e. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having 
jurisdiction over the Work, record the results of these inspections, and report to 
Engineer. 

11. Records: 

a. Maintain at the Site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, 
copies of Construction Contract Documents including all Change Orders, Field 
Orders, Work Change Directives, Addenda, additional Drawings issued subsequent 
to the execution of the Construction Contract, RFIs, Engineer’s clarifications and 
interpretations of the Construction Contract Documents, progress reports, 
approved Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, and other Project-related 
documents. 

b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor’s hours on 
the Site, Subcontractors present at the Site, weather conditions, data relative to 
questions of Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, or changed 
conditions, Site visitors, deliveries of equipment or materials, daily activities, 
decisions, observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the 
case of observing test procedures; and send copies to Engineer. 

c. Upon request from Owner to Engineer, photograph or video Work in progress or 
Site conditions. 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 4 

d. Record and maintain accurate, up-to-date lists of the names, addresses, fax 
numbers, e-mail addresses, websites, and telephone numbers (including mobile 
numbers) of all Contractors, Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of materials and 
equipment. 

e. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation. 

f. Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPR Project documentation 
to Engineer. 

g. Maintain all Manufacturers’ Certification letters in the project file and on site 
during construction to ensure compliance with American and Iron Steel 
requirements mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food 
and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and 
subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference, as applicable. 

12. Reports: 

a. Furnish to Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of 
Contractor’s compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing 
and Sample submittals. 

b. Draft and recommend to Engineer proposed Change Orders, Work Change 
Directives, and Field Orders.  Obtain backup material from Contractor. Deleted 

c. Furnish to Engineer and Owner copies of all inspection, test, and system start-up 
reports. 

d. Immediately inform Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, emergencies, 
acts of God endangering the Work, possible force majeure or delay events, damage 
to property by fire or other causes, or the discovery of any potential differing site 
condition or Constituent of Concern.  

13. Payment Requests:  Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance 
with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations 
to Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the 
schedule of values, Work completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site 
but not incorporated in the Work. 

14. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals:  During the course of the Work, verify 
that materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and 
other data required by the Contract Documents to be assembled and furnished by 
Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, and have these documents delivered to Engineer for review and 
forwarding to Owner prior to payment for that part of  the Work. 

15. Completion: 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 5 

a. Participate in Engineer’s visits to the Site regarding Substantial Completion, assist in 
the determination of Substantial Completion, and prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion submit a punch list of observed items 
requiring completion or correction.   

b. Participate in Engineer’s visit to the Site in the company of Owner and Contractor, 
to determine completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch list of items to be 
completed or corrected by Contractor. 

c. Observe whether all items on the final punch list have been completed or 
corrected, and make recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance and 
issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work (Exhibit E). 

D. Resident Project Representative shall not: 

1. Authorize any deviation from the Construction Contract Documents or substitution of 
materials or equipment (including “or-equal” items). 

2. Exceed limitations of Engineer’s authority as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers, or any 
Constructor. 

4. Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of the Work, by Contractor or any other 
Constructor.  

5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or safety practices, 
precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of Owner or 
Contractor. 

6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by 
others except as specifically authorized by Engineer. 

7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 

8. Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 1 

 
 

NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 

 
PROJECT: WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS – MONTICELLO, IA 
 
OWNER: MONTICELLO, IA 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
OWNER’S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:  
 
ENGINEER: SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC 
 

NOTICE DATE: 

 
To:   City of Monticello, 200 East First Street, Monticello, IA 52310      
  Owner  
 
And  To:        
  Contractor 
 
From:     Snyder & Associates, Inc; 5005 Bowling St. SW, Suite A, Cedar Rapids, IA 52403    
  Engineer 
 
The Engineer hereby gives notice to the above Owner and Contractor that Engineer has recommended 
final payment of Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above 
Construction Contract is acceptable, expressly subject to the provisions of the related Contract 
Documents, the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated ______, and the 
following terms and conditions of this Notice: 
 

 
CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 

 
 The Notice of Acceptability of Work (“Notice”) is expressly made subject to the following terms 
and conditions to which all those who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree: 
 

1. This Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering 
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality. 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 2 

2. This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineer’s professional opinion. 

3. This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief as of 
the Notice Date.  

4. This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer 
has been employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Project 
(including observation of the Contractor’s work) under Engineer’s Agreement with 
Owner, and applies only to facts that are within Engineer’s knowledge or could 
reasonably have been ascertained by Engineer as a result of carrying out the 
responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such Agreement. 

5. This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor’s performance under the 
Construction Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the related 
Contract Documents, including but not limited to defective Work discovered after final 
inspection, nor an assumption of responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish 
and perform the Work thereunder in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents, or to otherwise comply with the Construction Contract Documents or the 
terms of any special guarantees specified therein. 

6. This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the 
Construction Contract, and is subject to Owner’s reservations of rights with respect to 
completion and final payment. 

 
  

By: 
 
 

  
 

Name 
and Title: 

 
 
 

  
 

Dated: 

 
 
 

 



 

Exhibit G – Insurance. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT G, consisting of 2 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Insurance 
 

Paragraph 6.05 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 

G6.05 Insurance 
 

A. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.05.A and 6.05.B of the 
Agreement are as follows: 

1. By Engineer: 

a. Workers’ Compensation:  Statutory  

b. Employer’s Liability -- 

1) Bodily injury, each accident: $100,000 
2) Bodily injury by disease, each employee: $100,000 
3) Bodily injury/disease, aggregate: $500,000 

 
c. General Liability -- 

1) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): $1,000,000 
2) General Aggregate:                 $2,000,000 

 
d. Excess or Umbrella Liability --   

1) Per Occurrence: $5,000,000 
2) General Aggregate: $5,000,000 

 
e. Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 

 $1,000,000 
 

f. Professional Liability – 

1) Each Claim Made $2,000,000 
2) Annual Aggregate $4,000,000 

 
g. Other (specify):              $None 

 
2. By Owner: Deleted 

a. Workers’ Compensation:  Statutory  



 

Exhibit G – Insurance. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 2 

b. Employer’s Liability -- 

1) Bodily injury, Each Accident $[            ] 
2) Bodily injury by Disease, Each Employee $[            ] 
3) Bodily injury/Disease, Aggregate  $[            ] 

 
c. General Liability -- 

1) General Aggregate:                 $[            ] 
2) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): $[            ] 

  
 

d. Excess Umbrella Liability 

1) Per Occurrence: $[            ] 
2) General Aggregate: $[            ] 

 
e. Automobile Liability – Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 

  $[            ] 
 

f. Other (specify):              $[            ] 

 
B. Additional Insureds: Deleted 

1. The following individuals or entities are to be listed on Owner’s general liability policies 
of insurance as additional insureds: 

 
 
a. 

a.   
 
[            ] 

  Engineer 
 
 
b. 

  
 
[            ] 

  Engineer’s Consultant 
 
 
c. 

  
 
[            ] 

  Engineer’s Consultant 

d.  [            ] 

  [other] 
 

2. During the term of this Agreement the Engineer shall notify Owner of any other 
Consultant to be listed as an additional insured on Owner’s general liability policies of 
insurance. 

3. The Owner shall be listed on Engineer’s general liability policy as provided in 
Paragraph 6.05.A. 



 

Exhibit H - Dispute Resolution. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                     Page 1 



 

 

Exhibit I - Limitations on Liability. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                          and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                   Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT I, consisting of 1 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ].  
 

 

Limitations of Liability 

 
Paragraph 6.11 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 

A. Limitation of Engineer’s Liability 

1. Engineer’s Liability Limited to Amount of Engineer’s Compensation:  To the fullest extent 
permitted byLaws and Regulations, and notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Engineer and Engineer’s officers, 
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants, to Owner and 
anyone claiming by, through, or under Owner for any and all claims, losses, costs, or 
damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the Project 
or the Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited to the negligence, 
professional errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, indemnity 
obligations, or warranty express or implied of Engineer or Engineer’s officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, employees, or Consultants shall not exceed the total 
compensation received by Engineer under this Agreement. 

 

 

E. Indemnification by Owner:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, 
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants from and against any and all claims, costs, 
losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court, arbitration, or other dispute 
resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the Project, provided that any such claim, 
cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death or to injury 
to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use 
resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of 
Owner or Owner’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, consultants, 
or others retained by or under contract to the Owner with respect to this Agreement or to 
the Project. 

 



 

Exhibit J - Special Provisions. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                          and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                   Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT J, consisting of 1 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ].  
 
 

Special Provisions 

 
Paragraph(s) Article 8 – Exhibits and Special Provisions, 8.01. J Special Provisions of the Agreement 
is/are amended to include the following agreement(s) of the parties: 
 

1. USDA RD Instruction 1940-Q, Exhibit A, Certification for Contracts, Grants and Loans, 
Disclosure of Lobbying Activities. 

2. USDA RUS Bulletin 1780-26, Exhibit C, RUS Certification Page, Summary of Engineering 
Fees.  

3. Snyder & Associates: Standard Professional Services Agreement – Dated November 16, 
2020  

 
 
 



 

Exhibit K – Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT K, consisting of 2 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ].  
 

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT 
Amendment No. _____ 

 
The Effective Date of this Amendment is: ______. 

 
Background Data  
  
 Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement:  
 
 Owner: 
 
 Engineer: 
 
 Project: 
   
Nature of Amendment: [Check those that are applicable and delete those that are inapplicable.] 

 
____ Additional Services to be performed by Engineer 

____ Modifications to services of Engineer 

____ Modifications to responsibilities of Owner 

____ Modifications of payment to Engineer 

____ Modifications to time(s) for rendering services 

____ Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

Description of Modifications: 

Here describe the modifications, in as much specificity and detail as needed.  Use an 
attachment if necessary. 

 
Agreement Summary: 
 
     Original agreement amount:    $_____________ 
     Net change for prior amendments:               $_____________ 
     This amendment amount:                  $_____________ 
     Adjusted Agreement amount:              $_____________ 
 
     Change in time for services (days or date, as applicable): ______ 
 
 



 

Exhibit K – Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 2 

The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Agreement, 
including those set forth in Exhibit C. 
 
Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this 
Amendment.  All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this or previous Amendments remain in 
effect.   
 
OWNER:  ENGINEER: 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

 
By: 

 
 

Print 
name: 

  Print 
name: 

 

 
Title: 

 
 

  
Title: 

 
 

 
Date Signed: 

 
 

  
Date Signed: 

 
 

 

 



RD Instruction 194O-Q 
Exhibit A-I 

 
 

CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS AND LOANS 
 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant or Federal loan, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant or 
loan. 

 
2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 
of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant or loan, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in 
accordance with its instructions. 

 
3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including contracts, subcontracts, and 
subgrants under grants and loans) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.  Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
 
 
 
   _________________________________________  ________________________________ 

(name) (date) 
 
 
  Lindsay Beaman, PE, Regional Manager 

 

(title) 
 
 
 
 
 
(08-21-91) PN 171 (4-7-97) SPN 508 

lbeaman
Stamp

lbeaman
Text Box
September 13, 2022

lbeaman
Text Box
Business Unit Leader



Rural Development  Instruction 1940-Q 
Exhibit A, page 16 
6744 Federal Register/Vol. 55. No. 38/Monday, February 26, 1990/Rules and Regulations 

 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
 

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or 
receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352.  The filing of a 
form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with a covered Federal action.  Use the SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet for additional information if the space 
on the form is inadequate.  Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the 
implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information. 

 
1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a 

covered Federal action. 
 

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 
 

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report.  If this a follow-up report caused by a material change to the information 
previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred.  Enter the date of the last previously submitted 
report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action. 

 
4. Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the reporting entity.  Include Congressional District, if known.  Check 

the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. 
Identify the tier of the subawardee e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier.  Subawards include but are not l imited 
to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

 
5. If the organizations filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee", then enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code 

of the prime Federal recipient.  Include Congressional District, if known. 
 

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment.  Include at least one organizational level below 
the agency name, if known.  For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

 
7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1).  If known, enter the full Catalog of 

Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments. 
 

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g. Request for 
Proposal (PFP) number, Invitation for Bid (IFB) number, grant announcement number, the contract, grant, or loan award 
number, the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency).  Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001." 

 
9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal 

amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5. 
 

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity in item 4 to 
influence the covered Federal action. 

 
(b)   Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a).  Enter Last 

Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI). 
 

11. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the lobbying entity 
(item 10).  Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply.  If this 
is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made. 

 
12. Check the appropriate box(es).  Check all boxes that apply.  If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the 

nature and value of the in-kind payment. 
 

13. Check the appropriate box(es).  Check all boxes that apply.  If other, specify nature. 
 

14. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expected to perform, and 
the date(s) of any services rendered.  Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with 
Federal officials.  Identify the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of 
Congress that were contacted. 

 
15. Check whether or not a SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet(s) is attached. 

 
16. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number. 

 

 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including time for  
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing 
the collection of information.  Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, 
including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348 -0046), 
Washington, D.C. 20503. 



RUS Bulletin 1780-26 
Exhibit C 

Page 1 

 

 
 

RUS CERTIFICATION PAGE 

 

 

PROJECT NAME: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements  
 
 

The Engineer and Owner hereby concur in the Funding Agency required revisions to E-500 

(2014).  In addition, Engineer certifies to the following: 

 

All modifications required by RUS Bulletin 1780-26 have been made in accordance with the 

terms of the license agreement, which states in part that the Engineer “must plainly show all 

changes to the Standard EJCDC Text, using ‘Track Changes’ (redline/strikeout), highlighting, or 

other means of clearly indicating additions and deletions.” Such other means may include 

attachments indicating changes (e.g. Supplementary Conditions modifying the General 

Conditions). 

 

 

SUMMARY OF ENGINEERING FEES 

 

Note that the fees indicated on this table are only a summary and if there is a conflict with any 

provision of Exhibit C, the provisions there overrule the values on this table. Fees shown in will 

not be exceeded without the concurrence of the Agency. 
 

Basic Services  $ 1,140,000  

Resident Project Observation 
 

$ 540,000  

Additional Services 
 

$ 0  

 
TOTAL: $ 1,680,000  



RUS Bulletin 1780-26 
Exhibit C 

Page 2 

 

 

Any adjustments to engineering fees or changes to maximum estimated values must be approved 

by the Agency and must include a table of what specific category or categories of fees are being 

changed, what fees were before and after the change, and the resulting total fee. 
 

 

 
 

Engineer Date 
 

 

 
 

Name and Title 
 

 

 
 

Owner Date 
 

 

 
 

Name and Title 
 

 

 

Agency Concurrence: 

 

As lender or insurer of funds to defray the costs of this Contract, and without liability for any 

payments thereunder, the Agency hereby concurs in the form, content, and execution of this 

Agreement. 
 

 

 
 

Agency Representative Date 
 

 

 
 

Name and Title 

lbeaman
Stamp

lbeaman
Text Box
Lindsay Beaman, Business Unit Leader

lbeaman
Text Box
Sept 13, 2022



Rev 04-16-19   Page 1 of 2 
V:\Projects\2020\120.1109.08\Administration\PSASUPP01_FundingAdditionalScope.docm 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES # 01 

 

To: Snyder & Associates, Inc.                    
5005 Bowling Street, SW, Suite A            
Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 

Attn: Lindsay Beaman, Business Unit Leader  
Phone: 319.362.9394  

Fax: 319.362.9448 

This is authorization for Snyder & Associates, Inc. to proceed with the following described additional services. 

Client: City of Monticello 

Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements 

S&A Project Number: 120.1109.08 Original Agreement Date:  November 16, 2020 

 

DESCRIPTION OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES: 

The additional services presented herein reflect the contractual requirements for the City to utilize USDA 
funding for the remaining engineering services and construction of this project. The engineering design 
services are being amended to modify the previously completed design elements which now must 
accommodate critical treatment infrastructure to be protected to at least 1 foot above the 500-year flood 
event. Furthermore, at this time the engineering fees for construction administration and construction 
observation must be included. Fees for construction observation are based upon the USDA requirement of 
having a full-time representative onsite, billing on an hourly basis. This amendment includes the following 
USDA-required contract and attachments: 1) EJCDC E-500 “Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for 
Professional Services” 2) RUS Certification Page 3) Certification for Contracts, Grants, and Loans. Upon 
execution of this supplemental agreement, the attached USDA-required contract language will supersede the 
contract language of the original agreement between the Client and Professional, dated November 16, 2020.   

The amendments to fees can be found within, and generally summarized as follows: 

Design Services (Included within previous Agreement November 16, 2020): $565,000 Lump Sum* 

                *$502,850 has been invoiced and paid to date 

Supplemental Design Services – New USDA Required Design Updates: $99,300 Lump Sum 

Bidding and Negotiating Phase (Included within previous Agreement November 16, 2020): $15,000 Lump 
Sum 

Construction Administration Phase – New Fee (Scope included within previous Agreement November 
16, 2020): $450,700 Lump Sum 

Post-Construction Phase – New Scope and Fee: $10,000 Lump Sum 

Resident Project Representative – New Fee (Scope included within previous Agreement November 16, 
2020): $540,000 Estimated Maximum – Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment (EJCDC Exhibit C - 
RPR-2)   

 

   Lump Sum in the amount of: $    

 

   Hourly plus expenses per original agreement or attached fee schedule, estimated budget: $       

 

   Document attached: EJCDC E-500 Agreement Form, RD Instruction 1940-Q Exhibit A-1, RUS 
Certification Page 

 

 

 



Rev 04-16-19   Page 2 of 2 
V:\Projects\2020\120.1109.08\Administration\PSASUPP01_FundingAdditionalScope.docm 

 

The undersigned, on behalf of the Client, understands and agrees that the services described in this 
Supplemental are additional services, scope of which is not contained within the original scope of services 
defined in the original agreement.  The Additional Services in this Supplemental are subject to the general 
conditions contained in the original Professional Services Agreement. 

       (Client) 

  

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. (Professional) 
(Type or Print Name above line)    

By:  
 

By:  

 (Authorized Agent)   (Authorized Agent) 

        
 Lindsay Beaman, P.E. 

 (Printed or typed signature)   (Printed or typed signature) 

Date:       
 

Date: September 13, 2022 

  
 

Route executed to:        

         

 

lbeaman
Stamp



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 1 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

 
Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:   

ARTICLE 1 –  SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

1.01 Scope 

A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth herein and in 
Exhibit A. 

ARTICLE 2 –  OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.01 General 

A. Owner shall have the responsibilities set forth herein and in Exhibit B. 

B. Owner shall pay Engineer as set forth in Article 4 and Exhibit C. 

C. Owner shall be responsible for all requirements and instructions that it furnishes to 
Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, and for the accuracy and completeness of all 
programs, reports, data, and other information furnished by Owner to Engineer pursuant 
to this Agreement.  Engineer may use and rely upon such requirements, programs, 
instructions, reports, data, and information in performing or furnishing services under this 
Agreement, subject to any express limitations or reservations applicable to the furnished 
items. 

D. Owner shall give prompt written notice to Engineer whenever Owner observes or 
otherwise becomes aware of:  

1.  any development that affects the scope or time of performance of Engineer’s services;  

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of   (“Effective Date”) between 

City of Monticello, 200 East First Street, Monticello, IA 52310  (“Owner”) and 

Snyder & Associates, Inc; 5005 Bowling St. SW, Suite A, Cedar Rapids, IA 52403 (“Engineer”). 

 
Owner's Project, of which Engineer's services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as follows: 
Wastewater Treatment Improvements – Monticello, IA 

("Project"). 

Other terms used in this Agreement are defined in Article 7.  The EJCDC Agreement replaces Snyder & Associates 

Standard Professional Services Agreement dated November 16, 2020 

Engineer's services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows:   
Basic Services, Project Representative Services and Additional Services Pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit A.            

 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 2 

2. the presence at the Site of any Constituent of Concern; or  

3. any relevant, material defect or nonconformance in: (a) Engineer’s services, (b) the 
Work, (c) the performance of any Constructor, or (d) Owner’s performance of its 
responsibilities under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3 –  SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES 

3.01 Commencement 

A. Engineer is authorized to begin rendering services as of the Effective Date. 

3.02 Time for Completion 

A. Engineer shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time.  Specific periods of time 
for rendering services, or specific dates by which services are to be completed, are 
provided in Exhibit A, and are hereby agreed to be reasonable. 

B. If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly 
and continuous progress of Engineer’s services is impaired, or Engineer’s services are 
delayed or suspended, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates 
and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably.   

C. If Owner authorizes changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project or Engineer’s 
services, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts 
of Engineer’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 

D. Owner shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities in a timely manner so 
as not to delay the Engineer’s performance of its services.   

E. If Engineer fails, through its own fault, to complete the performance required in this 
Agreement within the time set forth, as duly adjusted, then Owner shall be entitled, as its 
sole remedy, to the recovery of direct damages, if any, resulting from such failure. 

ARTICLE 4 –  INVOICES AND PAYMENTS 

4.01 Invoices 

A. Preparation and Submittal of Invoices:  Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with 
its standard invoicing practices and the terms of Exhibit C. Invoices must include a 
breakdown of services provided. Engineer shall submit its invoices to Owner on a 
monthly basis.  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.   

4.02 Payments 

A. Application to Interest and Principal:  Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to 
Engineer and then to principal.   

B. Failure to Pay:  If Owner fails to make any payment due Engineer for services and 
expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then: 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 3 

1. amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum 
rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day; and 

2. Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under 
this Agreement until Owner has paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and 
other related charges.  Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such 
suspension. 

C. Disputed Invoices:  If Owner disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then 
Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in writing of the specific basis for doing so, may 
withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the undisputed portion subject to 
the terms of Paragraph 4.01.   

D. Sales or Use Taxes:  If after the Effective Date any governmental entity takes a legislative 
action that imposes additional sales or use taxes on Engineer’s services or compensation 
under this Agreement, then Engineer may invoice such additional sales or use taxes for 
reimbursement by Owner. Owner shall reimburse Engineer for the cost of such invoiced 
additional sales or use taxes; such reimbursement shall be in addition to the 
compensation to which Engineer is entitled under the terms of Exhibit C. 

ARTICLE 5 –  OPINIONS OF COST 

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost 

A. Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable Construction Cost are to be made on the basis of 
Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction 
industry.  However, because Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment, or services furnished by others, or over contractors’ methods of determining 
prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of 
probable Construction Cost prepared by Engineer.  If Owner requires greater assurance as 
to probable Construction Cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost 
estimate. Opinions of Probable Cost and any revisions thereof should reflect 
compliance with American Iron & Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 of 
Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, 
Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference.  

5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit 

A. If a Construction Cost limit is established between Owner and Engineer, such Construction 
Cost limit and a statement of Engineer’s rights and responsibilities with respect thereto 
will be specifically set forth in Exhibit F to this Agreement. 

5.03 Opinions of Total Project Costs 

A. The services, if any, of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs shall be limited to 
assisting the Owner in tabulating the various categories that comprise Total Project Costs.  
Engineer assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any opinions of Total Project 

Costs.  Opinions of Total Project Costs and any revisions thereof should reflect 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 4 

compliance with American Iron & Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 of 
Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, 
Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic 
preference. 

ARTICLE 6 –  GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 

6.01 Standards of Performance 

A. Standard of Care:  The standard of care for all professional engineering and related 
services performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and 
skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.  Engineer makes no warranties, 
express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services 
performed or furnished by Engineer.  

B. Technical Accuracy:  Owner shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies in the 
technical accuracy of Engineer’s services.  Engineer shall correct deficiencies in technical 
accuracy without additional compensation, unless such corrective action is directly 
attributable to deficiencies in Owner-furnished information. 

C. Consultants:  Engineer may retain such Consultants as Engineer deems necessary to assist 
in the performance or furnishing of the services, subject to reasonable, timely, and 
substantive objections by Owner.   

D. Reliance on Others:  Subject to the standard of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, Engineer 
and its Consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or 
customarily furnished by others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, 
manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of technical standards.   

E. Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures: 

1. Engineer and Owner shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations. 

2. Engineer shall comply with any and all policies, procedures, and instructions of Owner 
that are applicable to Engineer's performance of services under this Agreement and that 
Owner provides to Engineer in writing, subject to the standard of care set forth in 
Paragraph 6.01.A, and to the extent compliance is not inconsistent with professional 
practice requirements. 

3. This Agreement is based on Laws and Regulations and Owner-provided written policies 
and procedures as of the Effective Date.  The following may be the basis for 
modifications to Owner’s responsibilities or to Engineer’s scope of services, times of 
performance, or compensation:  

a.  changes after the Effective Date to Laws and Regulations; 

b.  the receipt by Engineer after the Effective Date of Owner-provided written policies 
and procedures;  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 5 

c. changes after the Effective Date to Owner-provided written policies or procedures.  

F. Engineer shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom requested, that 
would result in the Engineer having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of 
conditions whose existence the Engineer cannot ascertain.  Owner agrees not to make 
resolution of any dispute with the Engineer or payment of any amount due to the 
Engineer in any way contingent upon the Engineer signing any such document. 

G. The general conditions for any construction contract documents prepared hereunder are 
to be EJCDC® C-700 “Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract” (2013 
Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, unless 
expressly indicated otherwise in Exhibit J or elsewhere in this Agreement. 

H. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any 
Constructor’s work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used 
by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security 
or safety at the Site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply with Laws and 
Regulations applicable to that Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 
Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor. 

I. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes 
responsibility for any Constructor’s, failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance 
with the Construction Contract Documents.  

J. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the Construction 
Contract Documents, or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of 
the Construction Contract Documents, other than those made by Engineer or its 
Consultants. 

K. Engineer is not required to provide and does not have any responsibility for surety 
bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or 
enforcement of construction insurance or surety bonding requirements. 

L. Engineer’s services do not include providing legal advice or representation.   

M. Engineer’s services do not include (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for purposes of the 
registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, or (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or 
other person or entity, regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of 
municipal securities, including advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms, or 
other similar matters concerning such products or issuances. 

N. While at the Site, Engineer, its Consultants, and their employees and representatives shall 
comply with the applicable requirements of Contractor's and Owner's safety programs of 
which Engineer has been informed in writing. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 6 

6.02 Design Without Construction Phase Services – N/A 

A. Engineer shall be responsible only for those Construction Phase services expressly 
required of Engineer in Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05.  With the exception of such expressly 
required services, Engineer shall have no design, Shop Drawing review, or other 
obligations during construction, and Owner assumes all responsibility for the application 
and interpretation of the Construction Contract Documents, review and response to 
Contractor claims, Construction Contract administration, processing of Change Orders and 
submittals, revisions to the Construction Contract Documents during construction, 
construction observation and review, review of Contractor’s payment applications, and all 
other necessary Construction Phase administrative, engineering, and professional services.  
Owner waives all claims against the Engineer that may be connected in any way to 
Construction Phase administrative, engineering, or professional services except for those 
services that are expressly required of Engineer in Exhibit A. 

6.03 Use of Documents 

A. All Documents are instruments of service, and Engineer shall retain an ownership and 
property interest therein (including the copyright and the right of reuse at the discretion 
of the Engineer) whether or not the Project is completed.  

B. If Engineer is required to prepare or furnish Drawings or Specifications under this 
Agreement, Engineer shall deliver to Owner at least one original printed record version of 
such Drawings and Specifications, signed and sealed according to applicable Laws and 
Regulations. 

C. Owner may make and retain copies of Documents for information and reference in 
connection with the use of the Documents on the Project.  Engineer grants Owner a 
limited license to use the Documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and for 
related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by Engineer of full payment due and owing 
for all services relating to preparation of the Documents, and subject to the following 
limitations: (1) Owner acknowledges that such Documents are not intended or 
represented to be suitable for use on the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use 
or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any 
other use or purpose, without written verification or adaptation by Engineer; (2) any such 
use or reuse, or any modification of the Documents, without written verification, 
completion, or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, 
will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer or to its 
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants; (3) Owner 
shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of 
the Documents without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and 
(4) such limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. 

D. If Engineer at Owner’s request verifies the suitability of the Documents, completes them, 
or adapts them for extensions of the Project or for any other purpose, then Owner shall 
compensate Engineer at rates or in an amount to be agreed upon by Owner and Engineer. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 7 

6.04 Electronic Transmittals  

A. Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, 
Documents, text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital 
format, either directly, or through access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a 
mutually agreeable protocol.  

B. If this Agreement does not establish protocols for electronic or digital transmittals, then 
Owner and Engineer may jointly develop such protocols.  

C. When transmitting items in electronic media or digital format, the transmitting party 
makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of the 
items resulting from the recipient’s use of software application packages, operating 
systems, or computer hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of 
the items, or from those established in applicable transmittal protocols. 

6.05 Insurance 

A. Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. Engineer shall 
cause Owner to be listed as an additional insured on any applicable general liability 
insurance policy carried by Engineer.   

B. Owner shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G. Owner shall cause 
Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional insureds on any general liability 
policies carried by Owner, which are applicable to the Project. Deleted 

C. Owner shall require Contractor to purchase and maintain policies of insurance covering 
workers' compensation, general liability, motor vehicle damage and injuries, and other 
insurance necessary to protect Owner's and Engineer's interests in the Project.  Owner 
shall require Contractor to cause Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional 
insureds with respect to such liability insurance purchased and maintained by Contractor 
for the Project. 

D. Owner and Engineer shall each deliver to the other certificates of insurance evidencing the 
coverages indicated in Exhibit G.  Such certificates shall be furnished prior to 
commencement of Engineer’s services and at renewals thereafter during the life of the 
Agreement. 

E. All policies of property insurance relating to the Project, including but not limited to any 
builder’s risk policy, shall allow for waiver of subrogation rights and contain provisions to 
the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no 
rights of recovery against any insured thereunder or against Engineer or its Consultants. 
Owner and Engineer waive all rights against each other, Contractor, the Consultants, and 
the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out 
of, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by any builder’s risk policy 
and any other property insurance relating to the Project. Owner and Engineer shall take 
appropriate measures in other Project-related contracts to secure waivers of rights 
consistent with those set forth in this paragraph.  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 8 

F. All policies of insurance shall contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage 
afforded will not be canceled or reduced in limits by endorsement, and that renewal will 
not be refused, until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the primary 
insured. Upon receipt of such notice, the receiving party shall promptly forward a copy of 
the notice to the other party to this Agreement.  

G. At any time, Owner may request that Engineer or its Consultants, at Owner’s sole expense, 
provide additional insurance coverage, increased limits, or revised deductibles that are 
more protective than those specified in Exhibit G.  If so requested by Owner, and if 
commercially available, Engineer shall obtain and shall require its Consultants to obtain 
such additional insurance coverage, different limits, or revised deductibles for such 
periods of time as requested by Owner, and Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate 
these requirements. 

6.06 Suspension and Termination 

A. Suspension: 

1. By Owner:  Owner may suspend the Project for up to 90 days upon seven days written 
notice to Engineer.   

2. By Engineer:  Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend 
services under this Agreement if Owner has failed to pay Engineer for invoiced services 
and expenses, as set forth in Paragraph 4.02.B, or in response to the presence of 
Constituents of Concern at the Site, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D.  

B. Termination:  The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be 
terminated: 

1. For cause, 

a. by either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the 
other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the 
terminating party. 

b. by Engineer: 

1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or 
perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed 
professional; or  

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s services for the Project are 
delayed or suspended for more than 90 days for reasons beyond Engineer’s 
control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents 
of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.D. 

3) Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of such termination. 

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate under 
Paragraph 6.06.B.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 9 

receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds 
diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof; 
provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be 
reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently 
attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, 
then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more 
than, 60 days after the date of receipt of the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer’s receipt of notice from Owner.   

C. Effective Date of Termination:  The terminating party under Paragraph 6.06.B may set the 
effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to 
allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and equipment from the Site, to complete tasks 
whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and 
uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly files. 

D. Payments Upon Termination: 

1. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 6.06, Engineer will be entitled to 
invoice Owner and to receive full payment for all services performed or furnished in 
accordance with this Agreement and all Reimbursable Expenses incurred through the 
effective date of termination.  Upon making such payment, Owner shall have the limited 
right to the use of Documents, at Owner’s sole risk, subject to the provisions of 
Paragraph 6.03. 

2. In the event of termination by Owner for convenience or by Engineer for cause, Engineer 
shall be entitled, in addition to invoicing for those items identified in Paragraph 6.06.D.1, 
to invoice Owner and receive payment of a reasonable amount for services and 
expenses directly attributable to termination, both before and after the effective date of 
termination, such as reassignment of personnel, costs of terminating contracts with 
Engineer’s Consultants, and other related close-out costs, using methods and rates for 
Additional Services as set forth in Exhibit C. 

6.07 Controlling Law 

This Agreement is to be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the state in which the 
Project is located.  

6.08 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 

A. Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and 
legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 
6.08.B the assigns of Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this 
Agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives 
(and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and 
obligations of this Agreement. 

B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest 
(including, but without limitation, money that is due or may become due) in this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other party, except to the extent that any 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
10 

assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law.  Unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge 
the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement: 

1. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or give rise to any duty 
owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity, or 
to any surety for or employee of any of them. 

2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole 
and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party.   

3. Owner agrees that the substance of the provisions of this Paragraph 6.08.C shall appear 
in the Construction Contract Documents. 

6.09 Dispute Resolution 

A. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a 
period of 30 days from the date of notice prior to invoking the procedures of Exhibit H or 
other provisions of this Agreement, or exercising their rights at law.   

B. If the parties fail to resolve a dispute through negotiation under Paragraph 6.09.A, then 
either or both may invoke the procedures of Exhibit H.  If Exhibit H is not included, or if no 
dispute resolution method is specified in Exhibit H, then the parties may exercise their 
rights at law.   

6.10 Environmental Condition of Site 

A. Owner represents to Engineer that as of the Effective Date to the best of Owner’s 
knowledge no Constituents of Concern, other than those disclosed in writing to Engineer, 
exist at or adjacent to the Site.   

B. If Engineer encounters or learns of an undisclosed Constituent of Concern at the Site, then 
Engineer shall notify (1) Owner and (2) appropriate governmental officials if Engineer 
reasonably concludes that doing so is required by applicable Laws or Regulations. 

C. It is acknowledged by both parties that Engineer’s scope of services does not include any 
services related to unknown or undisclosed Constituents of Concern.  If Engineer or any 
other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals an undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then 
Owner shall promptly determine whether to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such 
condition or take any necessary corrective action. 

D. If investigative or remedial action, or other professional services, are necessary with 
respect to undisclosed Constituents of Concern, or if investigative or remedial action 
beyond that reasonably contemplated is needed to address a disclosed or known 
Constituent of Concern, then Engineer may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of 
the Project affected thereby until such portion of the Project is no longer affected.  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
11 

E. If the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of Concern adversely affects the 
performance of Engineer’s services under this Agreement, then the Engineer shall have 
the option of (1) accepting an equitable adjustment in its compensation or in the time of 
completion, or both; or (2) terminating this Agreement for cause on seven days notice. 

F. Owner acknowledges that Engineer is performing professional services for Owner and that 
Engineer is not and shall not be required to become an "owner," “arranger,” “operator,” 
“generator,” or “transporter” of hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, which 
are or may be encountered at or near the Site in connection with Engineer’s activities 
under this Agreement. 

6.11 Indemnification and Mutual Waiver 

A. Indemnification by Engineer:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and Owner’s officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, consultants, and employees, from losses, damages, and 
judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’ fees and expenses) arising 
from third-party claims or actions relating to the Project, provided that any such claim, 
action, loss, damages, or judgment is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), 
including the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any 
negligent act or omission of Engineer or Engineer’s officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, or Consultants. This indemnification provision is subject to and 
limited by the provisions, if any, agreed to by Owner and Engineer in Exhibit I, 
“Limitations of Liability." 

B. Indemnification by Owner:  Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its 
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants as required by 
Laws and Regulations and to the extent (if any) required in Exhibit I, “Limitations of 
Liability.” 

C. Environmental Indemnification:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, 
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants from all claims, costs, losses, damages, 
actions, and judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys fees and 
expenses) caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from a Constituent of Concern 
at, on, or under the Site, provided that (1) any such claim, cost, loss, damages, action, or 
judgment is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use 
resulting therefrom, and (2) nothing in this paragraph shall obligate Owner to indemnify 
any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's 
own negligence or willful misconduct. 

D. No Defense Obligation:  The indemnification commitments in this Agreement do not 
include a defense obligation by the indemnitor unless such obligation is expressly stated. 

E. Percentage Share of Negligence:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,  
a party’s total liability to  the other party and anyone claiming by, through, or under the 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
12 

other party for any  cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of the party 
and in part by the negligence of  the other party or any other negligent entity or individual, 
shall not exceed the percentage share that the party’s negligence bears to the total 
negligence of Owner, Engineer, and all other negligent entities and individuals. 

F. Mutual Waiver:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner and 
Engineer waive against each other, and the other’s employees, officers, directors, 
members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlement 
to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or 
in any way related to this Agreement or the Project, from any cause or causes.   

6.12 Records Retention 

A. Engineer shall maintain on file in legible form, for a period of five years following 
completion or termination of its services, all Documents, records (including cost records), 
and design calculations related to Engineer’s services or pertinent to Engineer’s 
performance under this Agreement.  Upon Owner’s request, Engineer shall provide a copy 
of any such item to Owner at cost. 

6.13 Miscellaneous Provisions  

A. Notices:  Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, addressed to the 
appropriate party at its address on the signature page and given personally, by registered 
or certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial courier service.  All notices shall be 
effective upon the date of receipt. 

B. Survival:  All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and limitations of liability 
included in this Agreement will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 

C. Severability:  Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable 
under any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall 
continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Engineer, which agree that the 
Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a 
valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention 
of the stricken provision. 

D. Waiver:  A party’s non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that 
provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this 
Agreement. 

E. Accrual of Claims:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, all causes of 
action arising under this Agreement shall be deemed to have accrued, and all statutory 
periods of limitation shall commence, no later than the date of Substantial Completion. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
13 

ARTICLE 7 –  DEFINITIONS 

7.01 Defined Terms 

A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto) terms (including the 
singular and plural forms) printed with initial capital letters have the meanings indicated in 
the text above, in the exhibits, or in the following definitions: 

1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of bids which 
clarify, correct, or change the bidding requirements or the proposed Construction 
Contract Documents. 

2. Additional Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer 
in accordance with Part 2 of Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

3. Agreement—This written contract for professional services between Owner and 
Engineer, including all exhibits identified in Paragraph 8.01 and any duly executed 
amendments. 

4. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by 
Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and 
which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the 
Construction Contract. 

5. Basic Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer in 
accordance with Part 1 of Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

6. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an 
addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Construction Contract 
Price or the Construction Contract Times, or other revision to the Construction Contract, 
issued on or after the effective date of the Construction Contract.  

7. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with 
the procedural requirements set forth in the Construction Contract, seeking an 
adjustment in Construction Contract Price or Construction Contract Times, or both; 
contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the 
Construction Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Construction 
Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief 
with respect to the terms of the Construction Contract. 

8. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated 
biphenyls (PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material 
of any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to 
(a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 
U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 
U.S.C. §§5501 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 
et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the 
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; 
or (g) any other federal, State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
14 

resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or 
standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, 
or material. 

9. Construction Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between the Owner 
and Contractor concerning the Work. 

10. Construction Contract Documents—Those items designated as “Contract Documents” in 
the Construction Contract, and which together comprise the Construction Contract.   

11. Construction Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for 
completion of the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 

12. Construction Contract Times—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor 
shall:  (a) achieve milestones, if any, in the Construction Contract; (b) achieve Substantial 
Completion; and (c) complete the Work.  

13. Construction Cost—The cost to Owner of the construction of those portions of the entire 
Project designed or specified by or for Engineer under this Agreement, including 
construction labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, and 
allowances for contingencies.  Construction Cost does not include costs of services of 
Engineer or other design professionals and consultants; cost of land or rights-of-way, or 
compensation for damages to property; Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance 
counseling, or auditing services; interest or financing charges incurred in connection 
with the Project; or the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner. 
Construction Cost is one of the items comprising Total Project Costs. 

14. Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents, 
representatives, and Consultants), performing or supporting construction activities 
relating to the Project, including but not limited to Contractors, Subcontractors, 
Suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, other contractors, construction 
managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees, agents, and 
representatives of any or all of them.  

15. Consultants—Individuals or entities having a contract with Engineer to furnish services 
with respect to this Project as Engineer’s independent professional associates and 
consultants; subcontractors; or vendors.  

16. Contractor—The entity or individual with which Owner enters into a Construction 
Contract. 

17. Documents—Data, reports, Drawings, Specifications, Record Drawings, building 
information models, civil integrated management models, and other deliverables, 
whether in printed or electronic format, provided or furnished in appropriate phases by 
Engineer to Owner pursuant to this Agreement. 

18. Drawings—That part of the Construction Contract Documents that graphically shows the 
scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.   



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
15 

19. Effective Date—The date indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes effective, but 
if no such date is indicated, the date on which this Agreement is signed and delivered by 
the last of the parties to sign and deliver. 

20. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement. 

21. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the 
Work but does not change the Construction Contract Price or the Construction Contract 
Times. 

22. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, 
authorities, and courts having jurisdiction. 

23. Owner—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement and for which 
Engineer's services are to be performed.  Unless indicated otherwise, this is the same 
individual or entity that will enter into any Construction Contracts concerning the 
Project. 

24. Project—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors, 
and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and 
start-up, and of which the services to be performed or furnished by Engineer under this 
Agreement are a part. 

25. Record Drawings—Drawings depicting the completed Project, or a specific portion of the 
completed Project, prepared by Engineer as an Additional Service and based on 
Contractor's record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work 
Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications, as 
delivered to Engineer and annotated by Contractor to show changes made during 
construction. 

26. Reimbursable Expenses—The expenses incurred directly by Engineer in connection with 
the performing or furnishing of Basic Services and Additional Services for the Project.  

27. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned to 
assist Engineer at the Site during the Construction Phase.  As used herein, the term 
Resident Project Representative or "RPR" includes any assistants or field staff of 
Resident Project Representative. The duties and responsibilities of the Resident Project 
Representative, if any, are as set forth in Exhibit D.  

28. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are 
representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which 
such portion of the Work will be judged. 

29. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or 
information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and 
submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether 
approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Construction Contract Documents. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
16 

30. Site—Lands or areas to be indicated in the Construction Contract Documents as being 
furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way 
and easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the 
use of Contractor. 

31. Specifications—The part of the Construction Contract Documents that consists of 
written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship 
as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters 
applicable to the Work.  

32. Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with 
any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.  

33. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has 
progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part 
thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the 
purposes for which it is intended. The terms “substantially complete” and “substantially 
completed” as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof. 

34. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor 
having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials 
or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor. 

35. Total Project Costs—The total cost of planning, studying, designing, constructing, testing, 
commissioning, and start-up of the Project, including Construction Cost and all other 
Project labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, allowances 
for contingencies, and the total costs of services of Engineer or other design 
professionals and consultants, together with such other Project-related costs that Owner 
furnishes for inclusion, including but not limited to cost of land, rights-of-way, 
compensation for damages to properties, Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance 
counseling, and auditing services, interest and financing charges incurred in connection 
with the Project, and the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner.  

36. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof 
required to be provided under the Construction Contract Documents.  Work includes 
and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation 
necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all 
materials and equipment into such construction; and may include related services such 
as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Construction Contract 
Documents. 

37. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the effective 
date of the Construction Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer, 
ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work. 

38. Agency – The Rural Utilities Service or any designated representative of Rural Utilities 
Service, including USDA, Rural development. 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
17 

B. Day: 

1. The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next 
midnight. 

ARTICLE 8 –  EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

8.01 Exhibits Included: 

A. Exhibit A, Engineer’s Services.  

B. Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities.  

C. Exhibit C, Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.  

D. Exhibit D, Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project 
Representative.  

E. Exhibit E, Notice of Acceptability of Work.  

F. Exhibit F, Construction Cost Limit. (Not Used) 

G. Exhibit G, Insurance.  

H. Exhibit H, Dispute Resolution. (Not Used) 

I. Exhibit I, Limitations of Liability.  

J. Exhibit J, Special Provisions.  

K. Exhibit K, Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.  

8.02 Total Agreement 

A. This Agreement, (together with the exhibits included above) constitutes the entire 
agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral 
understandings.  This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or 
canceled by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. Amendments should be 
based whenever possible on the format of Exhibit K to this Agreement. 

8.03 Designated Representatives 

A. With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall designate specific 
individuals to act as Engineer’s and Owner’s representatives with respect to the services to 
be performed or furnished by Engineer and responsibilities of Owner under this 
Agreement.  Such an individual shall have authority to transmit instructions, receive 
information, and render decisions relative to this Agreement on behalf of the respective 
party whom the individual represents.  



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
18 

8.04 Engineer's Certifications 

A. Engineer certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, or coercive practices in 
competing for or in executing the Agreement.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.04: 

1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value 
likely to influence the action of a public official in the selection process or in the 
Agreement execution; 

2. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the selection process or the execution of the Agreement to the detriment of 
Owner, or (b) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons 
or their property to influence their participation in the selection process or affect the 
execution of the Agreement. 

8.05 Federal Requirements 

A. Agency Concurrence. Signature of a duly authorized representative of the Agency in the 
space provided on the signature page of EJCDC form E-500 hereof does not constitute a 
commitment to provide financial assistance or payments hereunder but does signify 
that this Agreement conforms to Agency’s applicable requirements. This Agreement 
shall not be effective unless the Funding Agency’s designated representative concurs. 
No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless the Funding Agency’s 
designated representative concurs. 

B. Audit and Access to Records. Owner, Agency, the Comptroller General of the United 
States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, 
documents, papers, and records of the Engineer which are pertinent to this Agreement, 
for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transactions. Engineer 
shall maintain all required records for three years after final payment is made and all 
other pending matters are closed. 

C. Restrictions and Lobbying. Engineer and each Consultant shall comply with 
“Restrictions on Lobbying” if they are recipients of engineering services contracts and 
subcontracts that exceed $100,000 at any tier. If applicable, Engineer must complete a 
certification form on lobbying activities related to a specific Federal loan or grant that is 
a funding source for this Agreement. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not 
and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member 
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any 
Federal contract, grant, or any other applicable award. Each tier shall disclose any 
lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any 
Federal award. Certifications and disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the 
Owner. Necessary certification and disclosure forms shall be provided by Owner. 

D. Suspension and Debarment. Engineer certifies, by signing this Agreement, that neither 
it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
19 

Federal department or agency. Engineer will not contract with any Consultant for this 
project if it or its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 
Federal department or agency. Necessary certification forms shall be provided by the 
Owner. The Engineer will complete and submit a form AD-1048, “Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – lower tier 
transactions,” to the Owner who will forward it the USDA, Rural Development 
processing office. 

 



 

 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                             and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 
20 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is 
indicated on page 1. 
 
Owner:  City of Monticello  Engineer:  Snyder & Associates, Inc 
   

By:   By:  

Print name: Dave Goedken  Print name:  Lindsay Beaman 
Title:  Mayor  Title: Business Unit Leader 

Date Signed:    Date Signed:   

   
 Engineer License or Firm's Certificate No. (if required):  

19971 
 State of:  Iowa 

   
Address for Owner’s receipt of notices:  Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices: 
200 First Street, Monticello, IA 52310  5005 Bowling St. SW, Suite A, Cedar Rapids, IA 52403 
    

   

Designated Representative (Paragraph 8.03.A):  Designated Representative (Paragraph 8.03.A): 
Russ Farnum  Nick Eisenbacher, P.E. 
Title: City Administrator  Title: Project Engineer 

Phone Number: 319-465-3577  Phone Number: 319-362-9394 

E-Mail Address: rfarnum@ci.monticello.ia.us  E-Mail Address: neisenbacher@snyder-
associates.com 

mailto:rfarnum@ci.monticello.ia.us
lbeaman
Stamp

lbeaman
Text Box
Sept 13, 2022



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 19 pages, 
referred to in and part of the Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer for Professional 

Services dated  [            ]. 

Engineer’s Services 

 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.   
 
Engineer shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below. 
 

PART 1 – BASIC SERVICES 

A1.01 Study and Report Phase – Previously Completed, Snyder & Associates, Inc Project #118.0342.08 

A. Engineer shall: 

1. Consult with Owner to define and clarify Owner’s requirements for the Project, including 
design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, 
flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations, and identify available data, 
information, reports, facilities plans, and site evaluations.   

a. If Owner has already identified one or more potential solutions to meet its Project 
requirements, then proceed with the study and evaluation of such potential 
solutions: [            ] [List the specific potential solutions here.]  

b. If Owner has not identified specific potential solutions for study and evaluation, 
then assist Owner in determining whether Owner’s requirements, and available 
data, reports, plans, and evaluations, point to a single potential solution for 
Engineer’s study and evaluation, or are such that it will be necessary for Engineer to 
identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential solutions. In addition, Engineer 
must identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential alternative solutions 
potentially available to the Owner, unless Owner and Engineer mutually agree 
with Agency concurrence that only one feasible solution exists. The number of 
alternative solutions should be appropriate to the specific project as concurred in 
by the Agency. 

c. If it is necessary for Engineer to identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential 
solutions, then identify [    ] [insert specific number] alternative solutions 
potentially available to Owner, unless Owner and Engineer mutually agree that 
some other specific number of alternatives should be identified, studied, and 
evaluated. Delete 

2. Identify potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements, as needed. 

3.  Study and evaluate the potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements.  

4. Visit the Site, or potential Project sites, to review existing conditions and facilities, unless 
such visits are not necessary or applicable to meeting the objectives of the Study and 
Report Phase.  



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 2 

5. Advise Owner of any need for Owner to obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available to 
Engineer additional Project-related data and information, for  Engineer’s use in the study 
and evaluation of potential solution(s) to Owner’s Project requirements, and preparation 
of a related report. 

6. After consultation with Owner, recommend to Owner the solution(s) which in Engineer’s 
judgment meet Owner’s requirements for the Project. 

7. Identify, consult with, and analyze requirements of governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction to approve the portions of the Project to be designed or specified by 
Engineer, including but not limited to mitigating measures identified in an environmental 
assessment for the Project. 

8.  Prepare a report (the “Report”) which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts, 
sketches, and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the 
agreed-to requirements, considerations involved, and Engineer’s recommended 
solution(s). For each recommended solution Engineer will provide the following, which 
will be separately itemized:  opinion of probable Construction Cost; proposed 
allowances for contingencies; the estimated total costs of design, professional, and 
related services to be provided by Engineer and its Consultants; and, on the basis of 
information furnished by Owner, a tabulation of other items and services included 
within the definition of Total Project Costs. 

9. Advise Owner of any need for Owner to provide data or services of the types described 
in Exhibit B, for use in Project design, or in preparation for Contractor selection and 
construction.   

10. When mutually agreed and approved by the Agency, assist Owner in evaluating the 
possible use of building information modeling; civil integrated management; 
geotechnical baselining of subsurface site conditions; innovative design, contracting, or 
procurement strategies; or other strategies, technologies, or techniques for assisting in 
the design, construction, and operation of Owner’s facilities.  The subject matter of this 
paragraph shall be referred to in Exhibit A and B as “Project Strategies, Technologies, 
and Techniques.” 

11. If requested to do so by Owner, assist Owner in identifying opportunities for enhancing 
the sustainability of the Project, and pursuant to Owner’s instructions plan for the 
inclusion of sustainable features in the design.  

12. Use ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface 
Utility Data” as a means to advise the Owner on a recommended scope of work and 
procedure for the identification and mapping of existing utilities.  

13. Develop a scope of work and survey limits for any topographic and other surveys 
necessary for design. 

14. Perform or provide the following other Study and Report Phase tasks or deliverables:       
Provide an Environmental Report as defined in 1 CFR 1970.  The Environmental Report 
must be concurred in by the Agency. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 3 

15. Furnish [    ] review copies of the Report and any other Study and Report Phase 
deliverables to Owner within [    ] days of the Effective Date and review it with Owner.  
Within [    ] days of receipt, Owner shall submit to Engineer any comments regarding the 
furnished items. 

16. Revise the Report and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables in response to 
Owner’s comments, as appropriate, and furnish [    ] copies of the revised Report and 
any other Study and Report Phase deliverables to the Owner within [    ] days of receipt 
of Owner’s comments. Revise the Report and any other Study and Report Phase 
deliverables in response to Owner’s and Agency’s comments, as appropriate, and 
furnish three (3) written copies and one (1) electronic copy of the revised Report and 
any other Study and Report Phase deliverables to the Owner within [    ] days of 
receipt of Owner’s and Agency’s comments. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Study and Report Phase will be considered complete on the 
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Report and any other Study and 
Report Phase deliverables. 

A1.02 Preliminary Design Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner, and concurrence by Agency, of the Report and any other Study 
and Report Phase deliverables; selection by Owner of a recommended solution; issuance by 
Owner of any instructions of for use of Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, or 
for inclusion of sustainable features in the design; and indication by Owner of any specific 
modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of the 
Project desired by Owner, (1) Engineer and Owner shall discuss and resolve any necessary 
revisions to Engineer’s compensation (through application of the provisions regarding 
Additional Services, or otherwise), or the time for completion of Engineer’s services, resulting 
from the selected solution, related Project Strategies, Technologies, or Techniques,  
sustainable design instructions, or specific modifications to the Project, and (2) upon written 
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall:  

1. Prepare Preliminary Design Phase documents consisting of final design criteria, 
preliminary drawings, outline specifications, and written descriptions of the Project.  

2. In preparing the Preliminary Design Phase documents, use any specific applicable Project 
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques authorized by Owner and Agency during or 
following the Study and Report Phase, and include sustainable features, as appropriate, 
pursuant to Owner’s instructions. 

3. Provide necessary field surveys and topographic and utility mapping for Engineer’s 
design purposes.  Comply with the scope of work and procedure for the identification 
and mapping of existing utilities selected and authorized by Owner pursuant to advice 
from Engineer based on ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction 
of Existing Subsurface Utility Data,” as set forth in Paragraph A1.01.A.12 above. If no 
such scope of work and procedure for utility mapping has been selected and authorized, 
then at a minimum the utility mapping will include Engineer contacting utility owners 
and obtaining available information. 

4. Visit the Site as needed to prepare the Preliminary Design Phase documents. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 4 

5. Advise Owner if additional reports, data, information, or services of the types described 
in Exhibit B are necessary and assist Owner in obtaining such reports, data, information, 
or services. 

6. Continue to assist Owner with Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques that 
Owner has chosen to implement. 

7. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents, 
prepare a revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and assist Owner in tabulating 
the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

8. Obtain and review Owner’s instructions regarding Owner’s procurement of construction 
services (including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to 
bidders, and requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract 
practices and requirements, insurance and bonding requirements, electronic 
transmittals during construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of 
Owner’s bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and Construction Contract Documents. Also obtain and 
review copies of Owner’s design and construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, 
general conditions (if other than EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract, 2013 Edition), supplementary conditions, text, and related 
documents or content for Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and in the draft 
Construction Contract Documents, when applicable.  Engineer must also incorporate all 
Agency regulations, forms, and design and construction standards applicable to the 
project in development of the documents indicated in this Article. 

9. Perform or provide the following other Preliminary Design Phase tasks or deliverables:    
The Engineer shall identify the building codes and accessibility standards used in the 
design and indicate them on the drawings and specifications and certify that the final 
drawings and specifications comply with those standards.   

10. Furnish [  2  ] review copies of the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of 
probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables to 
Owner within [ 60   ] days of authorization to proceed with this phase, and review them 
with Owner.  Within [  20  ] days of receipt, Owner shall submit to Engineer any 
comments regarding the furnished items.  

11. Revise the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of probable Construction Cost, 
and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables in response to Owner’s comments, 
as appropriate, and furnish to Owner [  2  ] copies of the revised Preliminary Design 
Phase documents, revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other 
deliverables within [  30  ]  days after receipt of Owner’s comments. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the 
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Preliminary Design Phase documents, 
revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase 
deliverables.  



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 5 

A1.03 Final Design Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner of the Preliminary Design Phase documents, revised opinion of 
probable Construction Cost as determined in the Preliminary Design Phase, and any other 
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables, subject to any Owner-directed modifications or 
changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of or for the Project, and 
upon written authorization from Owner, Engineer shall: 

1. Prepare final Drawings and Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and character of 
the Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. 

2. Visit the Site as needed to assist in preparing the final Drawings and Specifications. 

3. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for Owner’s use in filing 
applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction to review or approve the final design; assist Owner in consultations with such 
authorities; and revise the Drawings and Specifications in response to directives from 
such authorities, as appropriate. 

4. Advise Owner of any recommended adjustments to the opinion of probable 
Construction Cost. 

5. After consultation with Owner, include in the Construction Contract Documents any 
specific protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, 
text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, 
either directly, or through access to a secure Project website. Any such protocols shall be 
applicable to transmittals between and among Owner, Engineer, and Contractor during 
the Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase, and unless agreed otherwise shall 
supersede any conflicting protocols previously established for transmittals between 
Owner and Engineer. 

6. Assist Owner in assembling known reports and drawings of Site conditions, and in 
identifying the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which 
bidders or other prospective contractors may rely. 

7. In addition to preparing the final Drawings and Specifications, assemble drafts of other 
Construction Contract Documents based on specific instructions and contract forms, 
text, or content  received from Owner. 

8. Prepare or assemble draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents), based on the specific bidding or procurement-
related instructions and forms, text, or content received from Owner. 

9. Perform or provide the following other Final Design Phase tasks or deliverables:                
Engineer shall identify the building codes and accessibility standards used in the design 
and indicate them on the drawings and specifications and certify that the final 
drawings and specifications comply with those standards. 

10.  Furnish for review by Owner, its legal counsel and Agency, and other advisors, [  2  ] 
copies of the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 6 

Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables, within [ 30   ] days of authorization to proceed with the Final Design Phase, 
and review them with Owner. Within [  15  ] days of receipt, Owner shall submit to 
Engineer any comments regarding the furnished items, and any instructions for 
revisions. 

11. Revise the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction 
Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables in accordance with comments and instructions from the Owner, as 
appropriate, and submit [  2  ] final copies of such documents to Owner within [  15  ] 
days after receipt of Owner’s comments and instructions. 

12. Provide the Owner and Agency with a written certification that the final Drawings and 
Specifications, other assembled Construction Contract Documents, bidding-related 
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), 
and any other Final Design Phase deliverables comply with all requirements of Agency. 
Use the Engineer’s Certification of Final Plans and Specifications (Attachment J of the 
RUS Bulletin 1780-26) for this purpose. 

13. Services required to determine and certify that to the best of the Engineer’s 
knowledge and belief all iron and steel products referenced in engineering 
analysis, the Plans, Specifications, Bidding Documents, and associated Bid 
Addenda requiring design revisions are either produced in the United States or are 
the subject of an approved waiver; and services required to determine to the best 
of the engineer’s knowledge and belief that approved substitutes, equals, and all 
iron and steel products proposed in the shop drawings, Change Orders and Partial 
Payment Estimates are either produced in the United States or are the subject of 
an approved waiver under Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and 
Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and 
subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference. The term “iron and steel 
products” means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or 
unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, 
tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced 
precast concrete, and construction materials. The deminimis and minor 
components waiver apply to this contract. 

B. Engineer’s services under the Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the date 
when Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Drawings and Specifications, other 
assembled Construction Contract Documents, bidding-related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables and all final design phase deliverables have been accepted by Owner.  

C. In the event that the Work designed or specified by Engineer is to be performed or furnished 
under more than one prime contract, or if Engineer’s services are to be separately sequenced 
with the work of one or more prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking), Owner 
and Engineer shall, prior to commencement of the Final Design Phase, develop a schedule for 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 7 

performance of Engineer’s services during the Final Design, Bidding or Negotiating, 
Construction, and Post-Construction Phases in order to sequence and coordinate properly 
such services as are applicable to the work under such separate prime contracts.  This 
schedule is to be prepared and included in or become an amendment to Exhibit A whether or 
not the work under such contracts is to proceed concurrently. 

D. The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by Engineer upon which the 
Engineer’s compensation has been established under this Agreement is [one (1)].  If more 
prime contracts are awarded, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in its 
compensation under this Agreement. 

A1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase 

A. After acceptance by Owner of the final Drawings and Specifications, other Construction 
Contract Documents, bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents), and the most recent opinion of probable 
Construction Cost as determined in the Final Design Phase, and upon written authorization by 
Owner to proceed, Engineer shall: 

1. Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work, assist 
Owner in issuing assembled design, contract, and bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents) to prospective 
contractors, and, where applicable, maintain a record of prospective contractors to 
which documents have been issued, attend pre-bid conferences, if any, and receive and 
process contractor deposits or charges for the issued documents. 

2. Prepare and issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the issued 
documents.  Obtain Agency concurrence on any addenda that modify the bidding 
documents. Obtain prior concurrence where possible. 

3. Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any review of 
proposals or negotiations with prospective contractors. 

4. Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of prospective contractors. 

5.  Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of ubcontractors, suppliers, and other 
individuals and entities proposed by prospective contractors, for those portions of the 
Work as to which review of qualifications is required by the issued documents.  

6. If the issued documents require, the Engineer shall evaluate and determine the 
acceptability of "or equals" and substitute materials and equipment proposed by 
prospective contractors, provided that such proposals are allowed by the bidding-
related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement 
documents) prior to award of contracts for the Work. Services under this paragraph are 
subject to the provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A.   

a. The Engineer shall evaluate and determine the acceptability of “or equals” and 
substitute materials and equipment proposed by prospective contractors prior to 
award of contracts for the Work. Engineer shall issue a bid addendum for any and 
all approved “or equals” and substitutes. Review of substitutes and “or equals” 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 8 

shall be in accordance with the General Conditions of the Construction Contract 
and applicable Agency regulations. Services under this paragraph are subject to 
the provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A. 

b. Services required to determine and certify that to the best of the Engineer’s 
knowledge and belief all iron and steel products referenced in Bid Addenda 
requiring design revisions are either produced in the United States or are the 
subject of an approved qaiver. 

7. Attend the bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets to meet Owner’s schedule, and 
assist Owner in evaluating bids or proposals, assembling final contracts for the Work for 
execution by Owner and Contractor, and in issuing notices of award of such contracts. 

8. If Owner engages in negotiations with bidders or proposers, assist Owner with respect to 
technical and engineering issues that arise during the negotiations. 

9. Perform or provide the following other Bidding or Negotiating Phase tasks or 
deliverables: Upon award of the Construction Contract, the Engineer shall furnish to 
Owner three executed copies of the Contract Documents and one electric copy of the 
signed document, including Drawings and Specifications. 

10. Provide copies of Manufacturers’ Certification letters to the Bidders on any brand 
name iron and steel products along with the Plans, Specifications and Bidding 
Documents. Manufacturers’ Certification Letters are to be included in the Bidding 
Documents and must be kept in the engineer’s project file and on site during 
construction. 

11. Provide copies of Manufacturers’ Certification letters to the Contractor on any brand 
name iron and steel products along with the Plans, Specifications, Bidding Documents 
including any Bid Addenda and Change Orders. Manufacturers’ Certification Letters 
must be kept in the engineer’s project file and on-site during construction. 

B. The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement of the 
Construction Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective contractors (except as 
may be required if Exhibit F is a part of this Agreement). 

A1.05 Construction Phase 

A. Upon successful completion of the Bidding and Negotiating Phase, and upon written 
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall: 

1. General Administration of Construction Contract:  Consult with Owner and act as 
Owner’s representative as provided in the Construction Contract.  The extent and 
limitations of the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer shall be as assigned 
in EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (2013 
Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, or other 
construction general conditions specified in this Agreement. If Owner, or Owner and 
Contractor, modify the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer in the 
Construction Contract, or modify other terms of the Construction Contract having a 
direct bearing on Engineer, then Owner shall compensate Engineer for any related 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 9 

increases in the cost to provide Construction Phase services. Engineer shall not be 
required to furnish or perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a 
licensed professional. All of Owner’s instructions to Contractor will be issued through 
Engineer, which shall have authority to act on behalf of Owner in dealings with 
Contractor to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Construction Contract 
except as otherwise provided in writing. 

2. Resident Project Representative (RPR):  Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist 
the Engineer and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor’s work.  Duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D.  The furnishing of 
such RPR’s services will not limit, extend, or modify Engineer’s responsibilities or 
authority except as expressly set forth in Exhibit D.  

3. Selection of Independent Testing Laboratory:  Assist Owner in the selection of an 
independent testing laboratory to perform the services identified in Exhibit B, Paragraph 
B2.01. 

4. Pre-Construction Conference:  Participate in and chair a pre-construction conference 
prior to commencement of Work at the Site. 

5. Electronic Transmittal Protocols:  If the Construction Contract Documents do not specify 
protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, text, data, 
drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, 
or through access to a secure Project website, then together with Owner and Contractor 
jointly develop such protocols for transmittals between and among Owner, Contractor, 
and Engineer during the Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase. 

6. Original Documents:  If requested by Owner to do so, Maintain and safeguard during the 
Construction Phase at least one original printed record version of the Construction 
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by 
Engineer and other design professionals in accordance with applicable Laws and 
Regulations.  Throughout the Construction Phase, make such original printed record 
version of the Construction Contract Documents available to Contractor and Owner for 
review. 

7. Schedules:  Receive, review, and determine the acceptability of any and all schedules 
that Contractor is required to submit to Engineer, including the Progress Schedule, 
Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

8. Baselines and Benchmarks:  As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for 
locating the Work which in Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to 
proceed. 

9. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction:  In connection with observations of 
Contractor’s Work while it is in progress: 

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, 
as Engineer deems necessary, to observe as an experienced and qualified design 
professional the progress of Contractor’s executed Work.  Such visits and 
observations by Engineer, and the Resident Project Representative, if any, are not 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 10 

intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of the Work or to involve 
detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 
Engineer in this Agreement and the Construction Contract Documents, but rather 
are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and similar methods of 
general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s exercise of professional 
judgment, as assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if any.  Based on 
information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer will determine 
in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work. 

b. The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site, and representation by the Resident 
Project Representative, if any, at the Site, will be to enable Engineer to better carry 
out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by Engineer during 
the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of Engineer’s efforts as an 
experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for Owner a greater 
degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to the 
Construction Contract Documents and that Contractor has implemented and 
maintained the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a 
functioning whole as indicated in the Construction Contract Documents.  Engineer 
shall not, during such visits or as a result of such observations of the Work, 
supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer have authority 
over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or 
safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to any Constructor’s 
work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or schedules, nor 
for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable 
to  furnishing and performing of its work.  Accordingly, Engineer neither guarantees 
the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any 
Constructor’s failure to furnish or perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in 
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 

c. The visits described in Article A1.05.A.9 shall be at least monthly, and the 
Engineer shall document all visits to the project with copies furnished to the 
Owner and Agency. 

10. Defective Work:  Reject Work if, on the basis of Engineer’s observations, Engineer 
believes that such Work is defective under the terms and standards set forth in the 
Construction Contract Documents. Provide recommendations to Owner regarding 
whether Contractor should correct such Work or remove and replace such Work, or 
whether Owner should consider accepting such Work as provided in the Construction 
Contract Documents. 

11. Compatibility with Design Concept:  If Engineer has express knowledge that a specific 
part  of the Work that is not defective under the terms and standards set forth in the 
Construction Contract Documents is nonetheless not compatible with  the design 
concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole,  then inform Owner of such 
incompatibility, and provide recommendations for addressing such Work. 

12. Clarifications and Interpretations:  Accept from Contractor and Owner submittal of all 
matters in question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 11 

Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), 
or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. 
With reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision 
on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Construction 
Contract Documents.  

13. Non-reviewable Matters:  If a submitted matter in question concerns the Engineer’s 
performance of its duties and obligations, or terms and conditions of the Construction 
Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the 
Work under the Construction Contract Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the 
Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, 
then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer 
will not provide a decision or interpretation. 

14.  Field Orders:  Subject to any limitations in the Construction Contract Documents, 
Engineer may prepare and issue Field Orders requiring minor changes in the Work. 

15. Change Orders and Work Change Directives:  Recommend Change Orders and Work 
Change Directives to Owner, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work 
Change Directives as required. 

16. Differing Site Conditions:  Respond to any notice from Contractor of differing site 
conditions, including conditions relating to underground facilities such as utilities, and 
hazardous environmental conditions. Promptly conduct reviews and prepare findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations for Owner’s use. 

17. Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals:  Review and approve or take other 
appropriate action with respect to Shop Drawings, Samples, and other required 
Contractor submittals to ensure compliance with American and Iron Steel 
requirements mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations 
Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug 
Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent 
statutes mandating domestic preference. Any iron and steel products included in any 
submittal by the General Contractor, must include a Manufacturers’ Certification letter 
to verify the products were produced in the United States. Copies of Manufacturers’ 
Certification letters must be kept in the engineer’s project file and on-site during 
construction. Review and approve or take other appropriate action with respect to Shop 
Drawings, Samples,  and other required Contractor submittals, but only for conformance 
with the information given in the Construction Contract Documents and compatibility 
with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by 
the Construction Contract Documents.  Such reviews and approvals or other action will 
not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or 
to safety precautions and programs incident thereto.  Engineer shall meet any 
Contractor’s submittal schedule that Engineer has accepted. 

18. Substitutes and “Or-equal”:  Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or 
“or-equal” materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the 
provisions of Paragraph A2.02.A.2 of this Exhibit A. Review of substitutes and “or 
equals” shall be in accordance with the General Conditions of the Construction 
Contract and applicable Agency regulations. Prior to approval of any substitute “or 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 12 

equal” obtain a Manufacturers’ Certification letter to verify the products were 
produced in the United States. Manufacturers’ Certification letters must be kept in the 
engineer’s project file and on-site during construction to ensure compliance with 
American and Iron Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, 
Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and 
subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference, if applicable. 

19. Inspections and Tests: 

a. Receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by 
Laws and Regulations or the Construction Contract Documents.  Engineer’s review 
of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining that the results certified 
indicate compliance with the Construction Contract Documents and will not 
constitute an independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such 
inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements of the Construction 
Contract Documents.  Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the results of such 
inspections and tests. 

b. As deemed reasonably necessary, request that Contractor uncover Work that is to 
be inspected, tested, or approved.  

c. Pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract, require special inspections or 
testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed. 

d. Receive and review all Manufacturers’ Certification Letters for materials required 
to comply with American and Iron Steel requirements mandated by Section 746 
of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - 
Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related 
Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic 
preference to verify the products were produced in the United States. 
Manufacturers’ Certification letters must be kept in the engineer’s project file and 
on-site during construction. 

20. Change Proposals and Claims:  (a) Review and respond to Change Proposals.  Review 
each duly submitted Change Proposal from Contractor and, within 30 days after receipt 
of the Contractor’s supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve 
it in whole, or deny it in part and approve it in part.  Such actions shall be in writing, with 
a copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If the Change Proposal does not involve the 
design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the 
Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify the parties 
that the Engineer will not resolve the Change Proposal.  (b) Provide information or data 
to Owner regarding engineering or technical matters pertaining to Claims.  (c) Review 
Change Proposals to ensure compliance with American and Iron Steel requirements 
mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 
(Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and 
Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating 
domestic preference. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 13 

21. Applications for Payment:  Based on Engineer’s observations as an experienced and 
qualified design professional and on review of Applications for Payment and 
accompanying supporting documentation: 

a. Determine the amounts that Engineer recommends Contractor be paid. 
Recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) based on the provisions for set-offs 
stated in the Construction Contract. Such recommendations of payment will be in 
writing and will constitute Engineer’s representation to Owner, based on such 
observations and review, that, to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information 
and belief, Contractor’s Work has progressed to the point indicated, the Work is 
generally in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents (subject to an 
evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial 
Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Construction 
Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the 
recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to 
such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility 
to observe the  Work.  In the case of unit price Work, Engineer’s recommendations 
of payment will include final determinations of quantities and classifications of the 
Work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Construction Contract 
Documents). 

b. By recommending payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have 
represented that observations made by Engineer to check the quality or quantity of 
Contractor’s Work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended 
to every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of 
the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in this 
Agreement.  Neither Engineer’s review of Contractor’s Work for the purposes of 
recommending payments nor Engineer’s recommendation of any payment 
including final payment will impose on Engineer responsibility to supervise, direct, 
or control the Work, or for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs incident thereto, or 
Contractor’s compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s 
furnishing and performing the Work.  It will also not impose responsibility on 
Engineer to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes 
Contractor has used the money paid to Contractor by Owner; to determine that 
title to any portion of the Work, including materials or equipment, has passed to 
Owner free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances; or 
that there may not be other matters at issue between Owner and Contractor that 
might affect the amount that should be paid. 

22. Contractor’s Completion Documents:  Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit to 
Owner maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, 
certificates or other evidence of insurance required by the Construction Contract 
Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and Shop Drawings, Samples, 
and other data approved as provided under Paragraph A1.05.A.17.  Receive from 
Contractor, review, and transmit to Owner the annotated record documents which are 
to be assembled by Contractor in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents 
to obtain final payment.  The extent of Engineer’s review of record documents shall be 
to check that Contractor has submitted all pages. Receive from the Contractor and 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 14 

review the annotated record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in 
accordance with the Construction Documents to obtain final payment. The Engineer 
shall prepare Record Drawings and furnish such Record Drawings to Owner. 

23. Substantial Completion:  Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor 
considers the entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with Owner and 
Contractor, visit the Site to review the Work and determine the status of completion. 
Follow the procedures in the Construction Contract regarding the preliminary certificate 
of Substantial Completion, punch list of items to be completed, Owner’s objections, 
notice to Contractor, and issuance of a final certificate of Substantial Completion.  Assist 
Owner regarding any remaining engineering or technical matters affecting Owner’s use 
or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion. 

24. Other Tasks:  Perform or provide the following other Construction Phase tasks or 
deliverables:  

a. Upon Substantial Completion, the Engineer shall provide a copy of the Certificate 
of   Substantial completion to the Agency. 

25. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work:  Conduct a final visit to the Project to 
determine if the Work is complete and acceptable so that Engineer may recommend, in 
writing, final payment to Contractor.  Accompanying the recommendation for final 
payment, Engineer shall also provide a notice to Owner and Contractor in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit E (“Notice of Acceptability of Work”) that the Work is 
acceptable (subject to the provisions of the Notice and Paragraph A1.05.A.21.b) to the 
best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief, and based on the extent of the 
services provided by Engineer under this Agreement. 

a. Obtain the Contractors’ Certification letter and copies of Manufacturers’ 
Certification letters for all American Iron and Steel products used in the project. 
Upon Substantial Completion, provide copies of Engineer’s, Contractors’, and 
Manufacturers’ Certification letters to the Owner and a copy of Contractor’s 
Certification letter to the Agency. Provide a list of manufacturers of American Iron 
and Steel products used in the project and include manufacturer’s name and 
location, and product(s) to the Agency. 

26. Standards for Certain Construction-Phase Decisions:  Engineer will render decisions 
regarding the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents, and judge the 
acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth in the 
Construction Contract for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of 
the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality 
to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in 
connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or 
rendered in good faith. 

B. Duration of Construction Phase:  The Construction Phase will commence with the execution 
of the first Construction Contract for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon 
written recommendation by Engineer for final payment to Contractors.  If the Project involves 
more than one prime contract as indicated in Paragraph A1.03.D, then Construction Phase 
services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts.  Subject to 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 15 

the provisions of Article 3, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in compensation 
if Construction Phase services (including Resident Project Representative services, if any) are 
required after the original date for completion and readiness for final payment of Contractor 
as set forth in the Construction Contract. 

A1.06 Post-Construction Phase 

A. Upon written authorization from Owner during the Post-Construction Phase, Engineer shall: 

1. Together with Owner, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work,  
make recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective Work, if any, or the 
need to repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas, and assist Owner in 
consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such 
defective Work and any needed repairs. 

2. Together with Owner, visit the Project within one month before the end of the 
Construction Contract’s correction period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work 
or the repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas is defective and therefore 
subject to correction by Contractor. 

3. Perform or provide the following other Post-Construction Phase tasks or deliverables:     
None  

B. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if 
not otherwise modified in this Exhibit A, will terminate twelve months after the 
commencement of the Construction Contract’s correction period. 

PART 2 – ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

A2.01 Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 

 

A. If authorized in writing by Owner, Engineer shall provide Additional Services of the types 
listed below. These services are not included as part of Basic Services and will be paid for by 
Owner as indicated in Exhibit C. 

1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished 
under Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or advances in 
connection with the Project; preparation or review of environmental assessments and 
impact statements not including preparation of the Environmental Report defined 
under Basic Services; review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements 
for the Project of any such statements and documents prepared by others; and 
assistance in obtaining approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated 
environmental impact of the Project. 

2. Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to conduct tests 
or investigations of existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the accuracy of drawings 
or other information furnished by Owner or others. 

3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the 
portions of the Project designed or specified by Engineer, or the Project’s design 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 16 

requirements, including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, Owner’s 
schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously 
accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Construction Contract Documents 
when such revisions are required by changes in Laws and Regulations enacted 
subsequent to the Effective Date or are due to any other causes beyond Engineer’s 
control. 

4. Services resulting from Owner’s request to evaluate additional Study and Report Phase 
alternative solutions beyond those agreed to in Paragraph A1.01.A.1 and 2, but only if 
the Owner’s request is made after completion of the Study and Report Phase. 

5. Services required as a result of Owner’s providing incomplete or incorrect Project 
information to Engineer. 

6. Providing renderings or models for Owner’s use, including services in support of building 
information modeling or civil integrated management. 

7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to: 

a. detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; 

b. the preparation of feasibility studies (such as those that include projections of 
output capacity, utility project rates, project market demand, or project revenues) 
and cash flow analyses, provided that such services are based on the engineering 
and technical aspects of the Project, and do not include rendering advice regarding 
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities; 

c. preparation of appraisals; 

d. evaluating processes available for licensing, and assisting Owner in obtaining 
process licensing;  

e. detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and 

f. audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed or 
furnished by Owner. 

8. Furnishing services of Consultants for other than Basic Services. 

9. Providing data or services of the types described in Exhibit B, when Owner retains  
Engineer to provide such data or services instead of Owner furnishing the same.  

10. Providing the following services: 

a. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in 
Paragraph A1.03.D. 

b. Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by 
contractors other than the principal prime Contractor, and administering Owner’s 
contract for such services. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 17 

11. Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer, other than for visits to the Site 
or Owner’s office as required in Basic Services (Part 1 of Exhibit A). 

12. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured 
independent review processes, including, but not limited to, construction management, 
cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructibility review 
requested by Owner; and performing or furnishing services required to revise studies, 
reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other documents as a result of such review 
processes. 

13. Preparing additional bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents) or Construction Contract Documents for 
alternate bids or cost estimates requested by Owner for the Work or a portion thereof. 

14. Assistance in connection with bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for 
construction, materials, equipment, or services, except when such assistance is required 
to complete services required by Paragraph 5.02.A and Exhibit F. 

15. Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that incorporate and integrate 
the content of all Addenda and any amendments negotiated by Owner and Contractor. 

16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for completion and 
readiness for final payment of Contractor, but only if such services increase the total 
quantity of services to be performed in the Construction Phase, rather than merely 
shifting performance of such services to a later date. 

17. Preparing Record Drawings, and furnishing such Record Drawings to Owner. Deleted. 

18. Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed Project, Site, 
and immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, Owner, utility 
companies, and other reliable sources. 

19. Conducting surveys, investigations, and field measurements to verify the accuracy of 
Record Drawing content obtained from Contractor, Owner, utility companies, and other 
sources; revise and supplement Record Drawings as needed. 

20. Preparation of operation, maintenance, and staffing manuals. 

21. Protracted or extensive assistance in refining and adjusting of Project equipment and 
systems (such as initial startup, testing, and balancing). 

22. Assistance to Owner in training Owner’s staff to operate and maintain Project 
equipment and systems. 

23. Assistance to Owner in developing systems and procedures for (a) control of the 
operation and maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) related 
recordkeeping. 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 18 

24. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner in any litigation, 
arbitration, lien or bond claim, or other legal or administrative proceeding involving the 
Project. 

25. Overtime work requiring higher than regular rates. 

26. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work 
other than as required under Paragraph A1.05.A.8; any type of property surveys or 
related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in real property; and 
providing other special field surveys. 

27. Providing more extensive services required to enable Engineer to issue notices or 
certifications requested by Owner. 

28. Extensive services required during any correction period, or with respect to monitoring 
Contractor’s compliance with warranties and guarantees called for in the Construction 
Contract (except as agreed to under Basic Services). 

29. Other additional services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for 
in this Agreement. 

A2.02 Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization 

A. Engineer shall advise Owner that Engineer is commencing to perform or furnish the 
Additional Services of the types listed below.  For such Additional Services, Engineer need not 
request or obtain specific advance written authorization from Owner.  Engineer shall cease 
performing or furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of written notice to cease 
from Owner. 

1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders to reflect 
changes requested by Owner. 

2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the 
acceptance of substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” items; services 
after the award of the Construction Contract in evaluating and determining the 
acceptability of a proposed "or equal" or substitution which is found to be inappropriate 
for the Project; evaluation and determination of an excessive number of proposed "or 
equals" or substitutions, whether proposed before or after award of the Construction 
Contract.  Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by 
the acceptance of substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” items; 
evaluation and determination of an excessive number of proposed “or equals” or 
substitutions, whether proposed before or after award of the Construction Contract.  

3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a 
direct or indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages. 

4. Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of any 
Constituent of Concern or items of historical or cultural significance, (b) emergencies or 
acts of God endangering the Work, (c) damage to the Work by fire or other causes 
during construction, (d) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed Work, 



 

Exhibit A – Engineer’s Services 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                         Page 19 

(e) acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working 
hours, or (f) default by Contractor. 

5. Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection 
with any partial utilization of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial Completion. 

6. Evaluating unreasonable or frivolous requests for interpretation or information (RFIs), 
Change Proposals, or other demands from Contractor or others in connection with the 
Work, or an excessive number of RFIs, Change Proposals, or demands. 

7. Reviewing a Shop Drawing or other Contractor submittal more than three times, as a 
result of repeated inadequate submissions by Contractor. 

8. While at the Site, compliance by Engineer and its staff with those terms of Owner's or 
Contractor's safety program provided to Engineer subsequent to the Effective Date that 
exceed those normally required of engineering personnel by federal, State, or local 
safety authorities for similar construction sites. 



Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                            and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                        Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of 4 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Owner’s Responsibilities 

 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties. 
 
B2.01 In addition to other responsibilities of Owner as set forth in this Agreement, Owner shall at its 

expense: 
 

A. Provide Engineer with all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the 
Project, including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance 
requirements, flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations.  

B. Give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services 
(including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders, and 
requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract practices and 
requirements, insurance and bonding requirements, electronic transmittals during 
construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of Owner’s bidding-related 
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and 
Construction Contract Documents.  Furnish copies (or give specific directions requesting 
Engineer to use copies already in Engineer’s possession) of all design and construction 
standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions (if other than EJCDC® C-700, Standard 
General Conditions of the Construction Contract, 2013 Edition), supplementary conditions, 
text, and related documents and content for Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related 
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and 
draft Construction Contract Documents, when applicable.  Owner shall have responsibility for 
the final content of (1) such bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents), and (2) those portions of any Construction Contract 
other than the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), and other 
engineering or technical matters; and Owner shall seek the advice of Owner’s legal counsel, 
risk managers, and insurance advisors with respect to the drafting and content of such 
documents. 

C. Furnish to Engineer any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports 
and data relative to previous designs, construction, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site. 

D. Following Engineer’s assessment of initially-available Project information and data and upon 
Engineer’s request, obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available (if necessary through title 
searches, or retention of specialists or consultants) such additional Project-related 
information and data as is reasonably required to enable Engineer to complete its Basic and 
Additional Services.  Such additional information or data would generally include the 
following: 

1. Property descriptions. 

2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions. 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 2 

3. Utility and topographic mapping and surveys. 

4. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or data, including 
establishing relevant reference points. 

5. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site; geotechnical 
reports and investigations; drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or 
subsurface structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections 
of samples, materials, and equipment; with appropriate professional interpretation of 
such information or data.  

6. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations, and impact statements, and other 
relevant environmental, historical, or cultural studies relevant to the Project, the Site, 
and adjacent areas. 

7. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in this 
Agreement. 

E. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon public and 
private property as required for Engineer to perform services under the Agreement. 

F. Recognizing and acknowledging that Engineer's services and expertise do not include the 
following services, provide, as required for the Project: 

1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory (including, if applicable, “municipal advisor” 
services as described in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act (2010) and the municipal advisor registration rules issued by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission), independent cost estimating, and insurance 
counseling services. 

2. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as Owner requires, 
Contractor raises, or Engineer reasonably requests. 

3. Such auditing services as Owner requires to ascertain how or for what purpose 
Contractor has used the money paid. 

G. Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, 
and approvals of samples, materials, and equipment required by the Construction Contract 
Documents (other than those required to be furnished or arranged by Contractor), or to 
evaluate the performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of Owner, prior to their 
incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional interpretation thereof. Provide 
Engineer with the findings and reports generated by testing laboratories, including findings 
and reports obtained from or through Contractor. 

H. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction 
to approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by Engineer and such reviews, 
approvals, and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of each phase of 
the Project. 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 3 

I. Advise Engineer of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants 
employed by Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not 
limited to, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructibility 
review. 

J. If Owner designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other than, or in 
addition to, Engineer to represent Owner at the Site, define and set forth as an attachment to 
this Exhibit B the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party and 
the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer. 

K. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by 
Engineer, then designate a person or entity to have authority and responsibility for 
coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors, and define and set forth the 
duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such individual or entity and the 
relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer as an attachment to 
this Exhibit B that is to be mutually agreed upon and made a part of this Agreement before 
such services begin. 

L. Inform Engineer in writing of any specific requirements of safety or security programs that 
are applicable to Engineer, as a visitor to the Site. 

M. Examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, 
proposals, and other documents presented by Engineer (including obtaining advice of an 
attorney, risk manager, insurance counselor, financial/municipal advisor, and other advisors 
or consultants as Owner deems appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in 
writing timely decisions pertaining thereto. 

N. Inform Engineer regarding any need for assistance in evaluating the possible use of Project 
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, as defined in Exhibit A. 

O. Advise Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in identifying opportunities 
for enhancing the sustainability of the Project. 

P. Place and pay for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications. 

Q. Furnish to Engineer data as to Owner’s anticipated costs for services to be provided by others 
(including, but not limited to, accounting, bond and financial, independent cost estimating, 
insurance counseling, and legal advice) for Owner so that Engineer may assist Owner in 
collating the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

R. Attend and participate in the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, 
construction progress and other job related meetings, and Site visits to determine Substantial 
Completion and readiness of the completed Work for final payment.   

S. Authorize Engineer to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of Exhibit A of the 
Agreement, as required. 

T. Perform or provide the following: None 

 



 

 

Exhibit B – Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                  Page 4 

 

B2.02 Owners are ultimately responsible for compliance with Section 746 of Title VII of the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and 
Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes 
mandating domestic preference and will be responsible for the following:  

 
(a) Signing loan resolutions, grant agreements and letters of intent to meet conditions 
which include American Iron and Steel language, accepting American Iron and Steel 
requirements in those documents and in the letter of conditions.  

(b) Signing change orders (i.e. C-941 of EJCDC) and partial payment estimates (i.e. C-620 of 
EJCDC) and thereby acknowledging responsibility for compliance with American Iron and 
Steel requirements.  

(c) Obtaining the certification letters from the consulting engineer upon substantial 
completion of the project and maintaining this documentation for the life of the loan.  

(d) Where the owner provides their own engineering and/or construction services, 
providing copies of engineers’, contractors’, and manufacturers’ certification letters (as 
applicable) to the Agency. All certification letters must be kept in the engineer’s project file 
and on site during construction. For Owner Construction (Force Account), all clauses from 
Section 17 of RUS Bulletin 1780-35 must be included in the Agreement for Engineering  

(e) Where the owner directly procures American Iron and Steel products, including 
American Iron and Steel clauses in the procurement contracts and obtaining 
manufacturers’ certification letters and providing copies to consulting engineers and 
contractors.  



 

 

Exhibit C –Compensation Packet BC-1: Basic Services (other than RPR) – Lump Sum Method of Payment 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                               Page 1 

 
This is EXHIBIT C, consisting of 6 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
COMPENSATION PACKET BC-1:  Basic Services – Lump Sum 
 

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 

ARTICLE 2 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

C2.01 Compensation for Basic Services (other than Resident Project Representative) – Lump Sum Method 
of Payment 

 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A, except for services of 
Engineer’s Resident Project Representative, if any, as follows: 

1. A Lump Sum amount of $1,140,000 based on the following estimated distribution of 
compensation: 

a. Study and Report Phase   $Previously Completed 

b. Preliminary Design, Plans & Specifications Phase – Currently Under Snyder & 
Associates Contract Dated Nov. 16, 2022    $565,000 

c. Final Additional Design, Plans & Specifications Phase – Additional Fees for to 
Update Design to USDA Design Requirements  $99,300 

d. Bidding and Negotiating Phase   $15,000 – Currently 
Under Snyder & Associates Contract Dated Nov. 16, 2022 

e. Construction Administration Phase   $450,700 

f. Post-Construction Phase   $10,000 

2. Engineer may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases noted 
herein to be consistent with services actually rendered, but shall not exceed the total 
Lump Sum amount unless approved in writing by the Owner and Agency. 

3. The Lump Sum includes compensation for Engineer’s services and services of Engineer’s 
Consultants, if any.  Appropriate amounts have been incorporated in the Lump Sum to 
account for labor costs, overhead, profit, expenses (other than any expressly allowed 
Reimbursable Expenses), and Consultant charges.  

4. In addition to the Lump Sum, Engineer is also entitled to reimbursement from Owner for 
the following Reimbursable Expenses (see Appendix 1 for rates or charges): None 



 

 

Exhibit C –Compensation Packet BC-1: Basic Services (other than RPR) – Lump Sum Method of Payment 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                   and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                               Page 2 

5. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for Engineer’s services will be based upon 
Engineer’s estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during the 
billing period. If any Reimbursable Expenses are expressly allowed, Engineer may also bill 
for any such Reimbursable Expenses incurred during the billing period. 

B. Period of Service:  The compensation amount stipulated in Compensation Packet BC-1 is 
conditioned on a period of service not exceeding [ 24 ] months.  If such period of service is 
extended, the compensation amount for Engineer's services shall be appropriately adjusted 
with the concurrence of the Owner and Agency. 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative Services— 
 Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                              Page 1 

COMPENSATION PACKET RPR-2:   
Resident Project Representative – Standard Hourly Rates 
 

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
C2.04 Compensation for Resident Project Representative Basic Services – Standard Hourly Rates Method 

of Payment 
  

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Resident Project Representative Basic Services as follows: 

1. Resident Project Representative Services:  For services of Engineer’s Resident Project 
Representative under Paragraph A1.05.A of Exhibit A, an amount equal to the cumulative 
hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s personnel times Standard Hourly 
Rates for each applicable billing class for all Resident Project Representative services 
performed on the Project, plus related Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s 
charges, if any.  The total compensation under this paragraph is estimated to be                  
$540,000 (salary and mileage) based upon full-time RPR services on an eight-hour 
workday, Monday through Friday, over a 506 day construction schedule. 

2. If rate(s) for RPR services is not indicated in Appendix Two to Exhibit C, “Standard Hourly 
Rates Schedule,” the Standard Hourly Rate for RPR services is $123.00 per hour.” 

B. Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses: 

1. For those Reimbursable Expenses that are not accounted for in the compensation for 
Basic Services under Paragraph C2.01, and are directly related to the provision of 
Resident Project Representative or Post-Construction Basic Services, Owner shall pay 
Engineer at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this Exhibit C. 

2. Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following:  
transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental thereto; providing 
and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; subsistence and 
transportation of Resident Project Representative and assistants; toll telephone calls, 
mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports, Drawings, 
Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents, Construction Contract 
Documents, and similar Project-related items. In addition, if authorized in advance by 
Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also include expenses incurred for the use of highly 
specialized equipment. 

3. The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be those 
internal expenses related to the Resident Project Representative Basic Services that are 
actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, plus all invoiced external Reimbursable 
Expenses allocable to such services, the latter multiplied by a factor of one (1). 

4. The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually (as of June 1) to reflect 
equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer.  Changes will not be 
effective unless and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.  

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment Under this Paragraph C2.04: 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative Services— 
 Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                              Page 2 

1. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer’s 
Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s Consultants to 
Engineer times a factor of one (1). 

2. Factors:  The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s factors 
include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the 
administration of such services and costs. 

3. Estimated Compensation Amounts: 

a. Engineer’s estimate of the amounts that will become payable for specified services 
are only estimates for planning purposes, are not binding on the parties, and are 
not the minimum or maximum amounts payable to Engineer under the Agreement.   

b. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated herein and it 
subsequently becomes apparent to Engineer that the total compensation amount 
thus estimated will be exceeded, Engineer shall give Owner and Agency written 
notice thereof, allowing Owner to consider its options, including suspension or 
termination of Engineer's services for Owner's convenience.  Upon notice Owner 
and Engineer promptly shall review the matter of services remaining to be 
performed and compensation for such services.  Owner shall either exercise its 
right to suspend or terminate Engineer's services for Owner's convenience, agree to 
such compensation exceeding said estimated amount, or agree to a reduction in 
the remaining services to be rendered by Engineer, so that total compensation for 
such services will not exceed said estimated amount when such services are 
completed.  If Owner decides not to suspend Engineer's services during 
negotiations and Engineer exceeds the estimated amount before Owner and 
Engineer have agreed to an increase in the compensation due Engineer or a 
reduction in the remaining services, then Engineer shall be paid for all services 
rendered hereunder. 

4. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s timely request, 
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at cost at not cost. 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet AS-1:  Additional Services – 
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

COMPENSATION PACKET AS-1:   
Additional Services – Standard Hourly Rates 

 
Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 
C2.05 Compensation for Additional Services – Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment 
 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Additional Services, if any, as follows: 

1. General:  For services of Engineer’s personnel engaged directly on the Project pursuant 
to Paragraph A2.01 or A2.02 of Exhibit A, except for services as a consultant or witness 
under Paragraph A2.01.A.20, (which if needed shall be separately negotiated based on 
the nature of the required consultation or testimony) an amount equal to the 
cumulative hours charged to the Project by each class of Engineer’s personnel times 
Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class for all Additional Services 
performed on the Project, plus related Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s 
Consultant’s charges, if any. 

B. Compensation For Reimbursable Expenses: 

1. For those Reimbursable Expenses that are not accounted for in the compensation for 
Basic Services under Paragraph C2.01 and are directly related to the provision of 
Additional Services, Owner shall pay Engineer at the rates set forth in Appendix 1 to this 
Exhibit C. 

2. Reimbursable Expenses include the expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following 
categories:  transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental 
thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; 
toll telephone calls, mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports, 
Drawings, Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents, 
Construction Contract Documents, and similar Project-related items; and Consultants’ 
charges. In addition, if authorized in advance by Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also 
include expenses incurred for the use of highly specialized equipment. 

3. The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be the 
Additional Services-related internal expenses actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, 
plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses allocable to such Additional Services, 
the latter multiplied by a factor of One (1). 

4. The Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted annually (as of June 1) to reflect 
equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer.  Changes will not be 
effective unless and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.    

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment for Additional Services: 

1. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer’s 
Consultants, those charges shall be the amounts billed by Engineer’s Consultants to 
Engineer times a factor of one (1). 



 

Exhibit C – Compensation Packet AS-1:  Additional Services – 
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 2 

2. Factors:  The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer’s Consultant’s Factors 
include Engineer’s overhead and profit associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the 
administration of such services and costs. 

3. To the extent necessary to verify Engineer’s charges and upon Owner’s timely request, 
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at no cost. 



 

Exhibit C – Appendix 1: Reimbursable Expenses Schedule. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This is Appendix 1 to EXHIBIT C, consisting of 1 pages, 
referred to in and part of the Agreement between 

Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated [            

]. 
 

Reimbursable Expenses Schedule 

 
Reimbursable Expenses are subject to review and adjustment per Exhibit C.  Rates and charges for 
Reimbursable Expenses as of the date of the Agreement are:  
 
   

8"x11" Copies/Impressions                                                                            $ [            ]/page 

Copies of Drawings         $ [            ]/sq. ft. 

Mileage (auto)    $ 0.625/mile 

Air Transportation   at cost 

CAD Charge  See Appendix 2 

Laboratory Testing  at cost  

Health and Safety Level D  $ [            ]/day 

Health and Safety Level C  $ [            ]/day 

Meals and Lodging  at cost 

 



 

Exhibit C – Appendix 2: Standard Hourly Rates Schedule. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This is Appendix 2 to EXHIBIT C, consisting of 1 
pages, referred to in and part of the Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer for Professional 

Services dated [            ]. 
 

Standard Hourly Rates Schedule 
 

A. Standard Hourly Rates: 

1. Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in this Appendix 2 to this Exhibit C and include 
salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and 
statutory benefits, general and administrative overhead, non-project operating costs, 
and operating margin or profit. 

2. The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Article C2. 

B. Schedule: 

 Hourly rates for services performed on or after the date of the Agreement are: 

Principal II $229.00 /hour

Principal I $217.00 /hour

Senior $198.00 /hour

VIII $181.00 /hour

VII $172.00 /hour

VI $163.00 /hour

V $152.00 /hour

IV $141.00 /hour

III $129.00 /hour

II $116.00 /hour

I $103.00 /hour

Lead $138.00 /hour

Senior $132.00 /hour

VIII $123.00 /hour

VII $113.00 /hour

VI $102.00 /hour

V $92.00 /hour

IV $83.00 /hour

III $75.00 /hour

II $69.00 /hour

I $60.00 /hour

II $71.00 /hour

I $58.00 /hour

Administrative 

Technical

CADD, Survey, Construction Observation

Professional

Engineer, Landscape Architect, Land Surveyor, GIS, Environmental Scientist

Project Manager, Planner, Right-of-Way Agent, Graphic Designer

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
2022-23

STANDARD FEE SCHEDULE

Billing RateBilling Classification/Level

 
 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT D, consisting of 5 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 

 
Article 1 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

D1.01 Resident Project Representative 
 

A. Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (“RPR”) to assist Engineer in 
observing progress and quality of the Work.  The RPR may provide full time representation or 
may provide representation to a lesser degree. RPR is Engineer’s representative at the Site, 
will act as directed by and under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer 
regarding RPR’s actions.  Full time Resident Project Representative is required unless 
requested in writing by the Owner and waived in writing by the Agency.  

B. Through RPR's observations of the Work, including field checks of materials and installed 
equipment, Engineer shall endeavor to provide further protection for Owner against defects 
and deficiencies in the Work.  However, Engineer shall not, as a result of such RPR 
observations of the Work, supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer 
(including the RPR) have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or 
safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to the Work or any 
Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or schedules, 
or for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the 
performing and furnishing of its work.  The Engineer (including RPR) neither guarantees the 
performances of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to 
furnish and perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in accordance with the 
Construction Contract Documents.  In addition, the specific terms set forth in Exhibit A, 
Paragraph A1.05, of this Agreement are applicable. 

C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are as follows: 

1. General:  RPR’s dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general shall be with 
Engineer and Contractor.  RPR’s dealings with Subcontractors shall only be through or 
with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor.  RPR shall generally communicate 
with Owner only with the knowledge of and under the direction of Engineer. 

2. Schedules:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample 
submittals, schedule of values, and other schedules prepared by Contractor and consult 
with Engineer concerning acceptability of such schedules. 

3. Conferences and Meetings:  Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction 
conferences, progress meetings, job conferences, and other Project-related meetings 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 2 

(but not including Contractor’s safety meetings), and as appropriate prepare and 
circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

4. Safety Compliance:  Comply with Site safety programs, as they apply to RPR, and if 
required to do so by such safety programs, receive safety training specifically related to 
RPR’s own personal safety while at the Site. 

5. Liaison: 

a. Serve as Engineer’s liaison with Contractor.  Working principally through 
Contractor’s authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information 
regarding the provisions and intent of the Construction Contract Documents. 

b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner’s liaison with Contractor when Contractor’s 
operations affect Owner’s on-Site operations. 

c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for 
proper execution of the Work. 

6. Clarifications and Interpretations:  Receive from Contractor submittal of any matters in 
question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents 
(sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), or relating 
to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. Report to 
Engineer regarding such RFIs. Report to Engineer when clarifications and interpretations 
of the Construction Contract Documents are needed, whether as the result of a 
Contractor RFI or otherwise. Transmit Engineer’s clarifications, interpretations, and 
decisions to Contractor. ,  

7. Shop Drawings and Samples: 

a. Record date of receipt of Samples and Contractor-approved Shop Drawings.   

b. Receive Samples that are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify Engineer of 
availability of Samples for examination. 

c. Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work 
requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal, if RPR believes that the submittal 
has not been received from Contractor, or has not been approved by Contractor or 
Engineer. 

8. Proposed Modifications:  Consider and evaluate Contractor’s suggestions for 
modifications to the Drawings or Specifications, and report such suggestions, together 
with RPR’s recommendations, if any, to Engineer.  Transmit Engineer’s response (if any) 
to such suggestions to Contractor.  

9. Review of Work; Defective Work: 

a. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Work is defective 
under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, 
and provide recommendations as to whether such Work should be corrected, 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 3 

removed and replaced, or accepted as provided in the Construction Contract 
Documents.  

b. Inform Engineer of any Work that RPR believes is not defective under the terms and 
standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, but is nonetheless not 
compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning 
whole, and provide recommendations to Engineer for addressing such Work. ; and  

c. Advise Engineer of that part of the Work that RPR believes should be uncovered for 
observation, or requires special testing, inspection, or approval. 

10. Inspections, Tests, and System Start-ups: 

a. Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduled inspections, tests, and systems start-
ups. 

b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance 
training are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner’s personnel, and that 
Contractor maintains adequate records thereof. 

c. Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the test 
procedures and systems start-ups.  

d. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws and 
Regulations, including but not limited to those to be performed by public or other 
agencies having jurisdiction over the Work. 

e. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having 
jurisdiction over the Work, record the results of these inspections, and report to 
Engineer. 

11. Records: 

a. Maintain at the Site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, 
copies of Construction Contract Documents including all Change Orders, Field 
Orders, Work Change Directives, Addenda, additional Drawings issued subsequent 
to the execution of the Construction Contract, RFIs, Engineer’s clarifications and 
interpretations of the Construction Contract Documents, progress reports, 
approved Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, and other Project-related 
documents. 

b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor’s hours on 
the Site, Subcontractors present at the Site, weather conditions, data relative to 
questions of Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, or changed 
conditions, Site visitors, deliveries of equipment or materials, daily activities, 
decisions, observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the 
case of observing test procedures; and send copies to Engineer. 

c. Upon request from Owner to Engineer, photograph or video Work in progress or 
Site conditions. 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 4 

d. Record and maintain accurate, up-to-date lists of the names, addresses, fax 
numbers, e-mail addresses, websites, and telephone numbers (including mobile 
numbers) of all Contractors, Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of materials and 
equipment. 

e. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation. 

f. Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPR Project documentation 
to Engineer. 

g. Maintain all Manufacturers’ Certification letters in the project file and on site 
during construction to ensure compliance with American and Iron Steel 
requirements mandated by Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food 
and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and 
subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference, as applicable. 

12. Reports: 

a. Furnish to Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of 
Contractor’s compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing 
and Sample submittals. 

b. Draft and recommend to Engineer proposed Change Orders, Work Change 
Directives, and Field Orders.  Obtain backup material from Contractor. Deleted 

c. Furnish to Engineer and Owner copies of all inspection, test, and system start-up 
reports. 

d. Immediately inform Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, emergencies, 
acts of God endangering the Work, possible force majeure or delay events, damage 
to property by fire or other causes, or the discovery of any potential differing site 
condition or Constituent of Concern.  

13. Payment Requests:  Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance 
with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations 
to Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the 
schedule of values, Work completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site 
but not incorporated in the Work. 

14. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals:  During the course of the Work, verify 
that materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and 
other data required by the Contract Documents to be assembled and furnished by 
Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, and have these documents delivered to Engineer for review and 
forwarding to Owner prior to payment for that part of  the Work. 

15. Completion: 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 5 

a. Participate in Engineer’s visits to the Site regarding Substantial Completion, assist in 
the determination of Substantial Completion, and prior to the issuance of a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion submit a punch list of observed items 
requiring completion or correction.   

b. Participate in Engineer’s visit to the Site in the company of Owner and Contractor, 
to determine completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch list of items to be 
completed or corrected by Contractor. 

c. Observe whether all items on the final punch list have been completed or 
corrected, and make recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance and 
issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work (Exhibit E). 

D. Resident Project Representative shall not: 

1. Authorize any deviation from the Construction Contract Documents or substitution of 
materials or equipment (including “or-equal” items). 

2. Exceed limitations of Engineer’s authority as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers, or any 
Constructor. 

4. Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of the Work, by Contractor or any other 
Constructor.  

5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or safety practices, 
precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of Owner or 
Contractor. 

6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by 
others except as specifically authorized by Engineer. 

7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 

8. Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 1 

 
 

NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 

 
PROJECT: WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS – MONTICELLO, IA 
 
OWNER: MONTICELLO, IA 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
OWNER’S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:  
 
ENGINEER: SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC 
 

NOTICE DATE: 

 
To:   City of Monticello, 200 East First Street, Monticello, IA 52310      
  Owner  
 
And  To:        
  Contractor 
 
From:     Snyder & Associates, Inc; 5005 Bowling St. SW, Suite A, Cedar Rapids, IA 52403    
  Engineer 
 
The Engineer hereby gives notice to the above Owner and Contractor that Engineer has recommended 
final payment of Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above 
Construction Contract is acceptable, expressly subject to the provisions of the related Contract 
Documents, the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated ______, and the 
following terms and conditions of this Notice: 
 

 
CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 

 
 The Notice of Acceptability of Work (“Notice”) is expressly made subject to the following terms 
and conditions to which all those who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree: 
 

1. This Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering 
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality. 



 

Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                          Page 2 

2. This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineer’s professional opinion. 

3. This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief as of 
the Notice Date.  

4. This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer 
has been employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Project 
(including observation of the Contractor’s work) under Engineer’s Agreement with 
Owner, and applies only to facts that are within Engineer’s knowledge or could 
reasonably have been ascertained by Engineer as a result of carrying out the 
responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such Agreement. 

5. This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor’s performance under the 
Construction Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the related 
Contract Documents, including but not limited to defective Work discovered after final 
inspection, nor an assumption of responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish 
and perform the Work thereunder in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents, or to otherwise comply with the Construction Contract Documents or the 
terms of any special guarantees specified therein. 

6. This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the 
Construction Contract, and is subject to Owner’s reservations of rights with respect to 
completion and final payment. 

 
  

By: 
 
 

  
 

Name 
and Title: 

 
 
 

  
 

Dated: 

 
 
 

 



 

Exhibit G – Insurance. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT G, consisting of 2 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ]. 
 

Insurance 
 

Paragraph 6.05 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 

G6.05 Insurance 
 

A. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.05.A and 6.05.B of the 
Agreement are as follows: 

1. By Engineer: 

a. Workers’ Compensation:  Statutory  

b. Employer’s Liability -- 

1) Bodily injury, each accident: $100,000 
2) Bodily injury by disease, each employee: $100,000 
3) Bodily injury/disease, aggregate: $500,000 

 
c. General Liability -- 

1) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): $1,000,000 
2) General Aggregate:                 $2,000,000 

 
d. Excess or Umbrella Liability --   

1) Per Occurrence: $5,000,000 
2) General Aggregate: $5,000,000 

 
e. Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 

 $1,000,000 
 

f. Professional Liability – 

1) Each Claim Made $2,000,000 
2) Annual Aggregate $4,000,000 

 
g. Other (specify):              $None 

 
2. By Owner: Deleted 

a. Workers’ Compensation:  Statutory  



 

Exhibit G – Insurance. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                    and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                 Page 2 

b. Employer’s Liability -- 

1) Bodily injury, Each Accident $[            ] 
2) Bodily injury by Disease, Each Employee $[            ] 
3) Bodily injury/Disease, Aggregate  $[            ] 

 
c. General Liability -- 

1) General Aggregate:                 $[            ] 
2) Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): $[            ] 

  
 

d. Excess Umbrella Liability 

1) Per Occurrence: $[            ] 
2) General Aggregate: $[            ] 

 
e. Automobile Liability – Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage): 

  $[            ] 
 

f. Other (specify):              $[            ] 

 
B. Additional Insureds: Deleted 

1. The following individuals or entities are to be listed on Owner’s general liability policies 
of insurance as additional insureds: 

 
 
a. 

a.   
 
[            ] 

  Engineer 
 
 
b. 

  
 
[            ] 

  Engineer’s Consultant 
 
 
c. 

  
 
[            ] 

  Engineer’s Consultant 

d.  [            ] 

  [other] 
 

2. During the term of this Agreement the Engineer shall notify Owner of any other 
Consultant to be listed as an additional insured on Owner’s general liability policies of 
insurance. 

3. The Owner shall be listed on Engineer’s general liability policy as provided in 
Paragraph 6.05.A. 



 

Exhibit H - Dispute Resolution. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                        and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                     Page 1 



 

 

Exhibit I - Limitations on Liability. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                          and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                   Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT I, consisting of 1 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ].  
 

 

Limitations of Liability 

 
Paragraph 6.11 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 

A. Limitation of Engineer’s Liability 

1. Engineer’s Liability Limited to Amount of Engineer’s Compensation:  To the fullest extent 
permitted byLaws and Regulations, and notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Engineer and Engineer’s officers, 
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants, to Owner and 
anyone claiming by, through, or under Owner for any and all claims, losses, costs, or 
damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the Project 
or the Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited to the negligence, 
professional errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, indemnity 
obligations, or warranty express or implied of Engineer or Engineer’s officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, employees, or Consultants shall not exceed the total 
compensation received by Engineer under this Agreement. 

 

 

E. Indemnification by Owner:  To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, 
Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, 
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants from and against any and all claims, costs, 
losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, 
architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court, arbitration, or other dispute 
resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the Project, provided that any such claim, 
cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death or to injury 
to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use 
resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of 
Owner or Owner’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, consultants, 
or others retained by or under contract to the Owner with respect to this Agreement or to 
the Project. 

 



 

Exhibit J - Special Provisions. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                          and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                   Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT J, consisting of 1 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ].  
 
 

Special Provisions 

 
Paragraph(s) Article 8 – Exhibits and Special Provisions, 8.01. J Special Provisions of the Agreement 
is/are amended to include the following agreement(s) of the parties: 
 

1. USDA RD Instruction 1940-Q, Exhibit A, Certification for Contracts, Grants and Loans, 
Disclosure of Lobbying Activities. 

2. USDA RUS Bulletin 1780-26, Exhibit C, RUS Certification Page, Summary of Engineering 
Fees.  

3. Snyder & Associates: Standard Professional Services Agreement – Dated November 16, 
2020  

 
 
 



 

Exhibit K – Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT K, consisting of 2 pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

dated [            ].  
 

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT 
Amendment No. _____ 

 
The Effective Date of this Amendment is: ______. 

 
Background Data  
  
 Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement:  
 
 Owner: 
 
 Engineer: 
 
 Project: 
   
Nature of Amendment: [Check those that are applicable and delete those that are inapplicable.] 

 
____ Additional Services to be performed by Engineer 

____ Modifications to services of Engineer 

____ Modifications to responsibilities of Owner 

____ Modifications of payment to Engineer 

____ Modifications to time(s) for rendering services 

____ Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

Description of Modifications: 

Here describe the modifications, in as much specificity and detail as needed.  Use an 
attachment if necessary. 

 
Agreement Summary: 
 
     Original agreement amount:    $_____________ 
     Net change for prior amendments:               $_____________ 
     This amendment amount:                  $_____________ 
     Adjusted Agreement amount:              $_____________ 
 
     Change in time for services (days or date, as applicable): ______ 
 
 



 

Exhibit K – Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  
                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 2 

The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Agreement, 
including those set forth in Exhibit C. 
 
Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this 
Amendment.  All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this or previous Amendments remain in 
effect.   
 
OWNER:  ENGINEER: 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

 
By: 

 
 

Print 
name: 

  Print 
name: 

 

 
Title: 

 
 

  
Title: 

 
 

 
Date Signed: 

 
 

  
Date Signed: 

 
 

 

 



RD Instruction 194O-Q 
Exhibit A-I 

 
 

CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS AND LOANS 
 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant or Federal loan, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant or 
loan. 

 
2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 
of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant or loan, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in 
accordance with its instructions. 

 
3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including contracts, subcontracts, and 
subgrants under grants and loans) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.  Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
 
 
 
   _________________________________________  ________________________________ 

(name) (date) 
 
 
  Lindsay Beaman, PE, Regional Manager 

 

(title) 
 
 
 
 
 
(08-21-91) PN 171 (4-7-97) SPN 508 

lbeaman
Stamp

lbeaman
Text Box
September 13, 2022

lbeaman
Text Box
Business Unit Leader



Rural Development  Instruction 1940-Q 
Exhibit A, page 16 
6744 Federal Register/Vol. 55. No. 38/Monday, February 26, 1990/Rules and Regulations 

 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
 

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or 
receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352.  The filing of a 
form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with a covered Federal action.  Use the SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet for additional information if the space 
on the form is inadequate.  Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the 
implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information. 

 
1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a 

covered Federal action. 
 

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 
 

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report.  If this a follow-up report caused by a material change to the information 
previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred.  Enter the date of the last previously submitted 
report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action. 

 
4. Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the reporting entity.  Include Congressional District, if known.  Check 

the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. 
Identify the tier of the subawardee e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier.  Subawards include but are not l imited 
to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

 
5. If the organizations filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee", then enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code 

of the prime Federal recipient.  Include Congressional District, if known. 
 

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment.  Include at least one organizational level below 
the agency name, if known.  For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

 
7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1).  If known, enter the full Catalog of 

Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments. 
 

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g. Request for 
Proposal (PFP) number, Invitation for Bid (IFB) number, grant announcement number, the contract, grant, or loan award 
number, the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency).  Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001." 

 
9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal 

amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5. 
 

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, state and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity in item 4 to 
influence the covered Federal action. 

 
(b)   Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a).  Enter Last 

Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI). 
 

11. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (item 4) to the lobbying entity 
(item 10).  Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply.  If this 
is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made. 

 
12. Check the appropriate box(es).  Check all boxes that apply.  If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the 

nature and value of the in-kind payment. 
 

13. Check the appropriate box(es).  Check all boxes that apply.  If other, specify nature. 
 

14. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expected to perform, and 
the date(s) of any services rendered.  Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with 
Federal officials.  Identify the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of 
Congress that were contacted. 

 
15. Check whether or not a SF-LLL-A Continuation Sheet(s) is attached. 

 
16. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number. 

 

 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including time for  
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing 
the collection of information.  Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, 
including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348 -0046), 
Washington, D.C. 20503. 



RUS Bulletin 1780-26 
Exhibit C 

Page 1 

 

 
 

RUS CERTIFICATION PAGE 

 

 

PROJECT NAME: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements  
 
 

The Engineer and Owner hereby concur in the Funding Agency required revisions to E-500 

(2014).  In addition, Engineer certifies to the following: 

 

All modifications required by RUS Bulletin 1780-26 have been made in accordance with the 

terms of the license agreement, which states in part that the Engineer “must plainly show all 

changes to the Standard EJCDC Text, using ‘Track Changes’ (redline/strikeout), highlighting, or 

other means of clearly indicating additions and deletions.” Such other means may include 

attachments indicating changes (e.g. Supplementary Conditions modifying the General 

Conditions). 

 

 

SUMMARY OF ENGINEERING FEES 

 

Note that the fees indicated on this table are only a summary and if there is a conflict with any 

provision of Exhibit C, the provisions there overrule the values on this table. Fees shown in will 

not be exceeded without the concurrence of the Agency. 
 

Basic Services  $ 1,140,000  

Resident Project Observation 
 

$ 540,000  

Additional Services 
 

$ 0  

 
TOTAL: $ 1,680,000  



RUS Bulletin 1780-26 
Exhibit C 

Page 2 

 

 

Any adjustments to engineering fees or changes to maximum estimated values must be approved 

by the Agency and must include a table of what specific category or categories of fees are being 

changed, what fees were before and after the change, and the resulting total fee. 
 

 

 
 

Engineer Date 
 

 

 
 

Name and Title 
 

 

 
 

Owner Date 
 

 

 
 

Name and Title 
 

 

 

Agency Concurrence: 

 

As lender or insurer of funds to defray the costs of this Contract, and without liability for any 

payments thereunder, the Agency hereby concurs in the form, content, and execution of this 

Agreement. 
 

 

 
 

Agency Representative Date 
 

 

 
 

Name and Title 

lbeaman
Stamp

lbeaman
Text Box
Lindsay Beaman, Business Unit Leader

lbeaman
Text Box
Sept 13, 2022



#7
10/03/2022



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

To Acknowledge Monticello Library Youth Services Librarian 
 wages effective October 3, 2022 

  
WHEREAS, Most City employees’ wages are covered by a collective bargaining 
agreement where wages are pre-determined, and some are covered by employment 
agreements where wages and planned increases were bargained for and previously 
determined, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library Director and Library staff are not covered by the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement and their wages are set by the Library Board, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Library Board has approved staff wage increase effective October 3, 
2022 as follows: 
 
                 Penny Schmit $15.97  to   $17.57 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council recognizes that the Library Board is vested with the power to 
set library staff wages and that the purpose of the Council approval of this Resolution is 
to acknowledge the wage increase and to give direction to the City Payroll Clerk. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby acknowledge the wage increase noted herein. 
 

  IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto  
  subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for  
  the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done  
  this 3rd day of October, 2022. 
 

   ______________________________________ 
   David Goedken, Mayor   
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 



Communication Page 

 
 

 

 

Synopsis:  The Iowa Economic Development Agency and Main Street Iowa have selected Monticello 

Main Street for participation in the Main Street Program. The accompanying agreement solidifies the 

participation in this program, and re-affirms the City’s commitment and participation in supporting 

Monticello Main Street. 

Analysis:   As noted above, this agreement re-affirms the City’s commitment to Monticello Main 

Street and its participation in the Main Street Program. There is nothing in this agreement that binds 

the City beyond prior commitments, either financially or for services and support. 

The City’s obligations are set forth in Section 2, Paragraphs 1 through 4. Of these, the most onerous 

obligation is Paragraph 4, which states: 

Pass a Resolution to demonstrate the City’s support of the Local Main Street Program and 

revitalization of the downtown/designated Main Street district as an important element of the 

City's economic development strategy. In the resolution, the City must commit to providing 

funding for the Local Main Street Program, appoint a City official to represent the City on the 

Local Main Street Program governing board, and commit to continuing to follow the Main 

Street Approach® as developed by the Main Street America and espoused by the MSI Program 

for local Main Street district revitalization efforts. 

In fact, the city already did this on April 18th, in Resolution #2022-57. 

Recommendation:  Approval is recommended. 

Agenda Item: #  

Agenda Date: 10/03/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Contract with IEDA, Main Street Iowa, Monticello Main Street, and the 
City of Monticello 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Contract 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 09/27/2022 

Preparer: Russell Farnum 

8



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
  

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #   
 

Authorizing the Mayor to sign Monticello Main Street and City 
continued support and participation in the Main Street Program 

 
 

 Whereas, Main Street Iowa has been created to assist communities to develop a public-
private effort to revitalize their historic commercial "Main Street" districts, and 
 

Whereas, the Iowa Economic Development Authority will be selected two Iowa cities to 
participate in the Main Street Iowa program, which Monticello was one of the two cities, and 

 
Whereas, the Council previously approved the submission of an application to be 

accepted into the Main Street Program and to financially support the program on June 17, 2019 
by Resolution 19-84, and 

 
Whereas, the Council has previously approved to pledge support to the Local Main Street 

Program governing board for a period of three years in the amount of $20,000 cash and $5,000 In-
kind per year, to be paid from the Hotel/Motel Tax fund and/or the General Fund in amounts to 
be determined at a later date, and  

 
Whereas, the Council authorizes the Mayor to execute the Main Street Monticello 

Agreement, on behalf of the City Council, to demonstrate the City’s support of the Local Main 
Street Program and revitalization of the downtown/designated Main Street district as an 
important element of the City’s economic development strategy.  Further committing to 
continuing to follow the Main Street Approach as developed by the Main Street America and 
espouse by the MSI Program for local Main Street district revitalization efforts.  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Monticello 
does hereby agree to pledge the sum of $20,000 cash and $5,000 In-kind per year to the Main 
Street Monticello program for three years, authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement to 
participate in the Main Street Iowa program on behalf of the City Council. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed 
my name and caused the Great Seal of the City of 
Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done this 3rd day of 
October 2022. 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
     Brian Wolken, Mayor 
Attest:      
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, Monticello City Clerk  



Agreement # G300-MSI-57 

Page 1 of 5 

MAIN STREET IOWA PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

THIS MAIN STREET IOWA PROGRAM  AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into 
and executed by the Iowa Economic Development Authority (the “IEDA”), the City of  Monticello (the 
“City”), and Monticello Main Street (the “Local Main Street Program”) (Individually “Party” and 
Jointly, the “Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the IEDA administers the Main Street Iowa Program (the “MSI Program”); and 

WHEREAS, the City was selected to participate in the MSI Program in 2022 and entered into a 
Program Agreement with the IEDA pursuant to which the City and the Local Main Street 
Program established a partnership with IEDA; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Local Main Street Program desire to participate in the MSI 
Program; and 

WHEREAS, the IEDA desires to begin the relationship established with the City and the Local Main 
Street Program; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and mutual covenants and agreements 
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION I.  The Local Main Street Program agrees to: 

1. Main Street Revitalization Focus:
a. Maintain the Local Main Street Program’s focus on the revitalization of the designated

Main Street district utilizing the Main Street Approach®. This focus should be reflected in
the programs annual plan of action, goals and objectives, vision, and mission statement.

b. Promote the revitalization of the Main Street district through advocacy of tools and
resources that support district investment, for example: development incentives,
ordinances and policy that promote the revitalization of the district, design guidelines or
standards that promote the protection of the traditional character of the district, district
development planning, etc.

2. Main Street Paid Executive Director:
a. Employ a paid part-time Executive Director for the Local Main Street Program who will

be responsible for the day-to-day administration of the Local Main Street Program in
the City. Full-time employment is defined as 40 hours per week dedicated to the Local
Main Street Program. Part time employment is 25 hours per week dedicated to the Local
Main Street Program. The Local Main Street Program and the City will work to the best
of their ability to provide professional support, competitive compensation, and benefits
for the Executive Director position.

b. In the event this position is vacated during the time of this agreement, the Local Main
Street Program shall fill this position in a reasonable time and provide a written timeline
to fill this position to the IEDA’s Main Street Iowa State Coordinator (“the Coordinator”).

c. If the Executive Director for the Local Main Street Program also serves as the director,
executive director, chief executive officer, president, or other leadership role for another
organization or program (e.g., chamber, tourism, community/county economic
development, City, etc.) the Executive Director shall dedicate at least twenty-five hours
per week to their duties as Executive Director of the Local Main Street Program.

d. Develop and maintain an accurate position description for the Executive Director, a copy
of which shall be provided to the Coordinator, which includes the rate of compensation
and describes the professional activities for which the Executive Director is responsible.

e. Maintain worker's compensation insurance for the Executive Director and staff.



Agreement # G300-MSI-57 

Page 2 of 5 

3. Designated Main Street District: Submit to the Coordinator a current map of the approved
designated Main Street district contemporaneously with execution of this Agreement.

4. Main Street Program Office: Maintain an office within the designated boundaries of the local
Main Street district. 

5. Main Street Economic Impact Reporting:
a. Submit economic impact reports to the Coordinator on or before established due date

documenting the progress of the Local Main Street Program's activities.
b. If the Local Main Street Program is 30 or more days late submitting any economic impact

report, Main Street Iowa design services, business support services, eligibility for grant
applications, and targeted technical assistance visits available through Main Street Iowa
may be suspended until the Local Main Street Program has submitted all required
reports.

6. National Main Street Accreditation:
a. Maintain Main Street America National Accreditation.
b. Maintain a “Main Street America Member Community” membership with Main Street

America.
c. Use the words “Main Street” when referring to and marketing the Local Main Street

Program, either as an official part of the organization’s name or as a tagline such as “A
Main Street Iowa Program”. As a designated Main Street Iowa community, the Local
Main Street Program shall include the Main Street America and Main Street Iowa logos
on all communication materials.

7. Training Requirements:
a. Participate, as required by the IEDA, in training sessions as scheduled throughout the

year. To remain in compliance and to be eligible for Main Street America National
Accreditation, the Local Main Street Program shall be represented at both days, in their
entirety, of the three (3) annual training sessions that have been designated as
mandatory on the MSI Program calendar.

b. Any newly hired Executive Director will be required to participate in Main Street
Orientation as soon after the hire date as feasible. Registration and all related travel
expenses for training will be paid by the Local Main Street Program.

8. Demonstrated Support:
a. Obtain from the City’s governing body a Resolution of Support of the Local Main Street

Program. This resolution must describe sources and amounts of funding for the program,
a commitment to appoint a City official to represent the City on the Local Main Street
Program governing board of directors, and that the City will continue to follow the Main
Street Approach® as developed by Main Street America and espoused by Main Street
Iowa for Main Street district revitalization.

b. Obtain a Resolution of Support from the Local Main Street Program governing board in
which the board commits to continuing Main Street district revitalization following the
Main Street Approach® as developed by the Main Street America and espoused by the
MSI Program.

9. Compliance:
a. Not assign this agreement to another organization without obtaining prior written

approval of the IEDA.
b. Remain in compliance with the requirements of the MSI Program as outlined in this

agreement and the administrative rules for the MSI Program, 261 IAC Chapter 39.  If the



Agreement # G300-MSI-57 

Page 3 of 5 

IEDA finds that the Local Main Street Program is not in compliance with the 
requirements of this program agreement: 

i. IEDA shall issue an “Initial Warning” describing how the Local Main Street
Program is out of compliance and provide guidance on how to resolve the
issues.  The Local Main Street Program will have 90 days to resolve non-
compliance issues.  During this 90-day period, all Main Street Iowa services, with
the exception of targeted technical assistance to help the Local Main Street
Program mitigate non-compliant items, will be suspended. At the end of the 90-
day period, the IEDA will evaluate whether The Local Main Street Program has
resolved the non-compliant issues.

ii. If the Local Main Street Program is not in compliance at the end of the 90-day
Initial Warning period, the IEDA may issue a Final Warning notifying the Local
Main Street Program that, if the Local Main Street Program is not in compliance
within 90 days after issuance of the Final Warning, Main Street Iowa may
terminate this Agreement.

iii. The IEDA will send Notice of Termination via overnight delivery service to the
Local Main Street Program, the City, and Main Street America.  Termination of
this Agreement will result in the loss of recognition as a participant in the MSI
Program and discontinuation all services provided by IEDA.

iv. Within 30 days after issuance of the Notice of Termination, the Local Main Street
Program shall cease using the trademarked brand “Main Street” and/or “Main
Street Program” in its name or as part of its organization’s identity.

v. The City may reapply for Main Street Iowa designation.

10. Main Street Re-Designation:
a. Continued participation in the MSI Program after the term of this Agreement shall be

contingent upon re-designation as a participant in the MSI Program. Submission of a
request for re-designation shall be submitted at least 90 days prior to the end of the term
of this Agreement.

b. The IEDA will provide information and guidance regarding re-designation to the Local
Main Street Program at least 6 months prior to the re-designation request submission
deadline.

c. To be re-designated as a participant in the MSI Program, at a minimum, the Local Main
Street Program shall:

i. Document local revitalization impacts through its partnership with Main Street
Iowa;

ii. Demonstrate the Local Main Street Program’s active utilization of MSI Program
services and benefits;

iii. Identify specific plans for future downtown/Main Street district revitalization;
iv. Set out future Main Street Iowa technical assistance needs; and
v. Demonstrate continued broad-based commitment and support of the Local Main

Street Program and its revitalization efforts.

SECTION II.  The CITY agrees to: 

1. Main Street Revitalization Support:
a. Support and partner with the Local Main Street Program’s focus on the revitalization of

the designated Main Street district utilizing the Main Street Approach®.
b. Support the revitalization of the Main Street district by utilizing tools and resources that

support Main Street district investment, for example: development incentives, ordinances
and policy that promote the revitalization of the district, design guidelines or standards
that promote the protection of the traditional character of the district, district development
planning, etc.



Agreement # G300-MSI-57 

Page 4 of 5 

2. Main Street Financial Support: Invest financially into the operation of the Local Main Street
Program. 

3. National Main Street Accreditation: Support the Local Main Street Program in compliance with
this Agreement and with the completion of the annual Main Street America Accreditation and
the re-designation process described above.

4. Demonstrated Support: Pass a Resolution to demonstrate the City’s support of the Local Main
Street Program and revitalization of the downtown/designated Main Street district as an
important element of the City's economic development strategy. In the resolution, the City must
commit to providing funding for the Local Main Street Program, appoint a City official to
represent the City on the Local Main Street Program governing board, and commit to continuing
to follow the Main Street Approach® as developed by the Main Street America and espoused by
the MSI Program for local Main Street district revitalization efforts.

SECTION III.  The IEDA agrees to: 

1. National Main Street Accreditation: Administer the Main Street America Accreditation process in
Iowa on behalf of Main Street America and recognize Local Main Street Programs and Cities
who successfully meet the Main Street America Accreditation Standards.

2. Main Street Technical Assistance:
a. Maintain a team of downtown revitalization specialists, including a Main Street Iowa

State Coordinator, to manage communication between the Local Main Street Program,
City, the Main Street Iowa Program, and state government agencies.

b. Provide, as requested and as can be scheduled, on-site technical assistance to the
Local Main Street Program and City by one or more downtown revitalization specialists.
Technical assistance may include design, economic vitality, promotion, organization,
committee training, board planning retreat facilitation, and action planning.

c. Conduct an on-site partnership visit at least once every two years.
d. Provide continuing advice and information to the Local Main Street Program and City.

3. Main Street Training:
a. Coordinate at least three (3) statewide training sessions annually for Local Main Street

Programs and Cities.  The nature of training to be provided at each session shall be
based on the combined needs of all Iowa Main Street Communities.

b. Conduct at least three MSI Program orientations for all new Executive Directors and
Local Main Street Program board members and volunteers.  The Orientation will
introduce the Executive Director and Local Main Street Program volunteers and board
members to the Main Street Program and to their immediate responsibilities.

c. Offer optional regional training sessions.
d. Statewide training sessions, orientations, and optional regional training sessions may be

virtual, as determined by IEDA.

4. Main Street Network: Include the Local Main Street Program and City in the Main Street Iowa
network. 

5. Main Street Designation:  Create and implement a re-designation process to be completed by
all Local Main Street Programs every five (5) years.



Agreement # G300-MSI-57 

Page 5 of 5 

SECTION IV.  The PARTIES hereto otherwise agree as follows: 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of seventeen (17) months beginning August 1,
2022 and ending December 31, 2023.

2. This Agreement may be amended by a written agreement to amend the Agreement signed by
all three Parties, provided that the IEDA may unilaterally amend this Agreement to comply with
legislative, administrative, and policy changes by the federal or state government.

3. Should any governmental unit enact, promulgate, or adopt laws, regulations, rules, or policies
which alter or in any way affect the MSI Program, the City and the Local Main Street Program
shall not hold IEDA liable in any manner for the resulting changes.

4. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their
successors.

5. No Party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race,
color, sex, age, disability, creed, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, or national origin.

6. Any Party may terminate this Agreement without cause after 30 days written notice to the other
two parties.

7. This Agreement supersedes any previous agreements or negotiations, whether oral or written.

8. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any employer-employee relationship between
or among any of the Parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement. 

BY:     _______________________________________ 
Mayor Signature Date 

_______________________________________ Monticello, IA 
Mayor Printed Name City 

BY:   _______________________________________ 
Board President Signature Date 

_______________________________________ Monticello Main Street 
Board President Printed Name Local Main Street Program 

BY:   _______________________________________ 
Deborah V. Durham, Director Date 
Iowa Economic Development Authority  





 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: To amend Chapter 69.08 No Parking Zones:  

 
 add South Linden Street on the East Side from Burroughs Street to Washington Street 

 
Background Information:   
 
As discussed at the prior meeting, two residents, Dave Lumpa and Linda Parker, along South Linden 
have expressed a desire to implement No Parking along South Linden Street for the reasoning that it is 
difficult for vehicles to pass between two vehicles parked adjacent to one another.  I had previously 
presented the Council with measurements of the streets in the immediate area and advised that South 
Linden is the narrowest street, at 24’ in width, to not have any parking restrictions.  
 
NORTH/SOUTH STREETS 
 
South Walnut St.     36.5’ 
No Parking Both Sides First St. to Grand St. (BUSES) 
No Parking on East Side from Grand St. to South St. (BUSES) 
 
South Chestnut St.  (First St. to Buckeye St.)  29.4’ 
No Restrictions 
South Chestnut St. (Buckeye St. to South St)  32.3 
No Restrictions 
South Chestnut St. (South St. to Dead End)  31’ 
No Restrictions 
 
Linden St. (Washington St. to Burroughs St.)  24’ 
No Restrictions 
 

Agenda Item: #  11 
Agenda Date: 10/3/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Ordinance for the addition of No Parking along the East Side of North 
Linden Street from the intersection of West Burroughs St. to West Washington St. 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 9/14/2022 
Preparer: Britt Smith 
 



 
EAST/WEST STREETS 
 
West Grand St. (Cedar St. to Walnut St.)  23.8’ 
No Parking on South Side from Bank Parking to Walnut St. 
 
West Washington St. (Cedar St. to Chestnut St.)  29.9’ 
No Restrictions 
West Washington St. (Chestnut St. to Walnut St.) 23’ 
No Parking on South Side 
 
West Varvel St.  (Cedar St. to Walnut St.)  25.6’ 
No Restrictions 
 
Buckeye St.  (Cedar St. to Walnut St.)   23.5’ 
No Restrictions 
 
Jackson St. (Chestnut St. to Walnut St.)   34.5’ 
No Restrictions 
 
South St. (Cedar St. to Walnut St.)   38’ 
No Restrictions except for School Zone 
 
The concerned residents pointed out that many years ago signage was present that limited the parking 
to one side of the street.  Those signs would have been installed without Council or Code approval, and 
have also been removed at some point prior to our knowledge.   
 
Initially, it was suggested to limit parking along the East side of South Linden. The three-block stretch 
of South Linden along the East Side of the street has 7 driveways and a fire hydrant, while the West 
Side of the street has only 5 driveways. The East Side of the Street has approximately 655’ of viable 
parking space, while the West Side has 710’ of viable parking space.  It was my recommendation to 
limit parking along the East Side of the Street.  
 
Since this discussion, I received a call from Linda Parker who advised that she believes the parking 
should be limited on the West Side because the residents along the East Side use the on-street parking 
more often.  I informed Linda that parking needs change over time and what is convenient now, may 
not be convenient later in time.   
 
Viewing this from none other than available parking, we should consider continuing to limit parking 
on the East side of the Street. 
  
Staff Recommendation:  I recommend that the Council consider approval of the Ordinances to 
Chapter 69 of the City of Monticello Code of Ordinances. 
 



ORDINANCE NO.    
 

An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Monticello,  
Iowa, by Adding New Subsections to Chapter 69, Parking Regulations,  

Section 08 No Parking Zones on portions of South Linden Street 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Monticello, Iowa: 
 
Section 1:  NEW SUBSECTION. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Monticello, Iowa, is 
amended by adding the new Subsections 29, 30, 31 and 32, which are hereby adopted to read 
as follows: 
   

38. South Linden Street on the East Side from Burroughs Street to Washington     
Street. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  If any section, provision, or part of this 
ordinance shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the 
validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4.  WHEN EFFECTIVE.  This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its 
final passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
Passed by the Council the ______ day of _______________, 2022, and approved this 
_________ day of ______________, 2022. 
 
       

______________________________ 
      David Goedken, Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
First Reading: ____________________ 
 
Second Reading: ____________________ 
 
Third Reading: _________________________ 



 
 
I certify that the foregoing was published as Ordinance #________ on the _________ day of 
____________, 2022. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



Communication Page 

 

 

 

Synopsis:  Horsfield completed the sidewalk replacement for the heaving sidewalks on Sycamore 

Street. The City agreement with Horsfield was that the City would inspect the sidewalks and base 

when the sidewalks were removed. If the sidewalks were not constructed to Plan, the removal and 

replacement would be on Horsfield. 

If the sidewalks were built to plan, the City would pay for the removal and replacement. As part of the 

project, the City would also pay for the addition of the underdrains, and the addition of rebar and pins 

in the replacement sidewalks. 

Background:  As noted above, the sidewalk replacement for the driveways with heaving sidewalks 

has been completed by Horsfield. From the beginning, Horsfield (justifiably) stated that the heaving 

was not a workmanship issue. The City Engineer could not solidly identify a singular cause for the 

heaving issues. 

The City Engineer and City Administrator worked with Horsfield to identify and rectify the heaving 

issue. Horsfield agreed to remove the heaving areas, add underdrains that tie into the storm sewer, and 

replace the sidewalks with rebar. Horsfield honored its per-unit pricing as set forth in the contract back 

in March of 2019. This pricing is a value for the City compared to current pricing. If workmanship 

issues were found in the removal of the sidewalk, Horsfield would cover the R&R for that portion of 

sidewalk. 

The invoices for the various replacements and underdrain improvements are attached. The City 

Engineer found some discrepancy in units and those are being corrected. However, we wanted to get 

them presented for payment and also, report on the findings of the sidewalk removal and inspection.  

Agenda Item: # 

Agenda Date: 10/03/2022 

Agenda Items Description:   Sycamore Street Sidewalk Replacement 

Type of Action Requested: Motion 

Attachments & Enclosures: 

Invoices 

Fiscal Impact: 

Budget Line Item: 

Budget Summary: 

Expenditure: 

Revenue:  

City Council Meeting 

Prep. Date: 09/28/2022 

Preparer: Russell Farnum 

9



As noted in the verbal report by the City Engineer at the September 19 Council meeting, the inspection 

found that all the sidewalks were built to specifications. The cause of heaving still has not be definitely 

identified, however, the variability of soils found under the sidewalks was substantial. The City 

Engineer believes the soil conditions to be the largest issue in the heaving. The additional underdrain 

and reinforcement should prevent this issue from occurring again. 

 

Because this was an issue that was outside the control of the adjacent homeowners, and the adjacent 

homeowners have already paid for their sidewalks, it is NOT recommended that any further money be 

collected from the impacted homeowners.  

 

Recommendation:  Due to there being no workmanship issues, it is recommended that the City pay 

the invoices to Horsfield in the adjusted amounts. This total would be just shy of $8,100. 

 

 









 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: The park and ride is dark.   
 
Background Information: I have looked into options for lighting up the park and ride.  
Option 1: Alliant sets a pole on the North OR South side of the parking lot and has 2 lights on that we 
rent. That costs $1025.34 plus the rent on lights each month 
 
Option 2: Same as option 1 but we get our own lights and have a meter on the pole. The meter socket 
costs roughly $1000 plus the cost of whatever lights we want and installation 
 
Option 3: Alliant sets a pole, a meter socket gets put on the pole, power then gets ran to the pavilion. 
Alliant cost for this is $1834.78 plus cost of meter socket, lights, and installation 
 
Staff Recommendation:  I recommend the approval of adding a light at the park and ride 

Agenda Item:  #10 
Agenda Date: October 3, 2022 

Agenda Items Description:  Lights at the Park & Ride 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: September 27,2022 
Preparer: Nick Kahler 
 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: # 12-20 
Agenda Date: 10/03/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Reports 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Reports; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
   
 

  

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 9/26/2022 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 


	A 01 a October 3, 2022 agenda
	B 01 a 9.19.2022 Council minutes
	B 02 a September 22 2022 Payroll
	Sheet1

	B 03 a CLAIMS REPORT 10.04.2022
	B 04 a 8.1.2022 Treasurers report
	B 04 d Treasurers Report
	D 01 a Communication AFR 2022
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 1
	Agenda Date: 10/03//2022

	D 01 b 2022-       Annual.Financial.Report(FY 2021.2022)
	IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA

	D 01 c Annual Financial Report - FY 2022
	D 02 a Communication Page DD Services
	D 02 b 2022-           D & D Services (Contract.cleaning)
	D 02 c City Of Monticello Custodian Services Agreement Council Packet Updated 9.01.2022
	D 03 a Communication Page Null
	D 03 b 2022-                 Resolution(Plat.Survey.2022.61        )
	D 03 c Null Richard Plat
	D 04 a Communication Page Nagel Riverside
	D 04 b 2022-                 Resolution(Plat.Survey.2022.66        )
	D 04 c Parcel 2022-66 for Nagel Riverside Farms LLC
	D 05 a Communication Page Boland Recreation
	Agenda Item: # 5
	Agenda Date: 10/3/2022
	City Council Meeting

	D 05 b 2022-Austin.Strong.Inclusive.Playground.surfacing(10.03.2022)
	D 05 c playground surface
	D 06 a Communication Page WWTF Updated Design Engineering Contract
	D 06 b 2022- Snyder.Amend.(WWTF.Sewer)
	D 06 c PSASUPP01_2022-09-13_EJCDC_USDA
	PSASUPP01_2022-09-13_EJCDC_E-500-2014
	PSASUPP01_2022-09-01_02.RD_1940-Q_A-1_AddToE-500
	PSASUPP01_2022-09-01_03.RUS_Bulletin_1780-26_ExhibitC_AddToE-500Agm

	D 06 c WWTF Engineering Contract USDA Amendments
	PSASUPP01_2022-09-13_EJCDC_E-500-2014
	PSASUPP01_2022-09-01_02.RD_1940-Q_A-1_AddToE-500
	PSASUPP01_2022-09-01_03.RUS_Bulletin_1780-26_ExhibitC_AddToE-500Agm

	D 07 a comm library staff
	D 07 b 2022-       Library.Youth.Services.Librarian(Wage.Increases)
	D 08 a Communication Page Main Street Agreement
	D 08 b Resolution.Main.Street(Authorizing.Mayoral.Execution.Agreement)
	D 08 c 2022-2023 Monticello Main Street Agreement
	D 08 d Resolution 2022-57
	G 01 a Communication Page South Linden Street Parking
	Agenda Item: #  11
	Agenda Date: 10/3/2022
	City Council Meeting

	G 01 b ORD 2022-           S.LindenStreet(No.Parking.Amendment)
	H 01 a Communication Page Sycamore Street Sidewalks
	H 01 b Horsfield Sycamore St Invoices (noted adjustments)
	H 02 a Communication Page Park and Ride 2
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item:  #10
	Agenda Date: October 3, 2022

	I 01 a Communication Reports
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 12-20
	Agenda Date: 10/03/2022




